
The YouTube channel "City ofFranklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

REVISED* G.11 and G.14.

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL- COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA**
TUESDAY OCTOBER 3, 2023 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge ofAllegiance.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval ofMinutes: Regular Common Council Meeting of September 19, 2023.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational.

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Presentation and Discussion of a Memorandum of Understanding Document Regarding

Solutions to Noise Issues at the ROC.
2. A Resolution to Submit a 2024 Grant Application Request from the Wisconsin

Department of Natural Resources Urban Forestry Grant Program and Unspecified
Amounts for yet to be Determined Catastrophic Storm Events.

3. Letter of Understanding Between the City of Franklin and the Franklin Police Officers
Association Local 280 Wisconsin Professional Police Association/LEER Regarding
Hours of Work for Patrol Officers.

4. Federal Emergency Management Agency's Floodplain Violation Resolution Program.
5. Potential Water Service to Hale Park Highlands Area.
6. Motion to approve the Director of Health and Human Services to accept the 2023

Division of Public Health Consolidated Contracts to continue funding health department
grants.

7. Acceptance of the 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the City of
Franklin.

8. Authorize $10,000 for General Planning Services Provided by MDRoffers Consulting.
9. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance Adopting the 2023

Annual Budget for the General Fund to Provide Additional $10,000 Appropriations for
Consulting Services in the Planning Department.

10. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance Adopting the 2023
Annual Budget for the General Fund to Provide Additional $9,500 Appropriations for
Part-Time Principal Planner.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
October 3, 2023
Page2

* 11. Rescind the Motion to Authorize a Consulting Services Agreement with Wrayburn
Consulting, LLC, Adopted on September 19, 2023, and in Place of the Approved
Agreement, Approve the Hiring ofNicholas Fuchs as a Part-Time Planner.

12. Authorization for the Renewal of Palo Alto Annual Support & Licensing - Information
Services Equipment Maintenance Outlay Budget-Account 01-0144-5242.

13. Authorize $62,202.65 for Trenching and Fiber Relocation Change Orders for the Fiber
Optic WAN ProjectAccount 46-0181-5846.9650.

* 14. Authorize the Purchase and Service Contract of New Fortinet Firewalls from
TPX/Comerstone Communications for $391,108, as a Fully Managed Security Solution
- Account 46-0181-5846.9650. The Common Council may enter closed session for this
subject matter item pursuant to Wis. Stat. §19.85(1)(d), to consider strategy for crime
prevention, i.e., cyberattack prevention and technological crimes in relation thereto, for
the protection of the City's technical and information infrastructure and the City
officials, employees and the public who use the system, and also pursuant to Wis. Stat.
§ 19 .85(1 )(e), for competition and bargaining reasons with regard to the prevention
protection program and this subject matter item, and the investing of public funds in
relation thereto, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

H. Licenses and Permits: License Committee Meeting of October 3, 2023.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval ofVouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

Supportmng documentation and details of these agenda Items are avatlable at Cty Hall durmg normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mndrvduals through appropriate ads
and services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500]

REMINDERS:

October 5
October 10
October 17
October 19
October 28

Plan Commission
Special Common Council Meeting
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission
Trick or Treat

6:00p.m.
6:30p.m.
6:30p.m.
6:00p.m.
4:00-7:00 p.m.



ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 5, 2023

ORGANIZATIONAL -
MAYORAL
APPOINTMENTS

A.

B.

C.

E.

c.
CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
SEPTEMBER 19, 2023

MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Franklin Common Council was held on
September 19, 2023, and was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor
Nelson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis
Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were present:
Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann, Alderwoman
Michelle Eichmann, Alderman Yousef Hasan, Alderwoman Courtney
Day, Alderman Mike Barber, and Alderman Jason Craig. Also in
attendance were Director of Administration Kelly Hersh, City
Engineer Glen Morrow, City Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski, and City
Clerk Karen Kastenson.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:32 p.m. and was closed at
7:33 p.m.

Alderman Craig moved to approve the minutes of the Common
Council meeting of September 5, 2023, as presented. Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to confirm the following Mayoral
appointments:

RES. 2023-8042 G.l.
CONDITIONS AND
RESTRICTIONS FOR
APPROVAL OF SPECIAL
USE FOR DRIVE
THROUGH - 7730 S
LOVERS LANE RD

AUTHORIZE WAGE G.2.
ADJUSTMENT FOR
RYAN BOOS

1. Clarke Johnson, 7703 W. Margaret Ln., Ald. Dist. I-Board of
Public Works for a 3-year unexpired term expiring 04/30/26.

2. Craig Marifke, 10402 W. Herda Pl, Ald. Dist. 6-Architectural
Board for a 3-year unexpired term expiring 04/30/25 (moving
from an Alternate Member to a Regular Member).

Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8042, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A DRIVE
THROUGH RESTAURANT UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT
7730 S. LOVERS LANE RD. (BY DHARMESH GHELANI, AK
DEVELOPERS LLC, APPLICANT, FRANKLIN WYNDHAM LLC,
PROPERTY OWNER) subject to minor technical corrections to the
font. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the hourly wage increase for
Ryan Boos from $23.84 to $27.38/hr. Annual salary is estimated at
$56,953 with estimated corresponding benefits of $25,628. Seconded
by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
September 19, 2023
Page 2

MAYOR'S 2024 G.3
RECOMMENDED
BUDGET TO FINANCE
TO COMMON COUNCIL

ORD. 2023-2554 G.4.
ORDINANCE
ADOPTING THE 2023
ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
CAPITAL OUTLAY
FUND

2022 ANNUAL G.5.
COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT

ORD. 2023-2555 G.6.
ORDINANCE
ADOPTING THE 2023
ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
GENERAL FUND

CONSULTING G.7.
SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH WRAYBURN
CONSULTING, LLC

BUDGET AMENDMENT G.8.
CARRY FORWARD PO
TO COVER WRAYBURN
CONSULTING
EXPENSES

Alderman Barber moved to forward the Mayor's 2024 Recommended
Budget to the Finance Committee for its review and submission of its
recommended changes to the Common Council at their special meeting
of October 10, 2023 and to further provide other direction to staff, as
appropriate, relative to additional materials or information needed for
the October 10, 2023 Special Common Council Meeting budget
discussions. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-2554, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
THE CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND TO PROVIDE CARRY
FORWARD APPROPRIATIONS FROM 2022 FOR SPECIFICALLY
IDENTIFIED PROJECTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $84,287. Seconded
by Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Craig moved to table the 2022 Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report for the City of Franklin, and bring back to the
October 3, 2023 meeting. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-2555, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
THE GENERAL FUND TO PROVIDE CARRY FORWARD
APPROPRIATIONS FROM 2022 FOR A PLANNING
CONSULTANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,500. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize a Consulting Services
Agreement with Wrayburn Consulting, LLC for general planning
services; and authorize the Mayor to execute and administer the
appropriate, related contract. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

No Action taken. This item has been deleted from the agenda as it is a
duplicate item.



Common Council Meeting
September 19, 2023
Page 3

RES. 2023-8043 G.9.
OFFICIAL INTENT TO
REIMBURSE
EXPENDITURES

CHANGE PLAN G.10.
COMMISSION MEETING
FROM 7:00 P.M. TO
6:00 PM

RES 2023-8044 G.11.
PROPERTY TAX
RESCISSION & REFUND
2022, TKN 754-9008-000

DISCUSS LETTER TO G.12.
COMMON COUNCIL
FROM THE BOARD OF
REVIEW

RES. 2023-8045 G.13.
PROVIDING SALE OF
GENERAL OBLIGATION
PROMISSORY NOTES

RES 2023-8046 G.14.
GO BONDS $3,035,000
WATER SYSTEM
PROJECTS

RES 2023-8047
GO BONDS $3,020,000
BUILDINGS FOR
MACHINERY AND
EQUIPMENT

RES 2023-8048
SALE OF GO
CORPORATE PURPOSE
BONDS $6,055,000

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8043, A
RESOLUTION DECLARING OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE
EXPENDITURES FROM PROCEEDS OF BORROWING. Seconded
by Alderwoman Day. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to change the Plan Commission
meeting start times to 6 p.m., effective with the next Plan Commission
meeting of October 5, 2023. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to direct staff to adopt Resolution
No. 2023-8044, A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PARTIAL
PROPERTY TAX RESCISSION AND REFUND FOR 2022 FOR
TKN 754-9008-000. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Referral of Letter to the Common Council from the Board of Review
with Expression of concerns as it pertains to the City of Franklin's Tax
Assessments.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8045, A
RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF
APPROXIMATELY $2,395,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION
PROMISSORY NOTES, SERIES 2023B. Seconded by Alderman
Barber. On a roll call; All voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved adopt Resolution No. 2023-8046, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $3,035,000 GENERAL
OBLIGATION BONDS FOR WATER SYSTEM PROJECTS.
Seconded by Alderman Craig. On a roll call; All voted Aye. Motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved adopt Resolution No. 2023-8047, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $3,020,000 GENERAL
OBLIGATION BONDS FOR BUILDINGS FOR THE HOUSING OF
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer.
On a roll call; All voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved adopt Resolution No. 2023-8048, A
RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF NOT TO
EXCEED $6,055,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE
PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2023A. Seconded by Alderwoman Day.
On a roll call; All voted Aye. Motion carried.



MISCELLANEOUS
LICENSES

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

H.

I.

Alderman Barber moved adopt Resolution No. 2023-8049, A
RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE TO
ELECTORS RELATING TO BOND ISSUES. Seconded by
Alderman Craig. On a roll call; All voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Day moved to approve the following licenses:

License Meeting of September 19, 2023:

Grant 2023-24 Operator License to: Angel Cihler, Jeffrey Linehan,
Isabella Pantoja, Samuel Tretow, Kayla Wolcyk;
Grant Reserve "Class B" Combination: Change of Agent to DBA
Staybridge Suites Milwaukee Airport South, Dadaswami Hospitality
LLC, 9575 S 27th St, Patel Shveta.

Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to approve City vouchers with an ending
date of September 14, 2023, in the amount of $2,537,069.56, and
payroll dated September 8, 2023, in the amount of $452,571.28 and
payments of the various payroll deductions in the amount of
$239,937.04, plus City matching payments, and estimated payroll
dated September 22, 2023, in the amount of $460,000 and payments of
the various payroll deductions in the amount of $467,000, plus City
matching payments. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. On roll
call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

At 9:07 p.m., Mayor Nelson took a five-minute recess. At 9:12 p.m.
the Council returned back into open session.

Common Council Meeting
September 19, 2023
Page 4

RES 2023-8049
ELECTORS TO BOND
ISSUES

CLOSED SESSION -
SEAGRAVE FIRE
APPARATUS, LLC
TB50CA MARAUDER
PUMPER FIRE ENGINE
PURCHASE
CONTRACT
DELIBERATING OR
NEGOTIATING
PURCHASING PUBLIC
PROPERTIES,
INVESTING PUBLIC
FUNDS, OR
CONDUCTING
SPECIFIED PUBLIC
BUSINESS

G.15. Alderman Barber moved to enter closed session at 9:14 p.m., pursuant
to Wis. Stat. §19.85(1)(e), with regard to deliberating or negotiating
the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or
conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or
bargaining reasons require a closed session; and Wis. Stat.
§ 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the Common Council
who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body
with respect to litigation in which it is likely to become involved, and
to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate regarding Seagrave
Fire Apparatus, LLC TB50CA Marauder Pumper fire engine purchase
contract. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. On roll call, all voted
Aye. Motion carried.

Upon re-entering open session at 9:34 p.m., Alderman Craig moved to
direct staff to proceed as discussed in closed session. Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
September 19, 2023
Page 5

CLOSED SESSION
CITY PERSONNEL
PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION OF
DIRECTOR OF
ADMINISTRATION

CLOSED SESSION
CITY PERSONNEL
PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION

G.16. Alderwoman Eichmann moved to enter closed session at 9:35 p.m.,
with regard to City personnel performance evaluation of Director of
Administration, to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.
§ 19.85(l)(c), considering employment, promotion, compensation or
performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the
governing body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate. Seconded by Alderman
Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye; Motion carried.

Upon re-entering open session at 10:43 p.m., no action was taken.

Alderwoman Eichmann vacated her seat at 10:43 p.m.

G.17. Alderman Craig moved to enter closed session at 10:45 p.m., pursuant
to Wis. Stat. §19.85(l)(c), considering employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee
over which the governing body has jurisdiction or exercises
responsibility, Wis. Stat. §19.85(l)(f), considering financial, medical,
social, or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons,
preliminary consideration of specific personnel problems, or the
investigation of charges against specific persons except where par. (b)
applies which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a
substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to
in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or
investigations, and Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(g), conferring with legal
counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written
advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to
litigation in which it is likely to become involved, and to reenter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On
roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Upon re-entering open session at 11: 13 p.m., Alderwoman Eichmann
moved to direct staff to proceed as discussed in closed session.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

ADJOURNMENT J. Alderman Craig moved to adjourn the meeting of the Common
Council at 11:14 p.m. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye;
motion carried.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL MEETING
REQUEST FOR DATE

±k COMMON COUNCIL ACTION
10/3/2023

REPORTS & Presentation and Discussion of a Memorandum of ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS Understanding Document Regarding Solutions to

Noise Issues at the ROC. G.1.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

For discussion purposes only.

MAYOR - JRN



Draft 9/29/2023

Memorandum of Understating (MOU)
Between the City of Franklin, WI, and ROC Ventures LLC

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is dated as of October 3, 2023 ("Effective Date") and sets

forth the basic terms between the City of Franklin and ROC Ventures LLC ("Company"), located at 7044 S

Ballpark Dr, Franklin, WI 53132, (each a "Party" and collectively, the "Parties")

• The Parties seek to establish a set of NEW binding terms for sound mitigation, in which ROC

Ventures and the City of Franklin will exchange current agreements in the existing planned

development district agreement ("PDD") 37 for Ballpark Commons.

• The Parties agree to the terms below to begin executing critical preparations and responsibilities

and provide a framework to negotiate and enter into a new PDD, in which the Parties will operate

and govern the Ballpark Commons entertainment district.

• The parties understand and agree that this MOU contemplates very high-level terms and that each

party's obligations under the PDD Agreement are to be negotiated in good faith.

Therefore, the parties agree as follows:

1. Decibel Levels. Following execution of this MOU, the parties agree to begin negotiations on a

new decibel level agreement by type of event. Specifically, the parties agree to adjust volumes to

comply with 3 different thresholds for Milkmen games (based on attendance and/or day of the

week), extraordinary events, and fireworks.

2. Sound Monitoring. ROC Ventures will transfer ownership and monitoring of the three sound

monitoring devices to the City of Franklin. The City of Franklin will make the monitoring available

to the public via the city website. ROC Ventures further agrees to compensate the City of Franklin

for ongoing maintenance of the three sound monitoring devices located on the property lines. As

part of this agreement, ROC Ventures will grant property easement rights.

3. Speaker Adjustments. ROC Ventures agrees to adjust and angle all speakers within Franklin Field

towards the seating areas.

4. Acoustic Fencing. The parties shall negotiate in good faith and mutually agree to finance and

install 900 feet at a minimum of 8-foot-tall acoustic fencing (on top of existing berms) on the west

property line in lieu of additional berm work.

Draft 9/29/2023



5. Extraordinary Events. The City of Franklin agrees to support the entertainment efforts of Ballpark

Commons for extraordinary events such as concerts, fireworks, and seasonal events (Hill Has Eyes,

Enchant). The City of Franklin will not withhold permits and approvals unless there are direct

violations of sound ordinance and/or reasonable compliance concerns with city departments (fire,

police, health, etc.) and municipal codes as outlined in the new PDD.

6. Compliance with Laws. The parties agree to abide by sound ordinances outlined in the PDD or

other legal requirements concerning the performance of their respective obligations under the PDD

Agreement.

7. Timing. The parties agree to negotiate and execute the terms set forth in the PDD prior to the

start of the Milwaukee Milkmen 2024 season.

8. Miscellaneous. This MOU may not be modified, supplemented, or changed except pursuant to a

written amendment signed by a duly authorized representative of each party. This MOU may be

executed in multiple counterparts, which together shall constitute a complete document.

The parties are signing this MOU as of the Effective Date listed in the preamble above.

ROC VENTURES LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

Michael Zimmerman
Chief Executive Officer

City of Franklin, WI

By:
Name: John R. Nelson
Title: Mayor

Draft 9/29/2023



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION TO SUBMIT A 2024 GRANT
APPLICATION REQUEST FROM THE WISCONSIN
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES URBAN
FORESTRY GRANT PROGRAM AND UNSPECIFIED

AMOUNTS FORYET TO BE DETERMINED
CATASTROPHIC STORM EVENTS

MEETING DATE
1013123

BACKGROUND
The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Urban Forestry Grant program is designed to fund
projects that improve a community's capacity to manage its trees. Projects that help conserve, protect, expand or
improve the urban forest resource will also be prioritized. This 2024 grant application is due October 2, 2023.

ANALYSIS
An eligible 50% match includes options for cash or in-kind services provided for the project and that have
occurred during the project period. Projects must be a minimum of $2,000 and a maximum of $50,000- i.e. the
grant request must be between $1,000 and $25,000. Proposals are competitively scored amongst other applications
from other communities. Grant application must be mailed no later than October 2, 2023. Eligible projects and
expenditures are for January 1 to December 31, 2024.

Staff recommends a proposed project as follows:
• $10,000 Street Tree Planting & Replacements
• $5,000 Ordinance Re-Write (Chapter 240)
• $5,000 Staff Training and Conferences
• $20,000 Total Project Cost

The 50% required match for this grant is $10,000, which would be requested from the City.

This grant award is anticipated to be announced in January 2024.

Note that the attached resolution uses the recommended language from the grant website. The sample resolution
also includes language to allow the City to quickly apply and receive a 100% grant for urban forestry catastrophic
storm projects specified in Wis. Stats section 23.097(1g) and (lr), Wis. Stats- if needed. Both sections of the
statute are as follows:

(1g) The department shall award grants to counties, cities, villages, towns, and nonprofit organizations
for up to 50 percent ofthe cost oftree management plans, tree inventories, brush residue projects, the
development oftree management ordinances, tree disease evaluations, public education concerning trees
in urban areas and other tree projects.

(1 r) In addition to the grants awarded under sub. (1g), the department may award grants to ... cities, ...
that applyfor the grants for the costs ofremoving, saving, and replacing trees that have been damaged
by catastrophic storm events in urban areas. To be eligiblefor a grant under this subsection, the damage
must have occurred in an area for which the governor has designated a state ofemergency due to a
catastrophic storm event. The department shall notify each applicantfor a grant under this subsection as
to whether the application for the grant will be approved or denied within 60 days after the date the



application is submitted to the department. A recipient ofa grant awarded under this subsection is exempt
from having to pay anypercentage ofthe costs in order to receive the grant.

OPTIONS
A. Pass a Resolution to direct Staff to submit grant application and comply with the requirements stipulated

in the grant program. Or,
B. Table and elect to not submit grant application due October 2, 2023.

FISCAL NOTE
The City of Franklin is in the process of making and adopting a budget for 2024. Staff wages, labor costs, and
additional funds in the Operating budget for training can be used to match the $10,000 that we are asking for in
this grant.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
(Option A) Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023- a resolution to make a 2024 grant application request
of $10,000 (for a Project total of $20,000) from the 2024 WDNR Urban Forestry Grant and Urban Forestry
Catastrophic Storm Grant Program and unspecified amounts for yet to be determined catastrophic storm events.

DPW:TR/ams



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 -----

A RESOLUTION TO SUBMIT A 2024 GRANT APPLICATION REQUEST FROM THE
WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES URBAN FORESTRY GRANT

PROGRAM AND UNSPECIFIED AMOUNTS FOR YET TO BE DETERMINED
CATASTROPHIC STORM EVENTS

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin , (FRANKLIN), is interested in obtaining a
cost-share grant from Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for the purpose of funding
urban and community forestry projects or urban forestry catastrophic storm projects specified in
s. 23.097(lg) and (lr), Wis. Stats.; and

WHEREAS, FRANKLIN attests to the validity and veracity of the statements and
representations contained in the grant application; and

WHEREAS, FRANKLIN requests a grant agreement to carry out the project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin,
(FRANKLIN), will comply with all local, state, and federal rules, regulations and ordinances
relating to this project and the cost-share agreement;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, FRANKLIN will budget a sum sufficient to fully and
satisfactorily complete the project and hereby authorizes and empowers the City Forester to act
on its behalf to:

1. Sign and submit the grant application(s)

2. Sign a grant agreement(s) between FRANKLIN and the DNR

3. Submit interim and/or final reports to the DNR to satisfy the grant agreement(s)

4. Submit grant reimbursement request(s) to the DNR

5. Sign and submit other required documentation

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the

day of>2023, by Alderman _



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the

day of?2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES __NOES __ABSENT



Urban Forestry Grants Application
Page 1 of7Form 8700-298 (R 06/23)

State of Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources
Division of Forestry
dnr.wi.gov
Notice: Pursuant to US Public Law95-313, s 6(b), s 23 097, Wis Stats, and ch NR47, Wis. Adm Code. this completed form is required to
apply for an Urban Forestry Grant The Department of Natural Resources (DNR) will be unable to process your application unless complete
information is provided as requested Information will be used to determine grant award liSts, provide statistical information and potentially to
use as an example for other grant applicants Personally identifiable information collected will be used for administrative purposes and may be
provided to requesters to the extent required by Wisconsin's Public Records Law [ss 19 31-19 39, Ws. Stats.].

Resolution required with application submittal- Grant is for Calendar year 2024 -- see sample
Section I: Grant T e

Select the appropriate grant type Please note. a maximum of three urban forestry startup grants may be awarded to an applicant
within the lifetime of the startup program. Click the link for more information related to each grant type.

0 Regular Grant O Start-up Grant

Section II: Applicant Information
A. Applicant Organization
Applicant Organization Name

Organization Address (same as Treasurer orW9) City ZIP Code

Applicant organization is a (checkone)
0 City O Village O Town O County O Tribal Government O 501(c)(~) nonprofit organization

Located in the county of_[Rius#ow.xr
B. ApplicantAuthorizedRepresentative
Last Name FirstName Ml Position Title

Phone Number Email

C. Project Manager (if different fromAuthorizedRepresentative) []

D. GrantRequestSummary --will automatlcall be populatedfrom.SectionViCalculations



Urban Forestry Grants Application
Form 8700-298 {R 06/23) Page 2 of 7

SGction Ill. Community Urban Forestr Pro ram Status
Below are basic elements of a well-establishedmunicipal, county, or tribal urban forestry program. SelectONE option in each category
that bestdescribes your current urban forestry program.
Applicants for the Startup Grantwill be redirectedto a regular grant application if they selectthe topbox in 3 or more of the categones.
501(c}(3) organizations omitthis sectic)I'\ UN'#SSyourproJect results in a munielpality agvaneing to the top level in any of the
categories. Then, list the municipality here and complete the grid to reflect that municipality's current urban forestry program

Municipalities·

We have a current, complete tree inventory
Tree Inventory Our tree inventory is incomplete or needs updating or upgrading.

We have no formal inventory or otherwrittenrecordsof our trees

0
0
0

0

0
0

u
Urbanforestry programmanagementis done bystaff, contracted consultants &/orvolunteers who have: a
forestry degree; ISA certified arborist credentials; have completed W CommunityTree Management Institute;
or have other advanced forestry training.

Program
staffing

Urban Forest
Management

Plan

We have no staff, contracted consultants or volunteersauthorized tohandle or advise our community on tree
planting & care. 0
Wehave one ormoretree ordinance(s) thatls/ars.is6flforachieving community tree care andmanagement
goals,

Tree ordinance Our tree ordinance(s) is/areout-of-date or inadequate. )
Our code ordinance contains no provisions for tree.managemnerif, areorprotection.Tree language is limited to )
public safety or nuisanceabatement. .....
We have an authorized citizen tree board or otherorganizedgroupactively involved in advising our community O
urban forestryprogram

Advocacy
We have various groups (clubs, schools, committees) interested and involved in community tree care and O
management but not formally charged with advising our community utban forestry progtarn- OR- We have an
authorized but inactive citizen treeboard.
The level of involvement and support by residents and local elected officials for our community utban forestry O
program is low to non-existent.

Comments (optional)'



Urban Forestry Grants Application
Form 8700-298 (R 06/23) Page 3 of 7

A. Project Overview
Section IV: Project Descnption

Descriptive Project T1tlE1:
Describe the project using no more than 2000 characters (including spaces), Provide an overview that includes basics ofwho is doing
what, where, how and why This can be a buUEJted list.
Describe how this projectwould establish a new program or advance an underdeveloped one.

B. ProjectComponents
Choose from the dropdownboxes below,
Use the '.QTHER" choice to type in
alternatives. (See a list of eligibleproject
activities In the application guide)
Click + at.right to addanothercomponent.
Describe each project

Describe each project component.
• Whatare the expected outcomes (results)?
• Howwill expected outcomes bemeasured, evaluated or shared?
Note: complete a &eparate Cost EstimateWorksheet {CEW) in
SectionVII for each projectcomponent listed below. The CEWwill
transfer the total to the right-hand columnbelow.

Component Cost Estimate ($)
(field will auto-populate fromdetail on CEW)

Component Name.
DescrlptlonlOutcome:

Examples of components forPart B (selected Jo dropdown box above):
1 lnformatlon/Eclucation/Outreach Information (e.g, news media, printmaterial development), Education (e g., classes, tree Walks,

seminars), Outreach {e.g., citizen involvement in planning or impleme.ntationQf Arbor Day celebration).
2 Tree Maint: OtherFertilization, stor damage mitigation, pest control, etc.
3 Plan Development(EmeraldAsh Borer, rn$na:Q'ement. strategic, storm response, pest response, planting)

0 Single public property
0 MUitipie publicpropertieswithm a municlpallty
D Multiple public properties across multiple municipalities

c. Project Locattc>n/Scope
Land Ownership Affected (select all that apply)
O Single private property
0 Multiple private propertieswithin a municipality
0 Multiple private properties across multiple munielpalities

D. Applicant's Project Partners
Noto: Eachof the applicant's partnersmust verify theirinvolvement using a PartnerVerification(Fgrm 8700-298A,

linked here foryourconvenience),APartnerVerificationformmust be completedand sentinwlth this form for a
complete application. If applicable,estimate the partner's donatedamount on the appropriate CEW.

List Partner Organization($). What Sf$cific service, product; or role w111 eac.h partnercontribute to the project?



Urban Forestry Grants Application
Form 8700-298 (R 06/23) Page 4 of 7

Section V: Alignment with DNR Urban Forestry Program Goals - Only applicable for Regular grants
1. Describe the direct impact(s) your project has onurban tree canopy onprivate property:

2 Describe how you will utilize an existing inventory in this project. If no inventory exists or the inventory is outdated, will
an 111ventory be produced because ofthe grant? How Will the new inventory be utilized?

3 If hosting a professionalworkshop or educational event, describe how your projectwill build capacity and/or
partnerships for those attending. Will othercommunities be Invited to attend? Haveyol,i reached outto neighboring
communities to identify training demand?

NA]

NIA 0

NIA 0

4 Please select if your projectwill include;
[]EABManagement Plan [] Ash Tree removals
O EAB Insecticide treatment O Ash tree replacement planting

NIA 0
D Ash Inventories (includes complete tree inventories)
[] EAB Education and outreach

5 Please select if your projectwlll resultin' NIA O
[] A current, useful, written, inventory-based urban forestmanagement plan
0 One or more tree ordinance(s) that ls/are useful for achieving your community tree care and management goal

Type of ordinance planned to be developed or enhanced (i.e. general street tree, newdevelopment, tree protection, etc)

[] An authorized citizen tree board or other organized group. actively involved in advising your community urban forestry program
[] Staff, tree service contractors &/orvolunteers receiving a forestrydegree, ISA certified arborist credentials, graduating fromWI

Community Tree Management Institute, or obtaining other advanced forestry training

6 Describe how each componentof your project will have a long-term positive impact on the urban tree canopy and the benefits
it provides (i a. increased % canopy cover, orresiliency to pest/disease/storm, reduce liability) Quantify impacts to canopy or
associated benefits wherever possible
Tie this narrative to the component lsted in question #5



Urban Forestry Grants Application
Form 8700-298 (R 06/23)

Section VI: Additional Applicant Information - Only applicable for Regular grants
1, Is the community where the projectwill be Implemented a Green Tier Legacy Community? O Yes O No O NIA

2. Is the community where the projectwill be implemented a Tree City USA? )Yes )No ONIA
www.arborday.org/programs/treeCItyUSAindex.fi.)

3. List any specific urban tree care or tree management training received,or conferences attended by your organization's
staff or volunteers within the last three years. Please listno more than 5separate trainings.

Page 5 of7

Date Course Title Training Description Provider Attendees

4, Have you received an Urban Forestry grant in the past 3 years?
If so, how is this project different than the project(s) completed prevltiusly?

OYes O No

5 Describe any additional significantaspects or outstanding features of this projectthatyouwould like us to knowabout.



Urban Forestry Grants Application
Form 8700-298 (R06/23)

Section VII: Cost Estimate Worksheets

Page 6 of 7

A SEPARATE WORKSHEET IS PROVIDED FOR EACH COMPONENT CHOSEN IN SECTION IV.B.
If more space is needed, return to Section IV.B , click + to add another component. choose the same Component name

again, enter •conbnt1ed" in the Description, and return to this Section to complete your entry

Project Component:

In-Kind Labor & Services (specif}' project tasks on lines below, as appropriate)

Applicant's Staff Labor.
Fringe Benefits: Actual fringe benefitsmay not exceed the DOA rate.
Fringe rate for 2024 ls 47.60%
Other·

Donated Consultants/Contractors/Services (professional rate)

Volunteer Labor ($15.00/hr.)
Municipal Partner Labor Expense
(Cooperative Agreement will be required)

Equipment (specify type ofequipment andDOTlass code onlines below, asappropriate)
See application guidelines fora list of comrrvmly used equipment codes.
Provided by Applicant

Donated by third parties:

Supplies (specify items on lnes below, as appropriate)
Provided by Applicant's On-hand Inventory

Donated by third parties

Cash Expenditures (specify out ofpocketpayments as appropriate)
Hired Consultants/Contractors/Services (professional rate)

Purchased Equipment (not to exce&(I $5,J}(}Q IJtem):.

Rented or Contracted Equipment.

Other Project Purchases·

Estimated Sub-Total Cost/Donation Value for THIS component'
Estimated Total for THIS component.

Estimated Cost

1

3.

Donation Value



Urban Forestry Grants Application
Form 8700-298 (R 06/23) Page 7 of 7

CALCULATIONS.
Grant Calculation

A Estimated Project rotal: 8ox3 forALLProject Components
This amount ls the Total Project Cost in Section II o.

8. Estimated Donation Value. Box 2 for ALLProject Components

c Estimated cost: Box 1 for ALL ProjectComponents

D. 50% ofLine A (Cannot be > $25,000)

E The smaller of Line C or Line D above. This is yourGRANT REQUEST
(Must be between $1,000 and $25,000.) This amount is the Grant Request in Section II.D.

F Line A minus Line E This is YOUR SHARE. This amount is the Applicant's Share in Section 11.D

Section VIII: Certification and Submission
Application forand required attachments must be recelved by

41:59 p.m., October 2, 2023, for the application to be eligible.
Attachments

Estimated Cost

Provide a signed resoluUon that hasbeen adopted by the applicant's governing body which gives the name of the applicant,
authorizes funding for the project, designates an authorized representative (positiontitle)to acton behalf of the applicantand
states that the applicant will provide documentation ofworkdone and follow all relevantstate and federal rules A sample
resolution is provided at. bltpl;t/dnrwi.gov/tQplc/UtbanForeststgrants/dQ®ment§tVFGtantsQombinetlResoJution,doc
Check all items you plan to attach,
0 Authorizing Resolution attached
[] By-laws & articles of incorporation (501[c]3]applicants only)
[] Partner Verification Attached (8700-298A)

swami»sitstsvu«on»&;±:'a#MEETEEEE,Z,2WEE»AMEL1,2.ZEE#,s, ±#see#El,IEEE;
Review your application before continuing.

Submission by Email strongly recommended Ifnot possible, contact the Urban E9resti:Yfinancial Specialim
By my signature below, I hereby certify to the best ofmy knowledge, the informationcontained in this application and application attachments are
correct and true I understand and agree that any grant mQoles awarded as a result of this application shall be used in accordancewith
ch 23 097, Wis Stats., and ch 47,Wis,Adm Code.

NOTE: Pleage type your name on thti signature line Your typed name, along with the email message
generated from electronic submittal of thisform, will be used as an electronic signaturewhich is the legal
equivalent to an actual signature.

Signature ofAuthorized Representative

Position Title

Date Signed Applicant's Authorized Representative (print)



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Letter ofUnderstanding Between the City of
Franklin and the Franklin Police Officers

Association Local 280 Wisconsin Professional Police
Association/LEER Regarding Hours ofWork for

Patrol Officers

MEETING
DATE

10-03-2023

ITEM NUMBER

G.3.

The police officer union requests to change the shift hours of patrol officers to one hour earlier
than the current shift hours for each shift.

The Chief of Police supports this request.

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact anticipated for this change.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED:

Move to authorize city officials to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (attached)
with the police union to change patrol officer shift hours to one hour earlier than current
shift hours.



rage 1 01 2

Memorandum of Understanding
Between

The City of Franklin
and the

Franklin Police Officers Association Local 280
Wisconsin Professional Police Association / LEER

Regarding Hours ofWork Patrol Officers

The City of Franklin and the Franklin Police Officers Association/Wisconsin Professional Police
Association mutually agree to the adjustment of the Hours of Work for Patrol Officers on a trial
basis. This agreement will sunset at the end of the current labor agreement and there is no
dynamic status quo attached to it.

It is agreed to by the Association and the City that the collective bargaining agreement language
will be modified as follows:

Article 7 HOURS OF WORK
Section 7.01 Hours of Work:

A Patrol Officers: The normal shifts shall be as follows: First Shift- 6:45 AM. to 3:00 P.M.;
Second Shift- 2:45 P.M. to 11:00 P.M.; Third Shift-10:45 P.M. to 7:00 AM.; Swing Shift 
7:45 P.M. to 4:00 AM.

1. This represents the complete understanding of the parties on this issue. Any amendments
or modifications to this agreement must be made in writing.

2. If at any time either party should seek to terminate this agreement, the Association and
Administration shall meet in a timely manner and discuss this memo of understanding to
decide if the parties agree to continue the language. Should either party not agree, that
party shall provide written notification of the withdrawal of this agreement, effect 30
calendar days after the notice is provided.

3. This Agreement shall not continue beyond the current Collective Bargaining Agreement.
The agreementwill automatically sunset, unless it is mutually agreed to by the City and the
Association to incorporate the shift changes into a successor collective bargaining
agreement.

4. This Agreement shall not serve as precedent or past practice regarding any further
alterations to the Collective Bargaining Agreement that either party shall seek in the future
and shall not be used as evidence against either party in a proceeding unrelated to
interpretation or application of this Agreement.

5. This Agreement is the result of mutual draftsmanship and shall not be interpreted against
either party on grounds of sole authorship.



Agreed to by:

R1chard Oliva, Police Chief

Kelly Hersh, Dir of Admin

Karen Kastenson, City Clerk

Date

Date

Date

Nick Coca, President

Amy Wahl, Secretary

Business Agent, WPPA

rage or

Date

Date

Date



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

¥
Reports' &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Federal Emergency Management Agency's
Floodplain Violation Resolution Program

MTG. DATE
October 3, 2023

ITEM NO.
All Ald. Dists.
G.4.

BACKGROUND
The Federal Emergency Management Agency provides the National Flood Insurance Program
(NFIP); flood insurance is available to anyone living in one of the 23,000 participating NFIP
communities. Homes and businesses in high-risk flood areas with mortgages from government
backed lenders are required to have flood insurance (FEMA.gov).

On August 2, 2022 the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) contacted the City
of Franklin regarding their annual Community Assistance Visit (CAV). The CAV is intended as a
review and enforcement program for floodplain violations. Ongoing violations of floodplain
protection laws, such as structures in the floodplain, represent a danger to health and safety.

A review of aerials dated 2007-2020 by FEMA and WDNR found 25 locations that appeared to
be encroaching in a mapped floodplain. Staff was tasked with reviewing the list and developing a
plan to bring all properties into compliance and develop a standard operating procedure to prevent
these encroachments in the future. A draft workplan was produced by Staff and at the most recent
CAV meeting with WDNR on September 20, 2023, WDNR was understanding of the current
staffing situation in the Planning Department, but asked that progress on the identified
encroachments be made.

ANALYSIS
This is a serious issue that cannot be delayed. Participation in the NFIP is critical to Franklin and
failure to obtain compliance with WDNR would cause FEMA to become more involved.

Staff is prepared to send out letters to the properties shown on the attached three exhibits compiled
by WDNR. The properties are spread throughout the City, and ownership includes public and
private entities. Generally, Staff will work with the property owners to obtain compliance. Should
compliance not be obtained in a timely manner, applicable citations will be issued.

OPTIONS
No action needed, this Council Action is for informational purposes.

FISCAL NOTE
Generally, the costs are Staff time and future possible changes to permitting software. Costs to be
determined.

RECOMMENDATION
Receive and place on file. Staff will send out letters and work with the applicable property owners
as described above.

Engineering Department: GEM



City of Franklin
Potential NFIP Development Sites AE Floodway

Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
Prepared July 2022

Notes

Map Features

rzl Mazomanie BeachClosed Are
NakJral Area Parcel Ownershlr
On ly

~ WDNR

~ ""'°""
State Trail
tee AgeTraH
North CountryScenic Trail
Closed end Restr icted Areas
Conservaijon Reserve Land
S1ewardshlp GrantAcq uisition
County FOf851
Board of Conrnlsalonere of Pu
DNROwned (By Property)
(;] Of:,ff'lloAIAclMlu

~ OptnlOHbaMFbh,Nol-l#illl"n

~ c,p.,.1Gtet,tuc/1'3'1,Nonsh

l 0»me»At, Ne tog
ffl3 Opc l'IbO.,,t Ad!YUtt °""f, No
8 o n»Ho oy
ONR Easement (ByProperty)
• OpenlOAIAdMltt

l3 0,.ntoHll:tandfilh,NotuUTn

ope n» HaoHarut a». Ne F

l} ow«Au.»tow»s■ OptnloO.-tfllh ...HwUT11,,□ OptntoO.tAdlllldHuri.Nol

li_~ OptnlotuUTnp,NoHlltorl"llh

o n»Gu Hunton»
~ Opt111ota,a.-.,

owninihpputs ex towauny e,ps iamped i»matt recaitnga

r««wos» :2:2:#7.22.:%:Profectlorc NM>_l!U_HARN_WIIKOl'llin_TM

,~ Flood Zone AE Floodway
;;;;;;;;:;;:;;;;;;;:;;;

@ Potential sites

D Zone AE Floodway

Scale 1:1000 Approximately
t
N



City of Franklin
Potential NFIP Development Sites Zone AE Floodfringe

Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
Prepared July 2022

Projtctlol"I: NAD_l9&3JfARN_Wbca MW\.. TM
ntnpct pub#seetoaunty. opes«dumpt4 tu mutt reg€rga«stay

w»«n««sos zz%:222:.272:°

[2l Mazomanie Beach Closed Are
Natural Area Parcel OYmerahlr
Only
$g worn
i% ........
Sla teTrail
Ice Age Trail
NorthCotlltry"ScenlcTrail
Closed and Restncled Areas
Conse,valk>n Reserve Land
stewardsh1) GrantAcquisition
Coooty Forest
Board ot Cooms&krlers of Pu
ONR °"'1ed (By Property)□ O,C.lo.UA.W.

~ Opttltoi--.-.df'ilh,NDl-t.rilfn

~ O,..i.Hb,M.rUT...,,Ntn.ti

~ OpttllltAI.MIIT~

en OpHbGaMActMktO.,.NI

owe+aoy
ONREnerreot (By PIOpefty)
• OpnilDAIACIWies

0 OptllloHb..tfiltl.NDtvUTn

ts OpHloHba,dtv&IT,..NDFk

rJ OpttltoAI.NoT,.,..

la ()p,1•11110..-tl'Mo.... ttnl'fra,,

le, 0p ieow ht andHurt,Me 1

~ OpttltDttnn.-..MllttllwRIII

oa»Ge+uni o»
~ OpHloHttOl'fj'

Notes
frank tin

ULL FID 4,5,&6 FID 3

@ potential sites

D Zone AE Floodfringe

Scale 1:1000 Approximately
t
N



City of Franklin
Potential NFIP Development Sites Flood Zone A

Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
Prepared July 2022

Flood Zone A Map Features

rzl Mazomanie Beach Closed Are
Natural Area Parcel Ownershir
Only

~ VtlOIIR

tfa 1'-0flR

·- stateTrall
lee Age Trail
North CountryScenic Trail
Closed and Resttlcled Areas
Conservation Rese,ve Land
steva1dship Grant Ac:qulsitiom
County Forest

Board ofConvnissiooersof Pu
ONROwned (ByProperty)
[1 OptnloAUdNJ;u

~ Cp1n lo Kb u.d Flth, No 1-MUTn

} ct» Hu,+uutro, we nun
} cs»A,Ne ta9

Hn Cpu1ki'GntAd...lluOr)f,No

{3 c»mt»auo»
ONR Easement (By P,operty )

OJ;tntoAIAdt-.iiu

l1 Op1n1otour.df"1111.NoHi.rJ/Tn

EJ Optnlol\'clu.dHl.rf/T11p.tloH

J Cp1n!O.U,tk1Tra,Frlt

Cpen te Gi g Fi«h id Hu/frap,

!!J Op1n1,om1fh111ndK.rr.t,t'° 1

JD Cp1ntottr.ur,,p,tltt".J:eo1f1111

Iii Ci,mloO.intHt.nlCn~

ffJ Cp1ntoHilclOr)t

Notes

fantlin
Pot1nlial NFIP V!ol•ians

P10J1Ktlon: t1AD_1983..)-IARN_W11coruln.TM

DiuuER, T lien theeoto nus hboo etarnd hon vareet tuts
ad aue elvaysq age. eiubl«ey ad 'ien Tegg mug ate mtitented tob u:rd fer
opton net are thee ups an auhunt,hecute d it'no.ab abeutkg.alsd
arr.eraho tpus an#errant, e»peed ermpt4, ns maregut.g at@+z.

r««nos» z;7::#272272:
2.00 0 I 00 2.00 J,Qu

e Potential Sites

9J Zone A

tI

Scale 1:1000 Approximately N



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Potential Water Service to Hale Park Highlands Area

MTG. DATE
October 3, 2023

ITEM NO.
Aid. Dist. 6.

BACKGROUND
Staff received a resident request for water supply extensions into the Hale Park Highlands area.
Hale Park Highlands is a collection of subdivision additions in the northwest corner of Franklin
roughly bounded by W. Woods Road to the south, Forest Home to the East, the Hales Corners
municipal boundary to the north and Muskego municipal boundary to the west.

ANALYSIS
The Hale Park Highlands area without water availability is quite large. GIS tools indicate
approximately 280 homes would be benefited. The resident requesting the water surveyed a
significant number of homes in the area and collected 82 signatures. If attempted, this project
would be quite expensive and likely be done in annual phases for budgetary reasons.

Staff recommends that if Common Council would like to develop this project(s), Staff should
survey the un-served homes in the entire area north of the W. Woods Road (include properties on
the south side of the road). Surveys would ask for those that wish to connect, wish to have water
available but not connect, or want no part of a water main project in their neighborhood. Analyzing
the results of the survey will result in recommended locations of projects and priorities.

OPTIONS
A. Survey the approximate 280 un-served properties for desire of water service from W. Woods

Road to the north.
B. Receive and place on file, or
C. Other direction to Staff.



FISCAL NOTE
The water tower on S. Lovers Lane is consuming the accumulated water impact fees. Water
projects in this area would be funded with additional borrowed monies or future projects in annual
budgets. Almost all of the projects would be assessible to benefited property owners. Any
oversizing would be debt for the water impact fee funds.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Direct Staff to survey the un-served properties for desire of water service from W.
Woods Road to the north and return to Common Council when surveys are tabulated and analyzed
for a recommendation.

Engineering Department: GEM



APPROVAL,
Reports and

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Motion to approve the Director ofHealth and Human
Services to accept the 2023 Division of Public Health
Consolidated Contracts to continue funding health
department grants.

MEETING DATE
10/3/2023

ITEM NUMBER

Background: The Wisconsin Department of Health Services Division of Public Health awards
grants in a variety of programs to local health departments. The Franklin Health Department
(FHD) has again been awarded grant funding for the continuation of the following grants
which run from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024:

• Bioterrorism Focus Planning (Public Health Emergency Preparedness) Grant: $39,956
• Bioterrorism Preparedness (Cities Readiness Initiative) Grant: $13,334

These grants assist the FHD in offering programming and services to residents
based upon analysis and assessment of community needs in addition to the services
required of us by State and Municipal codes. Additional, the funding supports the FHD in
planning for natural and public health disasters at the Community level.

Recommendation: The Director of Health and Human Services recommends approval to
accept the Division of Public Health Consolidated Contract Grants for 2023-2024 awarded to
the Franklin Health Department.

Fiscal Note: Without the additional grant funds above, many of the programs and services
Franklin residents have become accustomed to would be reduced or become unavailable due
to a loss of funds.

The contract has been sent to the City of Franklin legal counsel for review in September 2023
with no changes recommended.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion to approve the acceptance of
the 2023-2024 Division of Public Health Consolidated Contract Grants for the Franklin Health
Department.

Health Department: LG



DocuSign Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

Wisconsin Department ofHealth Services
Contract Centralization Legal Review

Agreement Number: 57850-2

Bureau of Procurement and Contracting (BPC) Review:

Iii This agreement uses a BPC template with Office of Legal Counsel (OLC) approved
language.

D This agreement uses intergovernmental cooperative purchasing.

OLC Review Required:

D This agreement does not use a BPC template with Office of Legal Counsel (OLC) approved
language or uses a BPC template with requested language changes.

Description:
NIA

Office of Legal Counsel (OLC) Review and Approval:

Ga This agreement has been reviewed for form and approved by the Wisconsin Department.of
Health Services Office of Legal Counsel.

Date Signed

9/15/2023
·rev;gt,Name: o y agner

Title: Office of Legal Counsel

GDocuSigned by

Cl,,•

Revision 8/2/2022 (previous versions obsolete)



DocuSgn Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4ET72

GRANT AGREEMENT MODIFICATION
between the

STATE OF WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES
And

FRANKLIN HD
for

2023 DPH LPHD Consolidated Contract

DPH Contract No.: 57850-2
Agreement Amount: $53,290
Agreement Term Period: 10/01/2022 to 09/30/2024
GEARS Pre-Packet No: 24405

OHS Division: Division ofPublic Health
OHS Grant Administrator: Anna Benton
OHS Email: DHSGACMail@dhs.wisconsin.gov

Grantee Grant Administrator: Ms Lauren Gottlieb
Grantee Address. 9229 W LOOMIS RD, FRANKLIN, WI, 53 I 32
Grantee Email: LLube@franklinwi.gov

Modificat10n Description: We are adding funding for the Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Program
(Profiles 155015 and 155190). Please see attached Scope(s) ofWork. Final reports are due 45 days from the end of the
designated contract period for any included profiles.

This is a Modification of an existing Agreement, as specified above. This Modification ofAgreement encompasses both
Amendments and Addendums to an existing Grant Agreement. This Modification is entered into by and between the State
of Wisconsin Department of Health Services (OHS) and the Grantee listed above. With the exception of the terms being
modified by this Grant Agreement Modification, ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE EXISTING
AGREEMENT, INCLUDING FUNDING, REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. This Modification, including any
and all attachments herein and the existing agreement, collectively, are the complete agreement ofthe parties and supersede
any prior agreements or representations. OHS and the Grantee acknowledge that they have read the Modification and
understand and agree to be bound by the terms and conditions of the existing agreement as modified by this action. This
Modification becomes null and void if the time between the earlier dated signature and the later dated signature exceeds
sixty (60) days, unless waived by OHS.

State ofWisconsin
Department ofHealth Services

Authonzed Representative

Name:

Grantee
Entity Name:

Authorized Representative
Lauren GottliebName:

Title:

Signature:

Date:

Title:

Signature:

Date:

Director ofHealth and Human Services

Page I of 4
Template Revis1on 06/19/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSgn Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE ATTACHMENT

The Wisconsin Department of Health Services and Grantee agree to the below change to the agreement.
The below enumerated agreement revision is hereby incorporated by reference into the agreement and is
enforceable as if restated therein in its entirety.

Section 10 of the Agreement (''CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE") is hereby amended by inserting the
following:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 1557 of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of
2010 (42 U.S.C. § 18116), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42
U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), and regulations implementing these Acts, found at 45 C.F.R. Parts 80, 84, and 91
and 92, the Grantee shall not exclude, deny benefits to, or otherwise discriminate against any person on
the basis of sex, race, color, national origin, disability, or age in admission to, participation in, in aid of, or
in receipt of services and benefits under any of its programs and activities, and in staff and employee
assignments to patients, whether carried out by the Grantee directly or through a Sub-contractor or any
other entity with which the Grantee arranges to carry out its programs and activities.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 11 of the Food and Nutrition Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C. § 2020),
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 (29 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.), the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. $ 12101 et seq.),
and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), and the regulations implementing
these Acts, found at 7 C.F.R. Parts 15, 15a, and 15b, and Part 16, 28 C.F.R. Part 35, and 45 C.F.R. Part 91,
the Grantee shall not discriminate based on race, color, national origin, sex, religious creed, disability, age,
or political beliefs or engage in reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program or
activity conducted or funded by the United States Department of Agriculture.

HIGH-RISK IT REVIEW

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. 16.973(13), Contractor is required to submit, via the contracting agency, to the
Department of Administration for approval any order or amendment that would change the scope of the
contract and have the effect of increasing the contract price. The Department of Administration shall be
authorized to review the original contract and the order or amendment to determine whether the work
proposed in the order or amendment is within the scope of the original contract and whether the work
proposed in the order or amendment is necessary. The Department of Administration may assist the
contracting agency in negotiations regarding any change to the original contract price.

Page 2 of 4
Template Revis1on 06/19/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

GEARS PAYMENT INFORMATION

DHS GEARSSTAFFINTERNAL USE ONLY
GEARS PAYMENT INFORMATION

The mnformat1on below rs used by the DHS Bureau ofFiscal Services, GEARS Unut, to facilitate the processing and recording of payments
made under this Agreement.

Agency#: Agency Name: Agency Type: GEARS GEARS Contract Program Total Contract:
Contract Start End Date

Date

472787 FRANKLIN 460 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 $53,290
HD

Profile Profile Current Profile Change Profile Total
Profile Name Profile Note Funding Controls

ID# Amount Amount Amount

155015 BIOTFOCUS A - $39,956 $39,956 N/A

PLANNING

155190 BIOT PREPARE - $13,334 $13,334 NIA

-CRI

$53,290

Page 3 of 4
Template Revision 06/19/2023 {prevmus templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

GEARS FEDERAL AWARD INFORMATION

OHS Profile Number 155015 155190

FAIN NU90TP922055 NU90TP922055

Federal Award Date 6/13/2023 6/13/2023

Sub-award period of 7/1/2023 7/1/2023Performance Start Date

Sub-award period of 6/30/2024 6/30/2024Performance End Date

Amount of Federal Funds
obligated (committed) by $39,956 $13,334
this action

Total Amount of Federal $39,956 $13,334Funds obligated (committed)

To enhance To enhance Wisconsin'sWisconsin's ability to ability to rapidlyrapidly mobilize,
Federal Award Project surge, and respond to mobilize, surge, and
Description

pubhc health respond to pubhc

emergencies health emergencies

identified by CDC identified by CDC.

Department of Health Department of Healthand Human Services -
Federal Awarding Agency Centers for Disease and Human Services
Name (Department)

Control and Centers for Disease

Prevention Control and Prevention

OHS Awarding Official Debra K Standrdge Debra K StandridgeName

OHS Awarding Official 608-266-9622 608-266-9622Contact Information

Assistance Listing (formerly 93 069 93 069CFDA) Number

Assistance Listing (formerly Public Health Public Health
Emergency EmergencyCFDA)Name
Preparedness Preparedness

Total made available under
each Federal award at the $11,812,034 $11,812,034
time of disbursement

R&D? No No

Indirect Cost Rate 79% 79%

Page 4 of4
Template Revision: 06/19/2023 (previous templates no longer usable)



DocuSign Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A4-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

Wisconsin Cities Readiness Initiative Contract Objectives
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Public Health Emergency

Preparedness Cooperative Agreement
Budget Period 1901-05: July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

CRI BP-1901-05 Contract Objectives and Deliverables

The following deliverables pertain only to the following local health departments:

Milwaukee County Zones
• Wauwatosa Health Department (Zone C)
• West Allis Health Department (Zone C)
• Franklin Health Department (Zone D)
• Greendale Health Department (Zone D)
• Greenfield Health Department (Zone D)
• Hales Corners Health Department (Zone D)
• Cudahy Health Department (Zone E)
• Oak Creek Health Department (Zone E)
• South Milwaukee/St. Francis Health

Department (Zone E)

Objectives

Individual Reporting Jurisdictions
• City of Milwaukee Health Department
• North Shore Health Department
• Kenosha County Division of Health
• Pierce County Public Health Department
• Racine County Public Health Division
• City of Racine Public Health Department
• St. Croix County Health & Human Services
• Washington Ozaukee Public Health

Department
• Waukesha County Department of Health &

Human Services

As Wisconsin falls in the CDC's "Other Local Cities Readiness (CRI) Junsdict1ons" risk category, our focus
will be on maintaining baseline operational readiness for an anthrax event, and full operational
readiness for a pandemic influenza event.

CDC will continue to suspend Cities Readiness Initiative (CRI) exercise requirements and Operational
Readiness Review (ORR) data submissions during Budget Period 5 (BPS). Although CDC will not collect
CRI data, CDC expects CRI programs to continue collaborating and coordinating preparedness and
response activities with their state PHEP programs. Thus includes planning, training, exercising,
conducting drills, and recovery activ1t1es. There is no requirement for CRI and other local jurisdictions
to submit ORR data to CDC in Budget Period 5.

The Wisconsin Department of Health Services (DHS) has established the following objectives and
deliverables for completion by CRI jurisd1ct1ons, in addition to their PHEP objectives and deliverables,
during the budget penod from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024.

These obJect1ves are based on CDC's Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities
and Operational Readiness Review (ORR) Guidance and include references to these guidance documents
where applicable.

CRI staff can send questions regarding the ORR to DHSOperationalReadmnessReview@w gov.

Priority Capabilities

1
AST REV ED 62 23 TO CORPE+ FIAL EXPEN ITIR DEAUNE



DocuS1gn Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

During this budget period, July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024, the Wisconsin Department of Health Services 1s
prioritrzmng the following capabilities:

• Capability 8: Medical Countermeasures Dispensing and Administration
• Capability 9: Medical Materiel Management and Distribution

Deliverables

1. All CRI Jurisd1ct1ons will submit a proposed budget by completing and uploading the PHEP CRI BPS
Budget Template to the Partner Communication and Alerting (PCA) Portal Local Preparedness
Budget Management page. All CRI Jurisdiction will report final expenditures by editing the agency's
original submitted Local and Tribal Preparedness Budget Form on the PCA Portal. To request access
to the PCA Portal, please contact DHSPCAPortal@dhs w1scons111 gov.

a. By June 30, 2023 submit the proposed budget on the PCA Portal.
b. By August 15, 2024, submit final expenditures on the PCA Portal.

2. All local health department staff responsible for CRI obJect1ves and deliverables will subscribe to
receive WI OHS Public Health Emergency Preparedness Planning: Operational Readiness Review 
Crties Readiness Initiative email communications.

3. All CRI JU risd1ctions will assure a main and backup staff have access to CDC Secure Access
Management Services (SAMS) so they can access the PHEP ORR Reporting and Tracking System
(PORTS) when CDC begins onboarding CR! jurisdictions (timeline TBD). Please contact Kay
Mittelstadt-Lock at Kay.M1ttelstadtLock@w1.gov for SAMS access. Because there Is no requirement
for CRI Jurisd1ct1ons to submit ORR data to CDC in BPS, CDC has limited PORTS access to state staff.

4. By December 1, 2023, and again by June 3, 2024, all CRI jurisdictions will submit an action plan to
DHSOperationalReadmnessReview@w1 gov.

a. Action plans may focus on activities designed to address prioritized planning and
operational gaps 1dent1fied across any of the fifteen CDC Public Health Emergency
Preparedness and Response Capabilities (Note: Previous Medical Countermeasures (MCM)
Action Plans only focused on capabilities 8 and 9).

b. CRI jurisdictions may identify planning and operational gaps va various activities, Including
but not limited to areas of improvement 1dent1fied in a Jurisdiction's most recent ORR,
exercises, real incidents, needs assessments, and more

c. CRI Jurisd1ct1ons may use the MCM Action Plan template located on the PCA Portal CRI page
or they may create their own.

5. All CRI jurisdictions will have at least one representative from their zone or jurisdiction participate in
scheduled quarterly conference calls with OHS staff. These conference calls will provide an
opportunity for CRI jurisdictions to address any challenges or barriers to completing action plans.
Office of Preparedness and Emergency Health Care (OPEHC) capability leads will share information
on entering data into PORTS and take questions regarding ORR guidance.

Capability 8: Medical Countermeasures Dispensing and Administration
Capability 9: Medical Materiel Management and Distribution
Corresponding Operational Readiness Review Element(s): CAP8.Sa-o; CAP9.Sb

6. By June 30, 2024, all CRI jurisd1ct1ons will update their dispensing/vaccination clime (DVC) and points
of dispensing (POD) sites in the POD List Management Tool on the PCA Portal.

2
LAST EVISED 6 2 23 T0ORF ET FL XFEN )TIRE LADINE



DocuSign Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

Local and Tribal Public Health Emergency Preparedness Contract Objectives
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Cooperative Agreement

Budget Period 1901-05: July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

LTPHA BP-1901-05 Contract Objectives and Deliverables

The Wisconsin Department of Health Services (OHS) has established the following objectives and
deliverables for completion by local and Tribal public health agencies (LTPHAs) during the budget period
from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 with the goal of moving Wisconsin local and Tribal public health
emergency preparedness efforts forward.

These ob1ect1ves are based on the Pubhc Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabil1t1es,
which CDC released in 2018 and updated in 2019. In addition, these obJectives are written, where
applicable, to align with CDC's latest Operational Readiness Review (ORR) Guidance. Ob1ect1ves list
corresponding ORR elements, where applicable. The Wisconsin state Pubhc Health Emergency
Preparedness (PHEP) Program will submit ORR data in budget period 5 per CDC guidance. There is no
requirement for Cities Readiness Initiative (CRI) local planning jurisdictions or non-CRI local and Tribal
agencies to submit ORR data in budget period 5.

During this budget period, DHS anticipates that LTPHAs will continue to use a "whole community"
approach as defined by FEMA. A "whole community" approach is the idea that preparedness 1s a shared
respons1b11ity that must include the full range of preparedness stakeholders, including not Just
government, but also ind1v1duals and families (including those with access and functional needs),
businesses, community organizations, schools, nonprofits, media outlets, and more.

Planning for a whole community should address health equity issues by considering individuals with
access and functional needs. Per CDC's Access and Functional Needs Toolkit (March 2021), The term
"access and functional needs" refers to ind1v1duals with and without d1sabiht1es, who may need
add1t1onal assistance because of any condition (temporary or permanent) that may hm1t their ability to
act in an emergency. lnd1v1duals with access and functional needs do not require any kind of d1agnos1s or
specific evaluation. Populations with access and functional needs may include but are not limited to:

• Children and youth
• Individuals with chronic diseases or underlying conditions
• Individuals with cognutve impairment
• Individuals with developmental disab1ht1es
• Individuals with hearing impairment
• Individuals experiencing homelessness or housing instability
• Individuals with language barriers and/or limited English proficiency
• Marginalized populations experiencing social, political, or economic exclusions, such as people

living mn poverty, people experiencing racism, or people who are undocumented
• Older population
• lnd1v1duals with limited access to transportation
• lnd1v1duals with limited access to the internet or Wi-F1
• Underserved communities, such as rural or unmsured/underinsured communities
• Individuals wrth visual impairment
• People who are pregnant
• Others

1
AS JP £5/2021 O AK+ THE FOL )WING DOR}CTION St ESSHUL OMLET ON OI T EPORI NG FOR DELIVERABIE

5(N16) vdLL 4 FY REPUTING FR )FL EFL 8



DocuSign Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

Using PHEP Funds for Response

During this budget perod, LTPHAs may use PHEP funding to support response activities If the activities
support progress toward achieving CDC's public health preparedness and response capabilities and
demonstrate related operational readiness. PHEP cooperative agreement funding 1s intended primarily
to support preparedness activ1t1es that help ensure state and local public health departments are
prepared to prevent, detect, respond to, mitigate, and recover from a variety of public health threats.
PHEP funds may, on a limited, case-by-case basis, be used to support response activities to the extent
they are used for their primary purposes: to strengthen public health preparedness and enhance the
capab1ht1es of state, local, and Tribal governments to respond to public health threats. LTPHAs must
receive pnor approval from the Wisconsin PHEP program for any proposed response activities.

Joint PHEP/HPP Activities
ObJect1ves that ahgn with program requirements as set forth by the CDC PHEP program and the
Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) are
indicated as a'(Joint PHEP/HPP Activity)'. The Wisconsin PHEP program recommends that LTPHAs
coordinate with their regional Healthcare Emergency Readiness Coalition (HERC) on these activ1t1es.

Required Reporting

Year-end reporting on all contract deliverables 1s due June 30, 2024. Required reporting will be accessed
via the Partner Communications and Alerting (PCA) Portal once available. Additional information about
year-end reporting will be communicated to local and Tribal preparedness staff throughout the budget
period via email communications and PHEP Questions and Answers (0&A) webmnars. Local and Tribal
preparedness staff should sign up to receive Public Health Emergency Preparedness email
communications 1f they have not already.

Priority Capabilities
During this budget period, July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024, the Wisconsin Department of Health Services Is
prioritizing the following capabilities:

• Capabilrty 6: Information Sharing
• Capability 7: Mass Care

2
A I JP IF I 20 23 TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING CORRECTION SUCCESS JL COMPLFTION OF REPORT NC OR DELIVERABLE

5 (NOT 6)WILL SATISFY REPOR ING FOR DHLI ERAIE 8



DocuSign Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

Contract Objectives

Budget Management

All LTPHAs will submit a proposed budget by completing and uploading the PHEP BPS Budget
Template to the Partner Communication and Alerting (PCA) Portal Local Preparedness Budget
Management page. All LTPHAs will report final expenditures by editing the agency's ongmal
submitted Local and Tribal Preparedness Budget Form on the PCA Portal. To request access to
the PCA Portal, please contact DHSPCAPortal@dhs.wsconsmn.gov.

Deliverable 1: By June 30, 2023, submit the proposed budget on the PCA Portal.

Deliverable 2: By August 15, 2024, submit final expenditures on the PCA Portal.

Capability 1: Community Preparedness (recurring objectives)

Function 1: Determine risks to the health of the jurisdiction.
Corresponding Operational Readiness Review Element(s): CAP1.1a

1. (Joint PHEP/HPP Activity) All LTPHAs will conduct a hazard vulnerability assessment (HVA),
update their current HVA, or part1c1pate in their regional Healthcare Emergency Readiness
Coalition (HERC) HVA process or other collaborative HVA process to provide input and feedback.
LTPHAs must incorporate considerations for populations that may be disproportionately
impacted by incidents or events.

a. LTPHAs should strive to identify and prioritize jurisdictional risks, risk-reduction
strategies, and risk-m1t1gation efforts in coordination with community partners and
stakeholders.

b. To align with HERC HVA processes, LTPHAs should strive to identify resources that are
most likely to be scarce in the event of each of the top 5 hazards.

Note: A hazard vulnerability assessment is sometimes also referred to as a hazard analysis or a
risk assessment.

Deliverable 3: By June 30, 2024, conduct an HVA, update a current HVA, or part1c1pate in your
regional HERC HVA process or other collaborative HVA process and report completion status,
including how considerations for disproportionately impacted populations were incorporated.
LTPHAs that do not participate m their regional HERC HVA process must share the results with
their regional HERC Coordinator.

Function 2: Strengthen community partnerships to support public health preparedness.

Function 3: Coordinate with partners and share information through community social
networks.
Corresponding Operational Readiness Review Element(s): PPS1.a-h, CAP1.3

2. (Jomnt PHEP/HPP Actvtty) All LTPHAs will play an active role in their regional Wisconsin
Healthcare Emergency Readiness Coalition (HERC), including participation mn strategic planning,

3
AS JP0AT 7 20 23 JO MAKE THE SOI OWING CORRFT IOM SL CCFSSFUL COPA ETON OF PEPORTING OR DELIVERABLE

5 (NOT 6)IL SA1FY RF+OR'ING FOR DO'LU FFAL 8



DocuSign Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

relevant trainings, exercises, and other activItIes. Contact your regional HERC Coordmator for
more information.
Deliverable 4: By June 30, 2024, maintain involvement in regional HERC and report in what
capacity your LTPHA was Involved

3 (Jomnt PHEP/HPP Activity) All LTPHAs will submit evidence of working with partners that support
public health preparedness, response, or recovery actIvItIes. Identified partners may support
nsk-mit1gat1on, coordinate delivery of public health messages and services, and improve
emergency operation and preparedness services for their communities. These should include
partners that support populations with access and functional needs
Deliverable 5: By June 30, 2024, work with partners that support public health preparedness,
response, or recovery activities and report 2-3 partners that serve populations with access and
functional needs with whom you engage, including name, type, access and functional needs
population groups represented, and current or planned methods for engagement.

Capability 3: Emergency Operations Coordination (recurring objectives}
Function 1: Conduct preliminary assessment to determine the need for act1vat1on of public
health emergency operations.
Corresponding Operational Readiness Review Element(s): WDTl.a-b, Critical Contact Sheet (CCS)

4 All LTPHA staff assigned to preparedness and/or response roles will complete at minimum the
following National Incident Management System (NIMS) courses within srx months of hire or
assignment: Introduction to Incident Command System (IS-100.c); Incident Command System for
Single Resources and Initial Action Incidents (IS-200.c); National Incident Management System,
An Introduction (IS-700.b); and National Response Framework, An Introduction {IS-800.d).
Deliverable 6: By June 30, 2024, all staff assigned to preparedness and/or response roles will
complete minimum required NIMS courses (IS-100, IS-200, IS-700, IS-800) within six months of
hire or assignment and LTPHAs will report completion status.

5. All LTPHAs will maintain a minimum of three emergency contacts on the PCA Portal and will
update contact information annually. LTPHAs are strongly encouraged to include their health
officer or Tribal health director as one of these contacts.
Deliverable 7: By June 30, 2024, ensure that your LTPHA has at least three staff with profiles on
the PCA Portal and that these staff have reviewed their profile for accuracy, indicated their
"emergency call list ranking", and marked the checkbox next to "I have reviewed my profile".
Any changes to this contact information should be updated at the time of the change. LTPHA
staff can make edits to their existing profile. If an LTPHA staff member profile needs to be
removed, please send a request via email to DHSPCAPortal@dhs.w1sconsin gov.

4
JP AIE)7 2e 23 ON+KE THE FOLLOWING CORRECTION S ESSTHJLCOPIFTION OH FE ORI NG OR DELIVERABLE

5 (VOT 6)WIL SATISFY (PORTING FOR DEL £RABIL 8



DocuSign Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A4-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

Capability 6: Information Sharing (priority capability)
Function 1: Identify stakeholders that should be incorporated into information flow and define
information sharing needs.
Corresponding Operational Readiness Review Element(s): CAP6.la; PPSl.a-h

6. All LTPHAs will develop or maintain a roster of identified stakeholders to engage for b1-
direct1onal information exchange across partners and stakeholders.

a LTPHAs should identify and include partners and stakeholders that serve populations
with access and functional needs, Including but not limited to those defined in CDC's
latest PHEP ORR guidance (see also page 1 of this document).

Deliverable 8: By June 30, 2024, develop or maintain a roster of identified stakeholders to
engage for br-directional information exchange and report 2-3 identified stakeholders.
Successful completion of reporting for Deliverable 5 will satisfy reporting for this deliverable.

7 All LTPHAs will have procedures to review and regularly update a roster of 1dent1fied
stakeholders and information systems to store and retrieve stakeholder contact information in a
timely manner.

a. Examples of procedures to maintain rosters may include but are not limited to
part1cipatIon in local or regional partner meetings and events, bidirectional email and
phone communications, or conducting drills of communication platforms. These
examples are provided for reference; LTPHAs are not expected to change their existing
procedures if they meet the intent of this objective.

b. Examples of information systems used to store contact information may include but are
not limited to Microsoft Excel, RAVE, and ReadyOp. These examples are provided for
reference; LTPHAs are not expected to change their existing information systems 1f they
meet the intent of this objective.

Deliverable 9: By June 30, 2024, report basic description of procedures and information systems
used to maintain roster of identified stakeholders.

Capability 7: Mass Care (priority capability)
Function 1: Determine public health role in mass care operations.
Corresponding Operational Readiness Review Element(s): CAP7.1a-g; CAP7.2; PPSl.a-h

8. All LTPHAs will have procedures to coordinate with ESF #6, #8, and #11 partners, including
emergency management, environmental health, community-based organizations, human
services, and other partners, to 1dent1fy the Jurisdictional public health agency lead or support
role(s) for mass care.
Deliverable 10: By June 30, 2024, complete the mass care roles and respons1b1lit1es table
(provided by the state PHEP program) in coordination with agency and community partners and
submit to state PHEP program.

9. All LTPHAs wIll have at mmnmmum one representative attend or watch recordings of coordination
calls wrth representatives from Voluntary Organizations Active mn Disaster (VOAD) such as Red
Cross, Salvation Army, Team Rubicon, 2-1-1, and faith-based organizations, or other mass care
partners such as human services and emergency management. These calls are anticipated to be
included during scheduled PHEP 0&A webmnars.

5
A » JP AT 7 2 8 23 IO AKE THE HOLLOWING CORRETOM SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF +PORT M )R DELIVERABLE

5 (NOT 6]WI SATISH Y REPORTING FOR DO LEFABL+ 8



DocuSign Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

Deliverable 11: By June 30, 2024, report completion status.

Capability 15: Volunteer Management (recurring objectives)
Function 1: Recruit, coordinate, and tram volunteers.
Corresponding Operational Readiness Review Element(s): CAP15.1a-e

10. All LTPHAs will identify a Jurisdictional Wisconsin Emergency Assistance Volunteer Registry
(WEAVR) administrator and review their contact information annually. Any changes in WEAVR
administrator contact information should be reported at the tame of the change by the Local
Health Officer or Tribal Health Director to DHSWEAVRMal@dhs.wisconsm.gov.
Deliverable 12: By June 30, 2024, maintain jurisd1ct1onal WEAVR administrator contact
information and report name, email, and phone.

Function 2: Notify, organize, assemble, and deploy volunteers.
Corresponding Operational Readiness Review Element(s): CAP15.2

11. AII LTPHA Wisconsin Emergency Assistance Volunteer Registry (WEAVR) administrators will
conduct at least one alerting drill or utilize the system during a real-world event to alert
registered volunteers. Please contact DHSWEAVRMail@dhs wIsconsin gov to set up a WEAVR
onentatIon training or for questions or assistance needs regarding use of the system. WEAVR
resources, including tap sheets, are available on the PCA Portal Volunteer Management page
Deliverable 13: By June 30, 2024, conduct at least one alerting drill (or utilize WEAVR during a
real-world event) to alert registered volunteers and report name and date of drill or event,
number of volunteers contacted, and number of volunteers that responded to the WEAVR
message.

HSEEP Consistent After Action Report/Improvement Plan (recurring objective)
Corresponding Operational Readiness Review Element(s): OPS1.a-1

12. (Joint PHEP/HPP Activity) All LTPHAs wall participate mat least one Homeland Security Exercise
and Evaluation Program (HSEEP) consistent exercise. Use of Incident Command System (ICS) to
manage a real event may be used in lieu of an exercise as long as an HSEEP consistent After
Action Report (AAR)/lmprovement Plan (IP) is completed. Note: This AAR/IP may focus on any
one or multiple of the 15 publtc health emergency preparedness and response capabilit,es.
L TPHAs can participate with their regional HERC m the development of an AAR.

a. All LTPHAs that received state-supplied vaccine to conduct a school-located mass
vaccination exercise during budget period 5 (7/1/23 -6/30/24) must complete an HSEEP
consistent AAR/IP of the exercise using the Immunization Program Functional Exercise
AAR/IP template. This AAR/IP will satisfy deliverable 14.

b. Cities Readiness Initiative (CRI) jurisdictions are strongly encouraged to exercise
processes for dispensing medical countermeasures (MCM) m dispensing vaccination
clinics (DVC) srtes.

For LTPHAs that received state-supplied vaccine to conduct a school-located mass vaccination
exercise during budget period 5 (7/1/23 -6/30/24): Deliverable 14: By April 30, 2024, post

6
A FA E)JO7IO AKE THE OLIOW NC RECTOM SL CCFSF IL OP!ETION OF FEPORI NG FO DELIVERABLE

5 {NOT 6}WILL SA +S+Y REPORTING FOR HER I 8



DocuSign Envelope ID B6F4D8BB-6F21-470A-8982-0D7FC3D4E772

HSEEP consistent AAR/IP to the PCA Portal After Action Reports page. LTPHAs that participated
with their regional HERC in the development of an AAR/IP should ensure that that their agency
Is listed as a participating organization mn the document and that either the regional HERC
Coordinator or a representative from one LTPHA in the region has posted the AAR/IP to the
After Action Reports page.

For LTPHAs submitting otherAARs: Deliverable 14: By June 30, 2024, post HSEEP consistent
AAR/IP to the PCA Portal After Action Reports page. LTPHAs that participated with their regional
HERC in the development of an AAR/IP should ensure that that their agency 1s listed as a
participating organization in the document and that either the regional HERC Coordinator or a
representative from one LTPHA in the region has posted the AAR/IP to the After Action Reports
page.

Self-directed Objective

13. All LTPHAs will identify and complete one preparedness act1v1ty of their choosing that is
reviewed and approved by the Wisconsin state PHEP program. This obJective must:

a) support the building or sustaining of at least one CDC public health emergency
preparedness and response capability.

b) incorporate cons1derat1ons for at least one population with access and functional needs.
c) include a clearly defined performance measure.
d) identify a reasonable associated deliverable to be met by June 30, 2024.

Deliverable 15: By June 30, 2024, all LTPHAs will 1dent1fy and complete a self-directed
deliverable of their choosing that has been reviewed and approved by the state PH EP program.

Example:

Capability 6: Information Sharing

(Name of Health Department/Tribal Health Center) will develop or maintain system(s) or
process(es) for information exchange with community members and/or key partners to improve
information sharing for situational awareness during routine operations and public health
events or incidents.

Deliverable: By June 30, 2023, XX Health Department/Tribal Health Center will incorporate at
mmmmum 2 additional demographic data metrcs mnto exastmng public health data dashboards
based on input from partners that serve populations with access and functional needs.

Additional examples of self-directed deliverables conducted by LTPHAs during PHEP Budget
Pe nod 3 (7/1/22 -6/30/23) are available to reference on the PCA Portal Local and Tribal
Objectives page. Addrtonal mnformation about how LTPHAs submit and receive approval on self
directed deliverables will be made available va emaul communication.

7
AA f AH)I (23 OMKE THE rOLLOWIV ORRECTI N S FSI(I COMPLETION O FEORT MG O DELIVERABLE

5 (N0I 6ILL S SFY RF ORTING H )Rn ILRAIt 8



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id B6F4D8BB6F21470A89820D7FC3D4E772
Subject MP- Franklin HD - 2023 DPH Consolidated Contract- 57850-2
Source Envelope
Document Pages 14
Certificate Pages 5
AutoNav Enabled
Envelopeld Stamping Enabled
Time Zone (UTC-06 00) Central Time (US & Canada)

DocuSign

Status Sent

Envelope Originator
Yvette Smth
1 WestWilson St
Madison, WI 53703
yvettea smith@dhs wisconsmn gov
IP Address 165 189 255 23

Signatures
Initials O

Record Tracking
Status Original

9/14/2023 11 35 20 AM
Security Appliance Status Connected
Storage Appliance Status Connected

Signer Events
Cody Wagner
CodyWWagner@dhs wisconsin gov
Office of Legal Counsel
Wisconsin Department of Health Services
Security Level Email, Account Authentication
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:
Not Offered via DocuSign

Lauren Gottlieb
LLube@frankhnwi gov
Director of Health and Human Services
Security Level Email, Account Authentication
(None)
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:

Accepted 9/18/2023 10 22 01 AM
ID 96cf5823-2eae-42db-bed2-9220f079c303

Anna Benton
anna benton@dhs wsconsin gov
Security Level Email, Account Authentication
(None)
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:

Accepted 9/15/2023 3 26 50 PM
ID 788dafcc-72e2-4958-9291-8a297c4d8dac

Holder YvetteSmith
yvettea smith@dhs wisconsin gov

Pool StateLocal
Pool DHS

Signature

G
DocuSlgnedby ·

Go%, %4

31F480248CEC464.

Signature Adoption Uploaded Signature Image
Using IP Address 107 208 176 202

Location DocuSign

Location DocuSign

Timestamp
Sent 9/14/2023 11 38 26 AM
Viewed 9/15/2023 1 00 55 PM
Signed 9/15/2023 1 05 15 PM

Sent. 9/15/2023 1 05 17 PM
Viewed 9/18/2023 10 22 01 AM

In Person Signer Events

Editor Delivery Events

Agent Delivery Events

Intermediary Delivery Events

Certified Delivery Events

Carbon Copy Events

Signature Timestamp

Status Timestamp

Status Timestamp

Status Timestamp

Status Timestamp

Status Timestamp



Carbon Copy Events
CARS Contracts
DHSCARSContracts@dhs wisconsin gov
Wisconsin Department of Health Services
Security Level Email, Account Authentication
(None)
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:

Not Offered va DocuSgn

DPH Contracts
DHSDPHContracts@dhs wisconsin gov
DPH Contracts Shared Account
Wisconsin Department of Health Services
Security Level Email, Account Authentication
(None)
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:

Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events

Notary Events

Envelope Summary Events
Envelope Sent

Payment Events

Status

COPIED

COPIED

Signature

Signature

Status
Hashed/Encrypted

Status

Timestamp
Sent 9/14/2023 11 38 26 AM

Sent 9/14/2023 11 38 27 AM

Timestamp

Timestamp

Timestamps
9/14/2023 11 38 27 AM

Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure



Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on 12/19/2018 8 24 51 AM
Parties agreed to Lauren Gottlieb, Anna Benton

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE

From time to time, Wisconsin Department of Health Services (we, us or Company) may be
required by law to provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the
terms and conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the
DocuSign system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can
access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and
Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to
'I agree to use electronic records and signatures' before clicking 'CONTINUE' within the
DocuSign system.

Getting paper copies

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available
electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send
to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you
elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time
(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to
send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a
$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the
procedure described below.

Withdrawing your consent

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time
change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures
only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and
disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures
electronically is described below.

Consequences of changing your mind

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the
speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to
you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format,
and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such
paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to
receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents
from us.

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide
electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures,
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made
available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you
inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required
notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given
us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through
the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as
described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the
consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures
electronically from us.

How to contact Wisconsin Department of Health Services:

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically,
to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to
receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows:
To contact us by email send messages to: DHSContractCentral@dhs.wisconsin.gov

To advise Wisconsin Department of Health Services of your new email address

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures
electronically to you, you must send an email message to us
at DHSContractCentral@dhs.wisconsin.gov and in the body of such request you must state: your
previous email address, your new email address. We do not require any other information from
you to change your email address.

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your
account preferences.

To request paper copies from Wisconsin Department of Health Services

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided
by us to you electronically, you must send us an email
to DHSContractCentral@dhs.wisconsin.gov and in the body of such request you must state your
email address, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at
that time, if any.

To withdraw your consent with Wisconsin Department of Health Services

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic
format you may:



i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page,
select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may;

ii. send us an email to DHSContractCentral@dhs.wisconsin.gov and in the body of such request
you must state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need
any other information from you to withdraw consent.. The consequences of your withdrawing
consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process..

Required hardware and software

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The
current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide
signing-system-requirements.

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to
other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have
read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for
your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address
where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further,
if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described
herein, then select the check-box next to 'I agree to use electronic records and signatures' before
clicking 'CONTINUE' within the DocuSign system.

By selecting the check-box next to 'I agree to use electronic records and signatures', you confirm
that:

• You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and
• You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send

this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future
reference and access; and

• Until or unless you notify Wisconsin Department of Health Services as described above,
you consent to receive exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures,
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided
or made available to you by Wisconsin Department of Health Services during the course
of your relationship with Wisconsin Department of Health Services.



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
} COMMON COUNCIL ACTION

REPORTS & Acceptance of the 2022 Annual Comprehensive
RECOMMENDATIONS Financial Report for the City of Franklin

MEETING DATE
October 3, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

c.1.

Background

CliftonlarsonAllen, LLP (CLA) has completed the 2022 Audit and the 2022 Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report (ACFR) for the City of Franklin was prepared. A copy of the 2022 Annual Financial
Report is attached for your review

An audit of the City's accounts 1s required by State Statute. A complimentary report is filed with the
Department of Revenue and various other regulatory and funding agencies.

The Finance Committee reviewed the report at their August 26, 2023 meeting and recommends
Common Council accept the report and place on file.

This council action was tabled at the September 19, 2023 meeting due to a copy of the ACFR not
being provided.

A final bound 2022 ACFR will be distributed to the Common Council at tonight's meeting.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to accept and place on file the 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the City
of Franklin.

Finance Dept - DB



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Franklin, Wisconsin

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

CPAs I CONSULTANTS ] WEALTH ADVISORS

CLAconnect.com



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
TABLE OF CONTENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO
THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

GENERAL FUND -- STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL {ON A
BUDGETARY BASIS)

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS- PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION
LIABILITY (ASSET) -WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS -WISCONSIN
RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) AND RELATED
RATIOS - CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT
INCOME PLAN

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED
BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN

1

5

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

15

16

18

19

20

72

72

73

74



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
TABLE OF CONTENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY {ASSET) AND
RELATED RATICS - OPEB PLAN

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB PLAN

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TIF DISTRICTS - COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

TIF DISTRICTS - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
TRUST FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - EMPLOYEE
BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS

75

76

77

82

84

86

87

88

89



@ CliftonlarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Franklin, Wisconsin

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental actvites, the
business-type actrvtties, each major fund, and the aggregate remamnng fund mnformaton of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
mayor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, as
of December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended
mn accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Basis for Opinions
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted mn the United
States of America (GMS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained m
Government aud,tmg Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States Our
respons1b1ht1es under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Respons1b1lit1es for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report We are required to be independent
of the City and to meet our other ethical respons1b1ht1es, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audrt opinions

Emphasis-of-Matter - Implementation ofNew Standard
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective January 1, 2022, the City
adopted new accounting guidance for leases The guidance requires lessors to
recognize a lease receivable and a corresponding deferred inflow of resources for all
leases with lease terms greater than twelve months Our opinion Is not mod1f1ed with
respect to this matter

CLAglobal com/discla,mer

1



Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsmn

Responsibilities ofManagement for the Financial Statements
Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted mn the United States of Amenca,
and for the design, 1mplementat1on, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management 1s required to evaluate whether there are
cond1t1ons or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our obJect1ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that includes our opinions Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance
but 1s not absolute assurance and therefore Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 1n
accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists The nsk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control Misstatements are
considered materal if there is a substantial likelihood that, Indvdually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Aud1tmg Standards, we

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skeptcism throughout the
audit

• Identify and assess the rsks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks Such procedures include exam1mng, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an op1mon on the effectiveness of City's internal control Accordingly, no
such opinion 1s expressed

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
s1gmficant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements

• Conclude whether, in our Judgment, there are cond1t1ons or events, considered 1n the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time

2



Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsin

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audrt findings, and certamn internal
control related matters that we 1dent1fied during the audit

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
required supplementary information, as presented in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements Such information Is the respons1b1lity of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 1s required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 1t to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inqumes of management about the
methods of preparing the mnformaton and comparing the Information for consistency with
management's responses to our inqumes, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance

Management has omitted the management's d1scuss1on and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements Such mussing Information, although not part of the basic financial
statements, Is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who consider It to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context Our opinion on the basic financial
statements Is not affected by thus mussing information

Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements The supplementary 1nformat1on, as
1dent1fied In the table of contents, Is presented for purposes of addrtonal analysis and Is not a
required part of the basic financial statements Such information Is the respons1bIlity of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
add1t1onal procedures, including comparing and reconc1hng such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other add1t1onal procedures in accordance with
GAAS In our opinion, the supplementary information Is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole

3



Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsin

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July
28, 2023, on our cons1derat1on of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our
test of its compliance with certain prov1s1ons of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters The purpose of that report 1s solely to describe the scope of our
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance That report 1s an integral part of an audit performed 1n
accordance wth Government Auditing Standards mn considering the City's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
July 28, 2023

4



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Actrvrties Total

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 65,941,406 $ 7,470,839 $ 73,412,245
Receivables, net
Accounts receivable 1,565,043 2,623,298 4,188,341
Taxes receivable 13,702,674 13,702,674
Special assessments receivable 145,242 145,242
Leases 1,547,026 1,547,026 3,094,052
Interest 40,038 40,038

Due from other governments 118,268 1,371,802 1,490,070
Prepaid items 9,003 9,003
Inventores 46,704 46,704
Long term advances 71,450 (71,450)
Restricted cash and investments 482,900 482,900
Due from other governments - long term 12,262,757 12,262,757
Restricted pension assets 10,959,949 1,120,618 12,080,567
Capital assets (net of accumulated deprecation)

Land 28,834,631 888,479 29,723,110
Buildings and improvements 16,061,675 3,985,485 20,047,160
Machinery and equipment 9,012,345 1,417,717 10,430,062
Infrastructure 91,905,465 101,844,600 193,750,065

Construction in progress 7,628,440 9,236,617 16,865,057
Total assets 247,589,359 144,180,688 391,770,047

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 19,755,264 922,966 20,678,230
OPES-related 1,640,432 82,106 1,722,538

Total deferred outflow of resources 21,395,696 1,005,072 22,400,768

Continued

See accompanying Notes to Fmnancral Statements
5



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Actrvt1es Total

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4,534,031 2,167,931 6,701,962
Accrued habtltttes 1,009,628 17,701 1,027,329
Due to other governments 133,620 133,620
Accrued interest 411,930 72,524 484,454
Unearned revenue 5,361,186 5,361,186
Special deposits 251,269 251,269
Noncurrent liabilities
Due wrthmn one year 3,470,267 1,594,036 5,064,303
Due in more than one year 50,497,345 16,095,956 66,593,301

Total liabilities 65,669,276 19,948,148 85,617,424

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Subsequent year property taxes 26,138,496 26,138,496
Leases 1,502,128 1,502,128 3,004,256
Pension-related 24,588,235 1,648,067 26,236,302
OPEB-related 1,165,909 57,578 1,223,487

Total deferred inflow of resources 53,394,768 3,207,773 56,602,541

NET POSITION
Net Investment In capital assets 129,710,656 99,269,802 220,138,658
Restricted for
Debt service 382,369 382,369
Utility improvements 2,649,144 2,649,144
Development 11,515,336 11,515,336
TIF Districts 9,400,464 9,400,464
Grants and Donations 250,914 250,914
Op101d Settlement 73,238 73,238
Health services 184,821 184,821
Library services 522,731 522,731
Solid waste 421,841 421,841
Recreational services 79,298 79,298
Tourist commssIon 394,123 394,123
Equipment replacement 482,900 482,900
Intergovernmental agreement 13,634,559 13,634,559
Pension assets 10,959,949 1,120,618 12,080,567

Unrestricted (16,623,873) 7,521,960 (260,113)

Total net position $ 149,921,011 $ 122,029,839 $ 271,950,850

See accompanying Notes to Ftnanctal Statements
6



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Program Revenue Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes mn Net Position

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contribubons Activities Activities Total

Governmental activities
General government $ 3436109 $ 186,255 $ $ $ (3 249 854) $ $ (3 249 854)
Public safety 16 981 245 3 319 068 421 505 308 782 (12 931 890) (12 931 890)
Public works 9 088 568 5 016 655 1 932,801 2 520 038 380 926 380 926
Health and human services 1169 087 297 431 580,490 (291166) (291166)
Culture and recreation 2,344 477 202 123 106 325 293,603 (1 742,426) (1742426)
Conservation and development 3 877 875 4 321 206 443 331 443,331
Interest on long term debt 1 216 078 (1 216078) (1 216 078)
Total governmental activities 38113439 13 342 738 3 041121 3122423 (18 607 157) (18 607 157)

Business-type activities
Water 5,679 691 6 086 336 707 340 1113 985 1 113 985
Sewer 6,339 394 4 395181 125 494 (1818719) (1,818 719)
Total business-type activities 12 019 085 10 481 517 832 834 (704 734) (704 734)
Total primary government $ 50,132 524 $ 23 824 255 $ 3 041121 $ 3 955 257 (18,607 157) (704 734) (19311 891)

General revenue
Property taxes levied for general purposes 21 359649 21359649
Property taxes leved for debt service 1 100 000 1100 000
Property taxes levied for TIF Districts 4,670 733 4 670 733
Other taxes 1325362 1 325 362
Intergovernmental revenue not restrcted to specific programs 1529 410 1 529 410
Investment earnings 926 300 495 308 1 421 608
Miscellaneous revenue 26035 112 038 138 073

Transfers 834 604 (834 604)
Total general revenue and transfers 31 772 093 (227 258) 31 544 835

Change in net position 13164 936 (931 992) 12,232 944

Net position beginning 136 756 075 122 961 831 259 717 906

Net position ending $ 149 921 011 $ 122 029 839 $ 271950850

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
7



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental

General Service Districts Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 16 882 574 $ 1 894 299 $ 16 074 595 $ 27 599 164 $ 62 450 632
Receivables
Accounts receivable 1 188 582 376 137 1 564 719
Taxes receivable 13 702 674 13 702 674
Special assessments recervable 10662 134 580 145 242
Leases 1547026 1 547 026
Interest 40 038 40 038

Due from other governments 60210 58058 118 268
Due from other funds 1 326 957 1 326 957
Prepaid items 5 717 3286 9 003
Inventor1es 46 704 46 704
Advances to other funds 71 450 1500000 1571 450

TOTAL ASSETS $ 34 871 932 $ 1 904 961 $ 16 074 595 $ 29 671 225 $ 82 522 713

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 604 492 $ $ 2 146 697 $ 1779655 $ 4 530 844
Accrued liabilities 569 272 230 356 799 628
Due to other governments 133 620 133 620
Due to other funds 1326 957 1 326 957
Unearned revenue 5 361 186 5 361 186
Special deposits 251 269 251 269
Advance from other funds 1 500 000 1 500 000

Total liabilities 1558653 4 973,654 7371197 13 903 504

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue 10662 134 580 145 242
Leases 1 502 128 1 502 128
Subsequent Year Tax Levy 20441 335 1 100 000 3 223 161 1374000 26 138,496
Total deferred inflows of resources 21 943463 1 110 662 3,223 161 1 508 580 27 785,866

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Nonspendable

Inventones and prepaid items 52 421 3286 55 707
Advances to other funds 71450 71 450

Restricted
Debt servce 794 299 794 299
Utility improvements 2 649144 2 649 144
Development 11515336 11515 336
TIF Districts 9 400 464 9 400 464
Grants and Donations 250 914 250 914
Opioid Settlement 73238 73 238
Health services 184 821 184 821
Library services 522 731 522 731
Solid waste 421 841 421 841
Recreational services 79298 79 298
Tounst commission 394123 394 123

Assigned
Purchases on order 156 101 156 101
Capital projects 4 752 371 4 752 371

Unassigned (deficit) 11 089 844 (1 522 684) (55 655) 9 511505

Total fund balances (deficit) 11369816 794 299 7 877 780 20 791 448 40 833 343

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) $ 34 871 932 $ 1 904 961 $ 16 074 595 $ 29 671 225 $ 82 522 713

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
8



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 40,833,343

Amounts reported for governmental actIvItIes in the statement
of net position are different because

Certamn assets used mn government activities are not financial resources and
are therefore are not reported in the funds
Capital assets, net of depreciation 153,442,556
Restricted pension assets 10,959,949

Some receivables that are not currently available are reported as
deferred inflows of resources in the fund financial statements
but are recognized as revenues when earned in the government-wide
statements

Unavailable revenue 145,242

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB
are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in

fund statements
Deferred outflows - pensions 19,755,264
Deferred outflows - OPEB 1,640,432
Deferred Inflows - pensions (24,588,235)
Deferred inflows - OPEB (1,165,909)

Internal Serice Fund net position 3,277,911

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not
due and payable in the current period, and accordingly, are not reported
as fund llab11it1es Interest on long-term debt Is not accrued in
governmental funds, but rather Is recognized as an expenditure when due
General obligation debt (50,595,000)
OPEB llab11ity (810,655)
Compensated absences (1,929,757)
Unamortized debt premums (632,200)
Accrued Interest (411,930)

Net position of governmental activities $ 149,921,011

See accompanying Notes to Fmanc,a/ Statements
9



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental

General Service Districts Funds Funds
REVENUE
Taxes $20,595,374 $ 1,100,000 $ 5,043,205 $ 1,720,184 $ 28,458,763
Intergovernmental revenue 1,762,854 576,668 2,018,296 4,357,818
Licenses and permts 1,482,305 40,814 1,523,119
FInes, forfertures and penalties 413,096 413,096
Public charges for services 2,636,874 4,246,677 6,883,551
Special assessments 2,118 2,643,029 2,645,147
Intergovernmental charges for services 285,631 285,631
Investment earnings 362,900 7,479 137,496 302,772 810,647
Miscellaneous revenue 157,768 7,648,888 299,702 8,106,358
Total revenue 27,696,802 1,109,597 13,406,257 11,271,474 53,484,130

EXP EN DITU RES
Current
General government 3,201,398 115,121 7,410 3,323,929
Public safety 18,214,238 121,038 18,335,276
Public works 4,200,606 642,402 2,134,669 6,977,677
Health and human services 701,298 516,772 1,218,070
Culture, recreation and education 307,811 1,663,548 1,971,359
Conservation and development 512,606 3,236,416 162,579 3,911,601

Capital outlay 16 3,538,049 6,330,626 9,868,691
Debt service
Principal 970,000 1,855,000 2,825,000
Interest 140,556 1,199,599 1,340,155
Total expenditures 27,137,973 1,110,556 10,586,587 10,936,642 49,771,758

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures 558,829 (959) 2,819,670 334,832 3,712,372

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets 6,750 24,583 31,333
Transfers mn 952,207 288,578 42,000 1,282,785
Transfers out (24,000) (306,578) (330,578)
Total other financing sources and uses 934,957 288,578 (239,995) 983,540

Net change mn fund balances 1,493,786 287,619 2,819,670 94,837 4,695,912

Fund balances (deficit) - beginning 9,876,030 506,680 5,058,110 20,696,611 36,137,431

Fund balances (deficit) - ending $11,369,816 $ 794,299 $ 7,877,780 $ 20,791,448 $ 40,833,343

See accompanying Notes to Fmnancal Statements
10



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental actrvrties m the statement
of activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures
However mn the statement of act1vIt1es, the cost ofthese assets
Is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as deprecation expense or losses when disposed of

Capital outlays
Capital outlay contributed to business-type units
Items capitalized from non-outlay accounts
Depreciation
Net book value of assets disposed

Contributed capital assets are reported as revenues mn the
statement ofactivities

The issuance of long-term debt (e g notes, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal on long-term debt consumes current financial
resources of government funds Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net position

Pnnc1pal paid on long-term debt

Government funds report the effects of premiums,
discounts and refunding losseswhen the debt Is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities Thus amount is the net effect of the differences in the
treatment of these items

Some expenses reported in the statement of act1vItIes do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore, are
not reported as expenditures m the government funds

Compensated absences
Accrued interest payable
Pension activity
OPEB activity

Revenue mn the governmental funds that provides current
financial resources but has been previously reported as
revenue mn the statement of activrt1es

Unavailable revenues

Internal serce fund change In net position

Net change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying Notes to Fmanc1al Statements

11

$ 4,695,912

9,868,691
(117,603)
33,709

(4,293,535)
(8,436)

363,831

2,825,000

107,355

236,176
16,722

2,539,972
243,951

(3,427,087)

80,278

$ 13,164,936



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
GENERAL FUND-STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (ON A BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amount Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUE
Taxes $ 20,558,400 $ 20,558,400 $ 20,595,374 $ 36,974
Intergovernmental revenue 1,758,500 1,758,500 1,762,854 4,354
Licenses and permits 1,202,275 1,202,275 1,482,305 280,030
FInes, forfeitures and penalties 450,000 450,000 413,096 (36,904)
Public charges for services 2,503,750 2,503,760 2,636,874 133,114
Intergovernmental charges for services 261,200 261,200 285,631 24,431
Investment earnings (loss) 196,138 196,138 362,900 166,762
Miscellaneous revenue 219,866 219,866 157,768 (62,098)

Total revenue 27,150,129 27,150,139 27,696,802 546,663

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 5,630,979 5,673,303 3,201,398 2,471,905
Public safety 18,966,374 19,011,582 18,214,238 797,344
Public works 4,270,593 4,351,229 4,200,606 150,623
Health and human services 751,686 751,686 701,298 50,388
Culture and recreation 451,849 457,182 307,811 149,371
Conservation and development 618,248 624,159 512,606 111,553

Capital Outlay 16 (16)
Total expenditures 30,689,729 30,869,141 27,137,973 3,731,168

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures (3,539,600) (3,719,002) 558,829 4,277,831

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets 6,750 6,750
Transfers In 1,063,600 1,063,600 952,207 (111,393)
Transfers out (24,000) (24,000) (24,000)

Net change mn fund balance (2,500,000) (2,679,402) 1,493,786 4,173,188

Fund Balances - beginning 9,876,030 9,876,030 9,876,030

Fund Balances - ending $ 7,376,030 $ 7,196,628 $ 11,369,816 $ 4,173,188

Outstanding encumbrances at December 31, 2022 $ 156 101

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
12



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -

Water Sanitary Internal
utility Sewer Totals Service Funds

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and investments $ 4,280 813 $ 3190 026 $ 7 470 839 $ 3,490 774
Receivables
Accounts receivable 1 418,228 1,205,070 2,623,298 324
Leases receivable 42,714 42,714

Due from other governments 1,371,802 1,371 802
Total current assets 5,741,755 5,766,898 11,508,653 3,491,098

Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and investments 482 900 482,900
Restncted pension asset 554 688 565,930 1 120,618
Leases recelvable 1 504 312 1,504 312
Due from other governments 12,262 757 12 262 757
Capital assets

Land 162,885 725,594 888,479
Buildings and Improvements 3,414,033 3,325,768 6,739,801
Improvements other than buildings 65,478,069 85,417,761 150,895,830
Machinery and equipment 4666,963 1,179,626 5,846,589
Construction mn progress 2,320,826 6,915,791 9,236,617

Less accumulated depreciation (25,213,640) (31,020,778) (56,234,418)
Total capital assets (net of

accumulated depreciation) 50,829,136 66,543,762 117,372,898

Total noncurrent assets 52,888,136 79,855,349 132,743,485

Total assets 58,629,891 85,622,247 144,252,138 3 491,098

DEFFERED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 453,179 469,787 922,966
OP EB-related 41,053 41,053 82,106

Total deferred outflows of resources 494,232 510 840 1 005,072

Continued

See accompanying Notes to Fmanc,a/ Statements
13



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -

Water Sanitary Internal
Utility Sewer Totals Service Funds

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 839,369 $ 1328562 $ 2 167,931 $ 3,187
Accrued liabilities 689 17 012 17 701 210,000
Accrued interest payable 10 829 61,695 72 524
Current portion of accrued compensated
absences 31117 31117 62,234

Current portion of long-term advances 18 200 18,200
Current portion of long-term obligations 60,000 1471,802 1 531,802
Total current liabilities 960,204 2 910,188 3,870 392 213,187

Noncurrent liabilities
Net OPEB liability 18 920 18 920 37 840
Accrued compensated absences 53 535 53535 107 070
Long-term advances 53,250 53 250
General obligation notes payable 774,518 15176,528 15 951,046
Total noncurrent liabilities 900 223 15 248 983 16,149 206

Total liabilities 1,860,427 18 159 171 20 019 598 213 187

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 813 484 834 583 1,648 067
OPEB-related 28 789 28 789 57 578
Leases 1 502,128 1,502 128

Total deferred inflows of resources 2 344,401 863,372 3 207 773

NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets 49 994,618 49 275,184 99 269 802
Restricted for
Sewer equipment replacement 482,900 482,900
Pension asset 554,688 565 930 1 120,618
Intergovernmental agreement 13 634 559 13 634,559

Unrestricted 4 369 989 3,151 971 7 521 960 3,277 911

Total net position $ 54,919 295 $ 67,110 544 $ 122,029,839 $ 3,277 911

Concluded

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
14



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION-PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities 

Water Sanitary Internal
Utty Sewer Totals Service Funds

OPERATING REVENUE
Metered sales

Residential $ 3,127,485 $ 2,504,902 $ 5,632 387 $
Multi-family 782,317 621,109 1 403,426
Commercial 663,076 676,558 1 339,634
lrrigatton 145,548 145,548
Industrial 399,184 408,877 808,061
Public authority 209,425 154,940 364,365
Total metered sales 5,327,035 4,366,386 9 693 421

Group health & dental charges 3 034,856
Unmetered sales 36072 1,590 37,662
Public fire protection service 555 304 555,304
Private fire protection service 131,227 131,227
Forfeited discounts, penalties and other 36,698 27,205 63,903

Total operating revenue 6,086,336 4,395,181 10,481,517 3,034,856

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services 3,893,686 2,713,873 6,607,559 2,992,465
Deprecation and amortization 1,380,217 2 238,673 3,618 890
Administration 376,390 991,727 1,368,117

Total operating expenses 5,650,293 5,944,273 11,594,566 2,992,465

Operating Income (loss) 436 043 (1,549,092) (1,113 049) 42 391

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings (loss) 88 358 406,950 495,308 37 887
Sundry 112,038 112,038
Sale of capital assets
Interest expense (29,398) (395,121) (424,519)

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 170,998 11 829 182,827 37,887
Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers 607,041 (1 537,263) (930,222) 80,278

Capital contributions - Developers 707,340 125 494 832 834
Capital contributions - Governmental Actrvrties 117,603 117,603
Transfers out (949,526) (2 681) (952,207)

Change mn net position 482,458 (1,414,450) (931 992) 80,278

Net posrtion - beginning 54 436,837 68 524,994 122,961 831 3 197 633

Net position - ending $ 54,919,295 $ 67,110 544 $ 122,029,839 $ 3 277,911

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
15



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -

Water Sanitary Internal
utility Sewer Totals Service Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 6,165,171 $ 4,344,657 $ 10,509,828 $ 3,034,532
Payments to suppliers (3,915,515) (3,329,886) (7,245,401) (3,097,323)
Payments to employees (339,236) (418,575) (757,811)
Payments for interfund services used (122,450) (122,450) (244,900)

Net cash flows provided by (used mn)
operating activities 1,787,970 473,746 2,261,716 (62,791)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer out - pad for tax equivalent (949,526) (2,681) (952,207)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on capital debt (60,000) (1,446,416) (1,506,416)
Payments from other governments 1,338,840 1,338,840
Payment of advances from other funds (18,250) (18,250)
Interest on capital debt (28,509) (395,121) (423,630)
Acquisition of caprtal assets (131,297) (1,590,173) (1,721,470)

Net cash provided (used) by caprtal (238,056) (2,092,870) (2,330,926)
and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings 88,358 406,950 495,308 37,887

Net increase (decrease) m cash
and cash equivalents 688,746 (1,214,855) (526,109) (24,904)

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning 3,592,067 4,887,781 8,479,848 3,515,678

Cash and cash equivalents - Ending $ 4,280,813 $ 3,672,926 $ 7,953,739 $ 3,490,774

Cash and Investments - Unrestricted $ 4,280,813 $ 3,190,026 $ 7,470,839 $ 3,490,774
Cash and Investments - Restricted 482,900 482,900

$ 4,280,813 $ 3,672,926 $ 7,953,739 $ 3,490,774

Continued

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
16



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Business-TypeActivities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities 

Water Sanitary Internal
utility Sewer Totals Service Funds

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ 436,043 $ (1,549,092) $ (1,113,049) $ 42,391
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash flows provided by operating activities
Deprecation 1,380,217 2,238,673 3,618,890
Depreciation allocated to other funds 13,231 (13,231)
Nonoperating revenues 112,038 112,038
(Increase) decrease in assets and deferred
outflows of resources
Accounts recervable 11,695 (50,524) (38,829) (324)
Taxes receivable
Lease receivable 38,855 38,855
Pension assets (409,150) (412,357) (821,507)
Deferred outflows - pensions (113,228) (121,414) (234,642)
Deferred outflows - OPEBs (35,048) (35,048) (70,096)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources
Accounts payable 73,563 43,323 116,886 (3,058)
Accrued liabilities 3,759 4,704 8,463 (101,800)
OPEB obligations 54,740 54,740 109,480
Deferred inflows - leases (83,753) (83,753)
Deferred mnflows - pensions 330,850 339,814 670,664
Deferred inflows - OPEBs (25,842) (25,842) (51,684)
Total adjustments 1,351,927 2,022,838 3,374,765 (105,182)
Net cash flows provided by (used in)
operating activities $ 1,787,970 $ 473,746 $ 2,261,716 $ (62,791)

Noncash Capital Activities
Capital assets included m year-end accounts
payable $ - $ 620,248 $ 620,248 $

Cost of Utlity plant installed and/or financed
by external parties or the Crty $ 824,943 $ 125,494 $ 950,437 $

Concluded

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
17



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Employee Tax Collection
Benefit Custodial

Trust Funds Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ 350,354 $ 31,103,341
Investments
Fred Income securities 5,636,278 6,111,356
Domestc equities 10,687,064
International equities 1,507,029
Total Cash & Investments 18,180,725 37,214,697

Accounts receivable 1,399
Taxes receivable 40,159,103

Total assets $ 18,182,124 $ 77,373,800

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 60,000 $ 66,564
Due to other governments 37,148,133

Total liabilities 60,000 37,214,697

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes levied for subsequent year's budget 40,159,103

NET POSITION
Restricted for pensions 10,590,800
Restricted for OPEB 7,531,324

Total net position $ 18,122,124 $

See accompanying Notes to Fmnancal Statements
18



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Employee Tax Collection
Benefit Custodial

Trust Funds Fund
ADDITIONS
Tax collections $ $ 74,171,302
Contnbut1ons
City of Franklin 369,125
Retirees 178,420

Net investment earnings (loss) (3,320,779)
Total additions (2,773,234)

DEDUCTIONS
Tax distributions 74,171,302
Incurred claims 1,084,026
Prescription drug claims 111,623
Claims fees 67,030
Stop loss premums less claims received 103,153

Total deductions 1,365,832

Change in net position (4,139,066)

Net Position Beginning of year 22,261,190

Net Position End of year $ 18,122,124 $

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
19



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The accompanying summary of the City of Franklin's (the City) more significant accounting
policies 1s presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data
In this report These policies, as presented, should be reviewed as an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements The accountng policies of the Crty conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental
unuts A summary of the significant accounting policies follows

A. REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the City of Franklin The reporting entity for the City
consists of the primary government and its component umts Component umts are legally
separate orgamzat1ons for which the primary government are financially accountable or other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statement
to be misleading The primary government Is financially accountable rf (1) it appoints a voting
majority of the organization's governing body and rt is able to impose its will on that
organization, (2) it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and there Is a
potential for the organzaton to provide specific financial benefits to or burdens on the primary
government, (3) the orgamzat1on 1s fiscally dependent on and there Is a potential for the
orgamzatIon to provide specific financial benefits to or burdens on the primary government
Certain legally separate, tax exempt orgamzat1on should be reported as a component unrt if all
of the following criteria are met (1) the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its
component units, or its constituents, (2) the primary government 1s entitled to, or has the abIlIty
to otherwise access, a maJonty of the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization, (3) the economc resources recerved or held by an individual organization that the
specific primary government, or its component umts, 1s entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise
access, are s1gmficant to that primary government

Component unrts are reported using one of two methods discrete presentation or blending
Generally, component umts should be discretely presented in a separate column in the financial
statements A component umt should be reported as part of the primary government using the
blending method 1f 1t meets and one of the following cnteria (1) the primary government and the
component unit have substantively the same governing body and a financial benefit or burden
relat1onsh1p exists, (2) the primary government and the component umt have substantively the
same governing body and management of the primary government has operations respons1b1hty
for the component untt, (3) the component umt serves of benefits, exclusively or almost
exclusively, the primary government rather than its c1t1zens, or (4) the total debt of the
component umt will be paid entirely or almost entirely from resources of the primary
government The City has not identified any component units required to be discretely
presented

20



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Blended Component Unit

The Community Development Authority (Authority) was created by the City in 1992 to serve as
a financing vehicle for certamn Tax Incremental Districts (TID) development within the City That
District was closed 1n 2021 The Authonty is governed by a seven-member board appointed by
the Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council Although It Is legally separate from the City,
the Authority is reported as if rt were part of the primary government because its sole purpose Is
to finance and manage certain TIO development projects for the benefit of the City The
Authority had no financial transactions during 2022, nor does the Authority own any assets or
liable for any debt Therefore, no financial statements are presented in this report The Authority
does not issue separate financial statements

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds
The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type act1vIties Governmental
act1v1tIes generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenue and other non
exchange revenue Business-type actIvItIes are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to
external parties for goods and services provided

The statement of act1v1tIes demonstrates the degree that direct expenses of a given segment or
function are offset by program revenue Direct expenses are those that are clearly 1dentIfiable
with a specific function or segment The City does not allocate all indirect expenses to functions
in the statement of actvrtes Program revenue includes 1) charges to customers or applicants,
who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given
function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment Taxes and other items
not included among program revenue are reported as general revenue Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenue rather than as program revenue

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds with a fund considered to
be a separate accounting entity Each fund Is accounted for by providing a separate set of self
balancing accounts that constitute its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liab1lit1es, deferred
inflows of resources, net pos1t1on/fund equity, revenue and expenditures/expenses Funds are
organized as major funds or nonmayor funds within the governmental and enterprise fund
statements An emphasis Is placed on major funds within the governmental and enterprise
categories

21



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

A fund Is considered mayor if rt is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the following
crrter1a

a Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources, revenue, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10% of the corresponding total for all funds of that category
or type

b The same element of the ind1vIdual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met the
10% test is at least 5% of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise
funds combined

c In addIt1on, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the City believes Is important
to financial statement users may be reported as a mayor fund

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds with the latter being excluded from government-wide financial statements Mayor
mndrvdual government funds and mayor mndrvdual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund - accounts for the City's primary operating act1v1t1es It Is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund

Debt Service Fund - accounts for resource accumulation from taxes, special assessments and
other revenue along with payments made for principal and interest on long-term debt other
than enterprise fund debt

TIF DIstncts Fund - accounts for resource accumulation from tax increments and other revenue
of the TIO along with payments made for capital outlay, other expenditures, principal and
interest on long-term debt obhgat1ons of the TlOs Each TIO 1s a sub fund of the Tl D Fund

Major Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated mn a
manner similar to prvate business - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses, Including deprecraton) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered pnmanly through user charges, or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determmnaton of revenue earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income Is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountab1l1ty or other purposes

22



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1- SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Major Enterprise Funds (continued)

Water Utility Fund - accounts for operations of providing water services to City residents and
bills for those services

Sanitary Sewer Fund - accounts for the operations of providing sanitary sewer services for City
residents and bills for those services

In addition the City reports

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds - account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
major capital projects) that are legally or policy restncted to expenditures for specified
purposes The funds include Library Operating, Library Aux1hary, Sohd Waste Collection, St
Martin's Faur, Donation, Civic Celebrations, Tourism Commission, Opioid Settlement, and
Grant

Capital Projects Funds - account for resources accumulated to be used for the purchase of
equipment, street replacement, acqu1s1tmn of land and the construction of capital
improvement projects The funds include Capital Outlay, Eqwpment Replacement, Capital
Improvement, Street Improvement, UtIhty Improvement and Development

Other Fund Types

Internal Service Fund - accounts for the payment by the City for active employees of group
health and dental charges for services and stop loss insurance charges and the billing of
departments or agencies of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis for the services
received

Custodial Funds - used to account for and report assets controlled by the City that are held for
the benefit of other governmental ent1t1es The City reports one custodial fund for tax
collections

Employee Benefit Trust Funds - used to account for and report resources that are required to
be held 1n trust for the members and benefic1anes of defined benefit plans and other post
employment benefit plans

23



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenue Is recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when the habilrty rs incurred or economic asset used Revenue, expenses, gains, losses, assets,
deferred inflows, hab1ht1es and deferred outflows resulting from exchange and exchange-like
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place Property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the year that they are levied for

Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows or
resources Grants and smmlar ttems are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider are met Special assessments are recorded as revenue
when earned Receivables are recorded as revenue when services are performed

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wde
financial statements Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's Water Utility
and Sanitary Sewer fund and various other functions of the government Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions
concerned

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting Revenue Is recorded when it
Is both measurable and available Available means collectible within the current perod or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay habIht1es of the current penod For this purpose, the City
considers grant revenue to be available 1f they are collected within 150 days of the end of the
current fiscal penod and all other revenue to be available rf they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal penod Expenditures are recorded when the related fund llab1hty Is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-term debt, claims, Judgments, compensated
absences and pension expenditures which are recorded as a fund hab1hty when due and
payable

Property taxes are recorded the year levied as receivable and deferred inflow and are
recognized as revenue the next year when services financed by the levy are provided

Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenue in the perod the City Is entitled to
the resources and the amounts are available Amounts owed to the City are recorded as
receivables Amounts not available or recerved pror to the entitlement penod are recorded as
deferred inflow of resources

24



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
(continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Special assessments levied for benefits to property owners for installation of sanitary sewers,
water mains, roads, and other improvements are recorded as revenue when they become
measurable and available Annual installments due in future years are recorded as receivables
and deferred inflows of resources

Revenue susceptible to accrual includes property taxes, room taxes, public charges for services
and interest Other general revenue such as permits, fines and forfeitures, licenses and
miscellaneous revenue are recognized when received or when measurable and available under
the critena mentioned above

Deferred inflows of resources are reported on the governmental funds balance sheet Deferred
inflows anse from taxes levied in the current year that are for subsequent year's operations For
governmental fund financial statements unearned revenues arise where potential revenue does
not meet both the "measurable" and "available" crrtera for recognrton mn the current period
Unearned revenue arises when resources are received before the City has a legal claim to
them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualrfying expenditures In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met and when the City has a
legal claim to the resources, the liability 1s removed from the balance sheet and revenue IS

recognized

Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items
Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods
In connection with the proprietary fund's principal operations The principal operating revenue of
the Water and Sanitary Sewer funds are charges to customers for sales and services provided
The rates billed in the Water Utility are approved by the Public Service Comm1ss1on Sanitary
sewer charges are billed at rates established by City policy based on the charges received from
the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District and local operation and maintenance expenses
The principal operating revenue of the internal service fund is charges to other funds for group
health coverage

Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administration
and depreciation on capital assets Revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses

25



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
(continued)

All Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted mn the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amount of assets and liabI1it1es and disclosure of contingent
assets and hab11itIes at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue
and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period Actual results could vary from those
estimates

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY

1. Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with
an 1nit1al maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents

The City of Franklin maintains two investment policies The first covers all funds except fiduciary
funds for retiree health purposes The obJect1ve of this policy Is to generate current income,
consistent with safety and reasonable risk as defined under prudent person rules As operating
reserves, the quality, liqu1d1ty and maturity structure of the portfolio are most important The
investment policy

a Requires a minimum rating at time of purchase of Aa3 by either Moody's or Standard &
Poor's

b Lmmrts an issuer to 10% or less and asset classes to 35% or less of the fair value of the
portfolio with the exception of US Government Treasury and Agency securities that
have the full faith guarantee of the U S Government

c Specifies a minimum amount of cash equivalents be maintained, an average life of the
portfolio not exceeding 6 years and no individual issue with a maturity exceeding seven
years at the date of purchase to limit interest rate risk

d Limits investments highly sensitrve to market changes through its duration and
diversification policies to lmmrt interest rate rsk

e Prohibits the investment in foreign owned securities
f L1m1ts denvat1ve investments to those with a final maturity of seven years or less

26



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

1. Cash and Investments (continued)

In addrtion, the City's investment policy restricts allowable investments to investments that
follow state statutes, section 66 0603, which hm1ts investments to

a Time deposrts m any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust company or loan association
authorized to transact business in the state and maturing in three years or less

b The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)
c Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government
d Bonds or securities of any county, crty, drainage distnct, technical college district, village,

town or school district of the State of Wisconsin Also, bonds issued by a local exposrtion
district, a local professional baseball park district, a local professional football stadium
d1stnct, a cultural arts district, or by the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics
Authority and the Wisconsin Aerospace Authority

e Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest
rating category assigned of a nationally recognized rating agency

f Securities of an open-ended management investment company or investment trust
subject to vanous conditions and Investment options

g Repurchase agreements with public depositories, wrth certain conditions

The second investment policy Is for its fiduciary fund for retiree health purposes The policy

a Requires the investment to be in a section 115 trust for retiree health purposes
b Requires compliance with the "prudent person" standard
c Requires asset allocation policy that considers the liability stream of benefits, the

relat1onshIp to current and projected assets, the historical performance of capital
markets and the perception of future economic cond1t1ons

d Primary investment objectives are safety, diversification and return
e Allows investment in various asset classes
f Lmmrts investment In equities to no more than 75% of total assets to be invested
g Lmmtts investment in fixed mncome securities to no less than 25% of total assets to be

invested

27



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

1. Cash and Investments (continued)

The City manages the various risks in its cash and investments as follows

a Custodial credit nsk - investments are held by a trustee or third party custodian
deposits mn excess of FDIC insurance limits are mamntamned
in the State LGIP or secured bank balances in
amounts of at least 75% of the year-end cash balances

b Credit risk - securities purchased need to have an AA or better Investment rating
c Concentration of credit risk - issuer or asset class not to exceed 10% of the market

value of the portfolio with the exception of U S 1ssued securites
d Interest rate risk - managed by limiting the length of maturity of newly purchased

investments and limits the average life of the portfolio to control risk

Investments are stated at fair value, which Is the amount at which an investment could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties Fair values are based on methods
and inputs outlined in Note 3 No investments are reported at amortized cost

Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value are recorded In the operating
statement as increases or decreases in investment income Investment income on commingled
investments of various City Funds 1s allocated based on average investment balances

The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 1s part of the State Investment Fund
(SIF), and Is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board The SIF Is not registered
wIth the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authortty of
Wisconsin Chapter 25 The SIF reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually
Participants mn the LGIP have the rght to withdraw funds mn total on one day's notice At
December 31, 2022, the fair value of the City's share of LGIP assets was substantially equal to
the amount reported in these statements

28



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

2. Receivables

Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the pnor January 1 In
addition to property taxes for the mumc1pahty, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state
government, county government, three local school districts, technical college district and
metropolitan sewerage district Taxes for all other governmental units billed in the current year
for the succeeding year are reflected as receivables and due to other taxing units on the
accompanying fiduciary funds statement of fiduciary net posrton as the Crty's custodial funds
The Solid Waste fee Is billed and collected along with property taxes

Property tax calendar - 2022 tax roll

Lien date and levy date
Tax bills mailed
Payment 1n full, or
First Installment due
Second installment due
Third installment due
Personal property taxes in full
Final tax settlement with County
Tax deed by County - 2022
Delinquent real estate taxes

December 2022
December 2022
January 31, 2023
January 31, 2023
March 31, 2023
May 31, 2023
January 31, 2023
August 20, 2023

October 2025

Accounts receivable have been shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts No
provIs1on for uncollect1ble accounts receivable has been made for enterprise funds because of
ther rght by law to place delinquent bills on the tax roll

During the course of operatons, transactions occur between mndrvdual funds that may result min
amounts owed between funds Short-term mterfund loans are reported as "due to and from
other funds" Long term mterfund loans are reported as "advances from and to other funds"

Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated
in the statement of net posItIon Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
actvrtes and the business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as "internal balances"

In the general fund financial statements, advances to other funds are offset equally by
nonspendable fund balance which indicates that they do not constitute expendable available
financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation Advances mn all other
governmental funds are classified in fund balance based on the avaIlab1hty of repayments for
use

29



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

3. Inventories, Supplies and Prepaid Items

Governmental fund inventory items, except fuel inventory, are charged to expenditures when
purchased The fuel inventory Is recorded at cost on a first-in first-out basis using the
consumption method of accounting The cost of such inventores Is recorded as
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased

Proprietary fund materials and supplies are generally used for construction and for operation
and maintenance work They are not for sale Material and supplies on hand at year-end are
mmmaterial

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements The cost of
prepaid Items Is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when
purchased

4. Restricted Assets

Mandatory segregation of assets are presented as restricted assets Such segregation 1s
required by agreements with external parties Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
are so classified The net pension asset has been reported as restricted This asset represents
funds held by the Plan Trust, which can only be used to settle Plan obhgat1ons The excess of
restricted assets over current liabilities rs shown as restricted net posrt1on

5. Pensions and Benefit Obligations

For purposes of measuring the net pension liab1htIes (assets), deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net positions of the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and the City of Franklin Defined
Benefit Retirement Income Plan (DPW) and add1t1ons to/deductions from WRS and DPWs
fiduciary net posttion have been determined on the same basts as they are reported by WRS and
DPW For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contnbut1ons) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms Investments are reported
at fair value

30



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

5. Pensions and Benefit Obligations (continued)

For the purposes of measuring the net other post-employment benefit (OPEB) hab1hty, deferred
outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense,
Informat1on about the fiduciary net posItIon of the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
and add1t1ons to/deductions from the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust's fiduciary
net posIt1on have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the City of Franklin
Post Employment Benefits Trust For this purpose, the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits
Trust recognizes the benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments and
participating interest-eaming investments contracts that have a matunty at the time of purchase of
one year or less, which are reported at cost

6. Capital Assets

Government-Wide Statements

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the government
wide financial statements Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an in1t1al
cost of more than $5,000 for general capital assets and $25,000 for infrastructure assets with
estimated useful lives of two years or more Capital assets are recorded at hIstoncal cost or
estimated h1stoncal cost 1f actual amounts are not available Donated capital assets are
recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation Addrtons to and replacements of capital
assets of business-type activities are recorded at original cost, which includes material, labor,
overhead

The cost of renewals and betterments relating to retirement units Is added to plant accounts
The cost of property replaces, retired, or otherwise disposed of, is deducted from plant accounts
and, generally, together with removal costs less salvage value, Is charged to the applicable
function

Deprec1at1on of all exhaustible capital assets Is recorded as an allocated expense in the
statement of actrvrties, with accumulated depreciation reflected mn the statement of net posrtion
Depreciation ts provided over the assets' estimated useful lves usmng the straight-line method of
deprec1at1on The range of useful lives by asset type follows

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Water and sewer systems
Infrastructure

31

5-50 Years
2-30 Years
20-100 Years
20-90 Years



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES,AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

6. Capital Assets (continued)

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition Caprtal
assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same in the government-wide
statements

7. Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of Resources

A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net pos1tIon/fund balance that
applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that future time A deferred inflow of resources represents an
acquisition of net posrton/fund balance that applies to a future period and therefore will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that future time

In governmental funds, property taxes receivable, special assessments, lease receivables, and
interest revenue not yet due are not recognized as revenue in the current period For the
government-wide and proprietary fund type financial statements, special assessments and
interest revenue are recognized as revenue in the current period This leaves property tax
receivable and leases receivables as a deferred inflow of resources in the statement of net
position

Certamn items that affect the net pension asset(s)/lablrty(es) are amortized over the period
determined to be affected by the change The balance at year-end of these items Is report as
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources section of the statement of net
posrtion

8. Compensated Absences

Under terms of employment, employees may earn compensatory time and are granted sick
leave, severance pay and vacations in varying amounts Only benefits considered to be vested
are disclosed mn these statements All vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation
pay are accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements A hab1hty for these amounts Is reported in governmental funds only 1f they have
matured For example a hab1hty, as a result of employee resIgnatIons or retirements are payable
with expendable available resources

Payments for vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation pay will be made at rates
in effect when the benefits are used Accumulated vested compensatory time, severance pay
and vacation pay liabilities are determined on the basis of current salary rates and include
salary related payments Vacation and compensatory time are used on a first-in, first-out basis
Accordingly all accrued amounts are considered to be due within one year Severance due
within one year ts estimated based on employee age and expected retirement

32



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

9. Long-term Obligations/Conduit Debt

All long-term obhgat1ons to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are
reported as hab1ht1es m the government-wide statements The long-term obhgat1ons consist of
notes and bonds payable and accrued compensated absences

Long-term obhgat1ons for governmental funds are not reported as habIht1es in the fund financial
statements The face value of debt (plus any premium) Is reported as other financing sources
and payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures The proprietary fund
accounting is the same as rt is mn the government-wide statements

For the government-wide statements and proprietary fund statements, bond premiums and
discounts are amortized over the hfe of the issue usmg the interest rate method The balance at
year-end Is shown as an increase or decrease in the hab1hty section of the statement of net
position

The City has approved issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (IDRB) for the benefit
of private business enterprises IDRB's are secured by mortgages or revenue agreements on
associated proJects of the business enterprises The IDRB's do not constitute indebtedness of
the City Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as habilrtes mn the financial statements An
IDRB originally issued with an aggregate principal amount of $3,750,000 Is outstanding with a
balance of $2,450,000 at December 31, 2022

10. Claims and Judgments

Clamms and judgments are recorded as liabilities If all the conditions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements are met Claims and Judgments that would
normally be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded during the
year as expenditures in the government funds If they are not to be hqu1dated with expendable
available financial resources, no liability rs recognized mn governmental fund financial
statements The related expenditure ts recognized when the lability ts liquidated Clamms and
Judgments are recorded in the government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses
when the related hab1htIes are incurred

33



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

11. Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity Is classified as net position and displayed mn three components

a Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
deprec1atIon, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acqu1s1tIon, construction, or improvement of those
assets Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are
attributable to the acqws1tIon, construction, or improvement of those assets or related
debt are also included in this component of net pos1t1on

b Restricted net position - Consists of net posttion with constraints placed on their use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contnbutors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or, 2) law through constitutional provIsIons or enabling
leg1slat1on, and includes restricted assets reduced by hab1ht1es related to those assets
Generally, a hab1hty relates to restricted assets 1f the asset results from a resource flow
that also results in the recognition of a labilrty or if the liability will be liquidated wth the
restricted assets reported

c Unrestricted net pos1t1on - The net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
hab1l1tIes, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determ1nat1on of
net investment in capital assets or the restricted components of net pos1t1on

The net position section includes and adjustment for capital assets owned by the business-type
activities column, but financed by the debt of the governmental activities column The amount Is
a reduction of "net investment in capital assets", and an increase in "unrestricted" net posItIon,
shown only in the total column A reconc1hat1on of this adjustment Is as follows at year-end

Governmental Business-type
Actvt1es Actrvtes Adjustment Total

Net investment 1n capital assets $ 129,710,656 $ 99,269,802 $ {8,841,800) $ 220,138,658
Unrestricted (18,126,001) 7,521,960 8,841,800 (1,762,241)
Total Net Position $111,584,655 $ 106,791,762 $ $218,376,417

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, It Is the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed

34



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

11. Equity Classifications (continued)

Fund Statements

Fund balance of governmental funds 1s reported in various categories based on the nature of
any l1m1tat1ons requiring the use of resources for specific purposes The government itself can
establish lmmrtaton on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance)

The committed fund balance class1ficat1on includes amounts that can be used only for the
specrfic purposes determined by a formal action of the government's highest decision-making
authority The governing council Is the highest level of decision-making authority for the
government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit
fund balance Once adopted, the llm1tat1on imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a
similar action Is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation The
City does not report any committed fund balance

Amounts in the assigned fund balance class1ficat1on are intended to be used by the government
for specific purposes but do not meet the critena to be classified as committed The governing
council (Common Council) has by resolution authorized the Director of Finance & Treasurer to
assign fund balance (Resolution 2014-7025) The Common Council may also assign fund
balance as tt does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue
and appropnat1ons in the subsequent year's appropriated budget

When committed, assigned and unassigned resources are available for use, rt Is the City's
policy to use committed resources first, then assigned resources and then unassigned
resources, as they are needed

The City has adopted a fund balance policy (Res 2016-7216) for all governmental funds
supported by tax ley as follows the ratio of year-end fund balance to current year expenditures
shall target a range between 20% and 30% The amount of fund balance will be taken into
cons1derat1on when establishing the following year's budget At least 15% of the succeeding
year expenditure budget shall be maintained for working capital Any nonspendable fund
balance of the general fund shall be excluded from the ratio

35



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

12.Leases

As lessee, the City accounts for lease agreements by recognizing a lease hab1hty and an
intangible right-to-use lease asset based on the cntena dictated in Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No 87 - Leases At the commencement of a lease, the
City determines If the agreement Is a financed purchase or a nght-to-use lease based on the
cntena in GASB 87 The City then measures the lease hab1hty at the present value of payments
expected to be made during the lease term Dunng the lease term, the lease hab1hty Is reduced
by the principal portion of lease payments made The lease labilrtes are reported with long-term
obligations on the statement of net position

An intangible right-to-use lease asset 1s 1nit1ally measured as the amount of the lease hab1hty
adJusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus certain
Initial direct costs The intangible rght-to-use lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basIs
over the term of the lease The Intangible nght-to-use lease asset is reported with the City's
capital assets mn a stand-alone Leased Assets (Right to Use) category

The City utilizes estimates and Judgements to determine (1) the discount rate used to discount
expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments

The City uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate when the lessor
provides It If the interest rate ts not provided, the Crty uses its estimated Incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate The lease term includes the non-cancellable period of the lease
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease hab1hty are composed of fixed
payments and purchase option prce that the Crty rs reasonably certamn to exercise The City
accounts for lease and non-lease components separately when possible In cases where the
lease does not provide separate cost information for lease and non-lease components, the City
treats the components as a single lease unit rf it is impractical to estimate cost information The
City monitors changes in circumstances that would require re-measurement of the lease asset
and liability

The City Is a lessor for commumcat1ons site lease agreements and recognizes a lease
receivable and deferred inflows of resources based on the cntena dictated in GASB 87 The City
measures the lease receivable at the present value of payments expected to be received dunng
the lease term Dunng the lease term, the lease receivable Is reduced by the pnnc1pal portion of
lease payments received Deferred inflows related to these leases are 1nit1ally measured as the
amount of the lease receivable adJusted for lease payments received at or before the lease
commencement date Lease revenue Is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease

36



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

12. Leases (continued)

The City has elected to recognize payments received for short-term leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less as revenue as earned The methodology previously described for
discount rate, lease term, lease payments, lease and non-lease components and re
measurement of the lease receivable and deferred lease inflows applies to the City's lessor
arrangements

13. Adoption of New Accounting Standard

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No 87, Leases This standard requires the
recognition of certain lease assets, liab11it1es, and deferred inflows of resources or outflows
of resources recognized based on the payment provIsIons of the contract The standard
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset Under this standard, a lessee
1s required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a
lessor 1s required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources The
City adopted GASB Statement No 87, Leases, effective January 1, 2022 and has applied
the provisions of thus standard to the beginning of the period of adoption

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary information rs derived from the annual operating budget and Is presented usmng the
same basis of accounting for each fund as described in Note 1 C wIth the exception of transfers
from the General Fund to Special Revenue Funds and tax equivalent from the Water Utility
Actual (budgetary basis) expenditures presented reflect actual (GMP) expenditures Actual
(budgetary basis) revenue presents the tax equivalent from the Water Utility as tax revenue
while GMP basis statements present this ,tern as a transfer The budgetary statements also
report the amount of remaining balance of encumbrances that represent a future uses of
financial resources Encumbrances are not included as actual expenditures on the budgetary
statements

A budget has been adopted for the General, Debt Service, TID #3, TID #M4, TID #5, TID #5, TIO
#6, TID #7, TID #8, Library Operating, Library Auxiliary, Solid Waste Collection, CIVIc
Celebrations, St Martin's Fair, Donations, Grant, Tourism Commission, Capital Outlay,
Equipment Replacement, Capital Improvement, Street Improvement, Utility Improvement,
Development, Sanitary Sewer and Water UtIhty funds Budgets have not been formally adopted
for other funds

37



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 2- STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION (continued)

The budget amounts presented include any amendments made during the year The City may
authorize transfers of budget amounts within departments Transfers between departments and
changes to the overall budget must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Common Council
Supplemental appropriations during the year were not significant Appropratons lapse at the
end of the year unless specifically earned over Carryovers to the following year were not
material Budgets are adopted for personnel and non-personnel expenditures at the function
level

8. LIMITATIONS ON THE CITY'S TAX LEVY

Wisconsin law limits the City's future tax levies Generally, the City is limited to its prior tax levy
dollar amount (excluding TIF districts and debt service levy), increased by the greater of the
percentage change in the City's equalized value due to new construction, or 0% Changes mn
debt service from one year to the next are generally exempt from this hm1t w1th1n certain
exceptions The City 1s required to reduce its allowable levy by the estimated amount of fee
revenue increase 1t collects for certain services, 1f those services were funded mn 2013 by the
property tax levy Levies can be increased above the allowable limits If the amount is approved
by referendum The Solid Waste fee was enacted prior to this restriction

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is utilized by all funds Each fund's portion
of this pool Is displayed on the statement of net pos1t1on and balance sheet as cash and
investments of the City In add1t1on, investments are separately held by several of the funds

Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for
time and savings deposits and $250,000 for demand deposits (interest-bearing and nonnterest
bearing) In addrton, if deposits are held mn instrtutons outside of the state in which the
government ts located, insured amounts are further limited to a total of $250,000 for the
combined amount of all deposit accounts

The City's bank accounts are also insured by the State of Wisconsin Deposit Guarantee Fund In
the amount of $400,000 per financial inst1tut1on However, although the fund had reserves
available at December 31, 2022, the future availability of resources to cover the losses cannot
be projected because prov1s1ons of the 1985 Wisconsin Act 35 provided that the amount in the
fund will be used to repay public depositors for losses until the appropriation Is exhausted at
which time the fund 1s abolished This coverage has not been considered in computing custodial
credit rusk

38



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

B. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

The City maintains a collateral arrangement with rts main bank to provide collaterahzat1on in
excess of deposits maintained at the bank The collateral rs maintained in the form of a letter of
credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati in the amount of $30,000,000 The Crty
maintains both Non-FDIC insured and collateralzed balances with an investment manager that
deposits funds wth US Banks The funds are held in accounts "As Agent for its Customers"
The manager utilizes FDIC insurance, third-party insurance and Federal Home Loan Bank
letters of credit as collateral for balances

Cash and investments as shown on the December 31, 2022 statement of net positron are
subject to the following risks

Financial Bank & Investment Associated
Instruments Carrying Value Balances Risks

Local Government Investment Pool $ 3,340,931 $ 3,340,931 Credit, interest rate
Money market accounts 68,115,520 68,115,520 Custodia l credit
Certificate of deposits 6,223,042 6,223,042 Custodial credit
U S Agencies 491,475 491,475 Custodial credit, interest

rate, credit, and
concentration of credit

Equity funds 12,194,093 12,194,093 Custodial credit
Fed income funds 5,636,278 5,636,278 Credit and interest rate
Cash and demand deposits 33,280,117 18,179,321 Custodial credit
Petty cash 9,111 9,111 None
Total cash and investments $ 129,290,567 $ 114,189,771

Reconciliation to the financial statements Is shown below

Per statement of net posrton
Primary Government

Unrestricted cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments

Per statement of fiduciary net poston - fiduciary funds
Custodial fund
Employee Benefit Trusts Funds

$

$

73,412,245
482,900

37,214,697
18,180,725

129,290,567

Custodial Credit Risk For deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a
financial Institution failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to the City As of
December 31, 2022, none of the City's total bank balances were uninsured and uncollateralrzed
and therefore exposed to custodial credit nsk

39



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3- DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

For Investments - Custodial credit risk Is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities mn the possession of an outside party All of the City's investments subject to custodial
credit risk have a tr-party relationship with the investments held mn the Crty's name by a party
independent of the party managing the investment

Credit Risk Credit nsk is the rsk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fulfill its obligation
The Crty's policy requires a mnmmum credit rating of Aa3 at time of purchase The City's fixed
Income Investments subject to credrt risk Include agencies secunties, corporate asset backed
secuntIes, corporate bonds, government repurchase agreements and money market funds and
were rated by Moody's Investor Service

As of December 31, 2022, the ratings as of investments subject to credit nsk were as follows

Aaa Aa A Bbb
$ 2,336,515 $ 207,204 $ 1,426,993 $ 1,811,398

$
Bb
105,983 $

B
156,103 $

<B
63,147

Not Rated
$ 3,361,341

Concentration of Credit Risk Concentration of credit risk is the nsk of loss attributed to a large
Investment position mn a single issuer As of the December 31, 2022 no issuer other than U S
Treasury and Agency securities that have the full faith guarantee of the U S government had a
posIt1on of greater than 5% of the portfolio

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk rs the risk that rsmg interest rates will have an adverse
impact on the fair value of the investments in the portfolio The longer the matuntIes In the
portfolio the greater the nsk of loss us in portfolio value The portfolio policy limits this nsk by
limiting the length of permitted Investments and limits the purchase of investments highly
sensitive to market changes

As of December 31, 2022, the City's investments exposed to interest rate nsk were as follows

Investment Maturity in Years
Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 2-3 4-5 6- 10

US Agencies $ 491,475 $ 491,475 $ $ $
Fed income funds 5,636,278 738,608 785,581 1,009,485 3,102,604
LGIP 3,340,931 3,340,931

$ 9,468,684 $ 4,571,014 $ 785,581 $ 1,009,485 $ 3,102,604

40



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
the generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America The hierarchy Is
based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset Level 1 inputs are
quoted prices in active markets for 1dent1cal assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs, Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs

The valuation method for recurring fair value measurements are as follows

Market approach - pnces or other information from market transactions involving identical or
similar assets

The following table summarizes the City's investments reported at fair value

US Agencies
Equity funds
Fred Income funds

B. RECEIVABLES

Level 1
$

12,194,093
5,636,278

$ 17,830,371

As of December 31, 2022
Level2 Level3 Total

$ 491,475 $ $ 491,475
12,194,093
5,636,278

$ 491,475 $ $ 18,321,846

Receivables consist of accounts, taxes, notes, interest, due from other governments and special
assessments Receivables are reported net of uncollectible amounts The reserve for bad debts,
principally for personal property taxes and ambulance revenue, was $310,847 at December 31,
2022 Other than the special assessment receivables, all other receivables are expected to be
collected within one year

41



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3- DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

B. RECEIVABLES (continued)

Governmental funds report unavailable or unearned revenue in connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate labilrties of the current perod
Property taxes levied for the subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used to liquidate
liabilities of the current penod Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition mn connection
with resources that have been received, but not yet earned At the end of the current fiscal year,
the various components of deferred inflows of resources resulting from unavailable revenue and
unearned revenue were as follows

Tax Levy/
Unavailable Unearned Total

Governmental fund
Subsequent year property truces $ $ 24,525,660 $ 24,525,660
Charges for services on tax roll 1,612,836 1,612,836
Leases receivable 1,502,128 1,502,128
Special assessments not yet due 145,242 145,242

Total deferred inflows of resources
for governmental funds $ 145,242 $ 27,640,624 $ 27,785,866

C. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

In 2011, the Crty entered into an intergovernmental cooperation agreement wth another
government for the construction and financing of the Ryan Creek Interceptor Sewer The terms
of thus agreement include that the other government will reimburse the City for substantially all
of the debt service costs resulting from the City taking on a State Clean Water Fund Loan
Those reimbursements started mn 2015 and wll continue over the life of the loan, ending in
2031 This 1s presented as due from other governments in the statement net pos1t1on Annual
principal and interest payments to maturity received as part of thus agreement are as follows

Year Ending Business-Type Actties
December 31 Principal Interest

2023 $ 1,371,802 $ 318,796
2024 1,405,575 284,607
2025 1,440,181 249,575
2026 1,475,638 213,681
2027 1,511,968 176,904

2028-2031 6,429,395 321,395
Total $ 13,634,559 $ 1,564,958

42



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3- DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued}

D. RESTRICTED ASSETS

In accordance with the City's ordinance enacting a sewer user charge system and regulations of
the Department of Natural Resources, the Sanitary Sewer Fund - an Enterprise Fund,
incorporated an equipment replacement charge as a component of the rate structure to be used
for significant mechanical equipment replacement as required by the Wisconsmn Department of
Natural Resources Revenue generated from this charge 1s accumulated and used for
replacement of certain equipment The balance in this account at December 31, 2022 Is
$482,900

Restricted assets have been reported in connection with the net pension and OPEB asset
balances since these balances must be used to fund employee benefits

E. CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental activities capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 was as
follows

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental ctvtes
Capital assets, not depreciated
Land $ 27 285,649 $ 1,548,982 $ $ 28,834,631
Constructon mn progress 3,112,082 5,202,192 685,834 7,628,440
Total assets, not depreciated 30,397,731 6,751,174 685,834 36,463,071

Capital assets, deprecated
Buildings & Improvements 29,085 101 846,832 23,326 29 908,607
Machinery & equipment 21,672,656 1,779,951 758,158 22,694,449
Infrastructure 131,261,624 1,456,505 373,900 132,344,229
Total assets depreciated 182,019,381 4,083,288 1,155,384 184,947,285

Less Accumulated depreciation for
Buildings & improvements 13 064,610 805,648 23,326 13,846,932
Machinery & equipment 13,207 812 1,224,014 749,722 13,682,104
Infrastructure 38,548,791 2,263,873 373,900 40,438,764
Total accumulated depreciation 64,821,213 4,293,535 1,146,948 67,967,800

Total depreciable assets net of
accumulated depreciation 117,198,168 (210,247) 8,436 116,979,485

Governmental actvtes capital assets
net accumulated deprecraton $147,595,899 $ 6,540,927 $ 694,270 $153,442,556

43



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Deprec1at1on expense was charged to functions as follows

Governmental Actrvt1es
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health & human services
Culture & recreation
Conservation & development
Total governmental activities depreciation

$ 269,885
702,341

2,841,615
1,128

477,918
648

$ 4,293,535

Business-type actvties capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 was as
follows

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type Activates
Capital assets, not deprecated

Land $ 888,479 $ $ $ 888,479
Construction in progress 6,839,731 2,396,886 9,236,617
Total assets, not depreciated 7,728,210 2,396,886 10,125,096

Capital assets, depreciated
Buildings & improvements 6,739,801 6,739,801
Machinery & equipment 5,827,161 62,435 43,007 5,846,589
Infrastructure 150,062,996 832 834 150,895,830
Total assets, depreciated 162,629,958 895,269 43,007 163,482,220

Less Accumulated depreciation for
Buildings & improvements 2,545,840 208,476 2,754,316
Machinery & equipment 4,130 309 341,570 43 007 4,428,872
Infrastructure 45,982,386 3,068,844 49,051,230
Total accumulated deprecIa1:Jon 52,658,535 3,618 890 43,007 56 234,418

Total depreciable assets net of
accumulated depreciation 109,971,423 (2,723,621) 107,247,802

Business-type actvtes caprtal assets,
net accumulated depreciation $117,699,633 $ (326,735) $ $117,372,898

Deprec1atIon expense was charged to functions as follows

Business-type Actrvtres
Water U1:Jhty
Sanitary Sewer Utility

44

$ 1,380,217
2,238,673

$ 3,618,890



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. LEASE DISCLOSURES

$ 5,200,387

$ 170,034
183,396
150,264
152,809
155,482
462,848
375,840
451,008
541,209
649,451
779,342
935,211
193,493

Year Principal Interest
2023 $ 85,427 $ 84,607
2024 102,734 80,662
2025 73,029 77,235
2026 78,789 74,020
2027 84,920 70,562

2028 - 2032 139,849 322,999
2033 - 2037 60,718 315,122
2038 - 2042 148,217 302,791
2043 - 2047 263,238 277,971
2048- 2052 412,619 236,832
2053 - 2057 604,742 174,600
2058 - 2062 849,867 85,344
2063- 2064 189,903 3,590

$ 3,094,052 $ 2,106,335

Lessor Lease Agreements

The City, acting as lessor, leases communication sites under a long-term, non-cancelable lease
agreement The leases expire at vanous dates through September 2064 During the year ended
December 31, 2022, the City recognzed $167,509 and $88,168 mn lease revenue and interest
revenue, respectively, pursuant to these contracts The City has used estimated incremental
borrowing rates of 2 5% - 4 0% mn calculating the lease receivables and deferred inflows of
resources as the lease agreements do not include explicit interest rates

Total future minimum lease payments to be received under lease agreements are as follows

Total

The City has allocated the revenues, receivables, and deferred Inflows of resources evenly
between the General Fund / Governmental Actvrties and the Water Utultty Fund / Business-type
Activities

G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES, AND TRANSFERS

lnterfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the
accounting system and (3) payments between funds are made In all cases amounts are repaid
within one year At December 31, 2022, the TIF Districts fund had a due to the General Fund mn
the amount of $1,326,957, which Is expected to be funded through future tax increments

45



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/ PAYABLES, ADVANCES, AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Advances

The City of Franklin provides short- and long-term advances to Its TIF DIstncts and Water Utility
The amounts advanced are either from proceeds of a borrowing or from fund reserves They are
used to enable the TIF D1stncts to carry out approved project plans The TIF D1stncts interest
rate Is based upon the interest rate incurred by the debt service fund on its borrowings or the
reinvestment rate available to other funds The advances will be repaid as the TIF D1stncts have
resources available

In 2017, the City made an advance payment on the Pubhc Works Defined Benefit Pension Plan
In doing so, advanced $155,700 to the Water UtIhty on a 10-year note to aid the Water Utility
portion of the payment In 2019, the development fund advanced $1 5 million to TIF DIstnct #7
as funding for a 10-year Mortgage to a Developer Add1t1onally, advances are made from the
General fund and Development fund to finance project plan expenditures The balances at
December 31, 2022 were

Receivable Fund
Development Due wthin

Payable Fund General Fund Fund Total One Year
TIF Districts $ $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000 $ 300,000
Water Uturty 71,450 71,450 18,200

$ 71,450 $ 1,500,000 $ 1,571,450 $ 318,200

Transfers

Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenue from the funds that collect them to the fund
that the budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the
funds collecting the receipts to the Debt Service Fund and (3) use unrestricted revenue
collected in the General Fund to finance vanous programs accounted for in other funds mn
accordance with budgetary authorizations

Transfers as presented on the fund financial statements dunng the year ended December 31,
2022 were as follows

Transfer Out

Transfer In
General Fund
Debt Serce Fund
Nonmajor Governmental

Funds

General
Fund

$

24,000

Debt Nonmayor
Servce Governmental
Fund Funds

$ $
288,578

18,000

Enterprise
Funds

$ 952,207

Fund
Totals

$ 952,207
288,578

42,000
$ 24,000 $

46

$ 306,578 $ 952,207 $1,282,785



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/ PAYABLES, ADVANCES, AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Transfers (continued)

A reconc11Iat1on of fund statement transfers to government wide transfers for the year ended
December 31, 2022 Is as follows

Transfers mn, per fund statements
Transfers out, per fund statements
Municipality-financed addition to Utility Plant

Governmental-wide transfers

Governmental Enterprise
Funds Funds

$ 1,282,785 $
(330,578) (952,207)
(117,603) 117,603

$ 834,604 $ (834,604)

H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS

General Obligation Debt

Long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2022 were as follows

Begmrnng Ending Due wthin
Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities
General obligation debt $ 53 420 000 $ $ 2,825 000 $ 50 595 000 $ 2 465 000
Premum 739,555 107 355 632,200

Subtotal 54,159,555 2,932,355 51,227,200 2,465,000

Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 496 555 1,179 584 1194,117 482 022 482 022
Accrued severance pay 1439610 211 220 1228390 303 900
Accrued compensatory time 229,768 346,700 357,123 219,345 219,345

Total compensated absences 2,165,933 1,526,284 1,762,460 1,929,757 1,005,267

Net OPEB obligation 1,324,712 514,057 810,655

Governmental actrtues long term
obligations $ 56,325,488 $ 2,850,996 $ 5,208,872 $ 53,967,612 $ 3,470,267

The governmental activities compensated absences, net pension liabilities, and OPEB l1abilities
primarily accrue to and are pad from the City's general fund

47



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

General Obligation Debt (continued)

Begmrnng Endmg Due wthin
Balance Addibons Deletions Balance One Year

Business-type Activities
General obligation debt $ 3 905 000 $ $ 160 000 $ 3 745 000 $ 160 000
General obligation debt from direct

borrowings 14 973400 1338839 13 634 561 1 371 802
Premium 116 346 7 577 108 769
Discount (6 371) (889) (5,482)
Subtotal 18988,375 1,505 527 17 482,848 1 531,802

Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 47 584 52502 48072 52 014 52 014
Accrued severance pay 88546 5630 94176 7 320
Accrued compensatory bme 25,656 5606 8,148 23,114 2 900
Total compensated absences 161 786 63,738 56,220 169 304 62,234

Net OPEB obligation 66 792 28,952 37 840

Business-type actvtes long-term
oblgattons $ 19,150,161 $ 130,530 $ 1,590,699 $ 17,689,992 $ 1,594,036

Details of general obligation notes and bonds payable as of December 31, 2022 are as follows

Governmental Activities Matunty In terest Ongmal Balance at
Issuance Date of Issue Interest Rate Dates Payable Amount 12/31/2022
General oblgaton notes - 2014A 12/18/2014 2.0-50% 3/1/15 24 3/1 & 9/1 $ 5 320 000 1 $ 655 000
General obhgabon notes 2017B8 12/21/2017 2.5 30% 3/1/19 27 3/1 & 9/1 1630000 1 240 000
General obligaton bonds - 2019A 2/20/2019 3.0 35% 3/1/20- 32 3/1 & 9/1 13 685 000 10 560 000
Genera l obligabon bonds - 20198 2/20/2019 30 40% 3/1/22 - 34 3/1& 9/1 6 365 000 6 205 000
Genera l obligabon bonds 2019C 12/4/2019 175-3 05% 3/1/22 37 3/1 & 9/1 12 360 000 12 160 000
Genera l obligaton notes 2019D 12/4/2019 20-30% 3/1/20 27 3/1 & 9/1 2 285 000 1690000
General obhgabon bonds 2020A 12/10/2020 16 205% 3/1/20 37 3/1 & 9/1 9 545 000 5 9 545 000
General obligaton bonds 2020B 12/10/2020 1 0 20% 3/1/20 34 3/1& 9/1 3 045 000 9 3 045 000
General obligaton notes - 2021A 11/17/2021 20% 3/1/22 30 3/1 & 9/1 2 040 000 10 1 990 000
Genera l obligaton bonds 20218 12/2/2021 2.0 30% 3/1/22 41 3/1 & 9/1 3 505 000 11 3 505 000
Total Governmental Actrvtes $ 50,595,000

Business-type Activities Matunty In terest Original Balance at
Issuance Date of Issue Interest Rate Dates Payable Amount 12/31/2022
Clean Water Loan 1/25/2012 246% 5/1/14 -31 5/1 & 11/1 $ 27 562,754 2 $ 13 634 561
General obligaton bonds 2019A 12/18/2014 20 3125% 3/1/15 34 3/1& 9/1 1290000 840 000
Genera l obligabon bonds 2021B 12/2/2021 2.0 30% 3/1/22 41 3/1& 9/1 3 005 000 11 2 905 000

Total Business-type Actrvtes $ 17 ,379 ,561

"Direct Borrowng

1 Issued 63% for capital TlF purposes and 37% for genera l capital purposes

2 Issued for a sewer extension on West Ryan Road

3 Issued for water building purposes

4 Issued for general capital improvement purposes

5 Refunded 2018A NAN for projects in TID #5

6 Issued to refund S10 million ofthe 2018A NAN's and a developer grant in TID #3

7 Issued tor infrastructure projects in TD #6

8 Issued to refund $4 million of the 2018A NAN capital projects in Ti #5

and #7 and finance a developer mortgage an TD 7

9 Issued for capital projects in TID 46

10 Issued for Capital Improvement Plan and Acquisition ofVehicles and Equipment

11 Issued for sewerage projects and infrastructure projects

48



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

General Obligation Debt (continued)

Annual principal and interest payments to maturity on general obligation notes and bonds
payable are as follows

Business-Type Acbvtes
Year Ending Governmental Actrvties Non-Direct Borrowngs
December31 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2023 $ 2465000 $ 1253260 $ 160 000 $ 89 288
2024 2 970 000 1 177 998 160 000 84488
2025 3 040 000 1094710 170000 79 538
2026 3 445 000 1 005666 180 000 74 288
2027 3 885 000 907 460 185 000 68 813

2028- 2032 21565000 2 827 291 1050000 259 425
2033- 2037 12,085 000 747726 1020000 131 300
2038- 2041 1,140,000 46,900 820,000 33,300

$ 50,595,000 $ 9,061,011 $ 3,745,000 $ 820,440

Business-Type Acbvtes
Year Ending Direct Borrowngs
December 31 Principal Interest

2023 $ 1 371 802 $ 318 796
2024 1405575 284 607
2025 1 440 181 249 575
2026 1475638 213 682
2027 1 511 968 176 904

2028- 2031 6,429,397 321,395
$ 13,634,561 $ 1,564,959

The City's statutory debt limit and margin of indebtedness at December 31, 2022 are as follows

2022 Equalized value
Wisconsin lmrt
Statutory debt limit
Total general oblgaton debt
Margin of indebtedness

49

$5,423,303,100
500%

$ 271,165,155
$ 67,974,561
$ 203,190,594



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Municipal Revenue Obligations

In 2018, the City issued a municipal revenue obhgat1on (MRO) as part of a development
agreement The amount of the obhgat1on was $3,500,000 and Is payable to the developer solely
from tax increments collected from a development m TIO #5 No payment was made mn 2022
The MRO bears interest at 5 5% payable on March 1 annually The balance of the MRO was
$3,500,000 at December 31, 2022

In 2020, the City issued an MRO as part of a development agreement The amount of the
obligation was $14,952,000 and Is payable to the developer solely from tax increments collected
from a development m TIO #7 $459,000 m payments were made in 2022 The MRO bears no
interest The balance of the MRO was $14,493,000 at December 31, 2022 The MRO Is payable
from tax increment collected until 2040

The MROs described in the preceding paragraphs do not constitute a charge upon any funds of
the City In the event that future tax increments are not sufficient to pay off the obligations, the
obligations terminate with no further liability to the City Since the amount of the future payments
Is contingent on the collection of future TIO increments, the obligations are not reported as a
liability min the accompanying financial statements

Clean Water Fund Loan Programs
The City's outstanding notes from direct borrowings related to business type activities of
$13,634,561 contain the following provIsIons in the event of a default 1) Wisconsin Department
of Admm1strat1on can deduct amounts due from any state payments due to the City or add the
amounts due as a special charge to the property taxes apportioned, 2) may appoint a receiver
for the Program's benefit, 3) may declare the principal amount 1mmedIately due and payable, 4)
may enforce any right or obligation under the financing agreement including the right to seek
specific performance or mandamus, and 5) may increase the interest rate set forth mn the
financing agreement to the market interest rate

50



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

I. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities net positon reported on the government-wde statement of net posrt1on
at December 31, 2022 include the following

Governmental Activities
Net investment in capital assets

Land
Constructon mn process
Other capital assets, net of accumulated deprecation
Less Related long-term debt outstanding

Net investment m capital assets

Business-type Actrvtes
Net Investment m capital assets

Land
Construcbon m process
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Less Related long-term debt outstanding

Net investment m capital assets

$ 28,834,631
7,628,440

116,979,485
(23,731,900)

$ 129,710,656

$ 888,479
9,236,617

107,247,802
(18,103,096)

$ 99,269,802

Governmental Fund Balances

Reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2022 include the following

Nonspendable
General fund - advances
General fund - prepaid items and mventones
Nonmaor governmental funds - prepaid items and

Inventor1es
Total nonspendable

51

$

$

71,450
52,421

3,286
127,157



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3- DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

I. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (continued)

Governmental Fund Balances (continued)

Restricted
Debt serce
Utility improvements
Development
TIF Districts
Grants and donations
Oprord Settlement
Health services
Library serces
Solid waste
Recreational servces
Tourism commission

Total restricted

$

$

794,299
2,649,144

11,515,336
9,400,464
250,914
73,238

184,821
522,731
421,841
79,298

394,123
26,286,209

Assigned
General fund - purchase orders

Legal
Municipal buildings
Police department
Fire department
Highway
Economic development
Planning

Capital projects
Capital outlay
Equipment replacement
Capital improvement
Street improvement
Total restricted

Unassigned
General fund
TIF Districts (deficit)
Nonmapor governmental funds (deficit)

Total unassigned

Total fund balance

52

$ 5,000
7,744

85,035
43,008
1,049

11,915
2,350

1,574,137
998,521
963,503

1,216,210
$ 4,908,472

$ 11,089,844
(1,522,684)

(55,655)
$ 9,511,505

$ 40,833,343



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The City reports pension-related balances at December 31, 2022, as summarized below

Net Pension Deferred Deferred Pension
Asset Outflows of Inflows of Expense

(Labty) Resources Resources {Benefit}
Wisconsin Retirement System

(WRS) $ 10,346,427 $ 20,308,109 $ 24,499,976 $ (861,948)
City of Franklin Defined Benefit

Retirement Income Plan 1,734,140 370,121 1,736,326 (441,082)
$ 12,080,567 $ 20,678,230 $ 26,236,302 $ (1,303,030)

Wisconsin Retirement System (Protective Occupation Employees Only)

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
WRS benefits and other plan provIsIons are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin
Statutes Benefit terms may only be modified by the legislature The retirement system Is
administered by the Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF) The system
provides coverage to all eligible State of Wisconsin, local government, and other public
employees All employees, initially employed by a participating WRS employer on or after
July 1, 2011, expected to work at least 1,200 hours a year (880 hours for teachers and school
district educational support employees) and expected to be employed for at least one year from
employee's date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS

ETF issues a standalone Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), which can be found
at http //etf wI gov/about-etf/reports-and-stud1es/financial-reports-and-statements

Additionally, ETF Issued a standalone Wisconsin Retirement System Financial Report, which
can also be found using the link above

Vesting. For employees beginning partIc1pat1on on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer
actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years Is required
for eligibility for a retirement annutty Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after
Apnl 24, 1998, and prior to July 1, 2011, are Immediately vested Participants who initially
became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011, must have five years of creditable service to be
vested

Benefits provided Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupations and
62 for elected officials and executive service retirement plan part1c1pants, 1f hired on or before
12/31/2016) are entitled to a retirement benefit based on a formula factor, their final average
earnings, and creditable service

53



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Final average earnings Is the average of the participant's three highest annual earnings periods
Credrtable service Includes current service and prior service for which a participant received
earnings and made contributions as required Creditable service also includes creditable military
service The retirement benefit will be calculated as a money purchase benefit based on the
employee's contributions plus matching employer's contributions, with interest, if that benefit Is
higher than the formula benefit

Vested participants may retire at or after age 55 (50 for protective occupations) and receive an
actuarially-reduced benefit Participants terminating covered employment pror to eligibility for
an annuity may either receive employee-required contributions plus Interest as a separation
benefit or leave contributions on deposit and defer application until eligible to recerve a
retirement benefit The WRS also provides death and d1sab1hty benefits for employees

Post-Retirement Adjustments The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adJust
annuity payments from the retirement system based on annual investment performance mn
accordance with s 40 27, Wis Stat An increase (or decrease) in annuity payments may result
when Investment gams (losses), together with other actuanal expenence factors, create a
surplus (shortfall) in the reserves, as determined by the system's consulting actuary Annuity
Increases are not based on cost of lvmng or other similar factors For Core annuities, decreases
may be applied only to previously granted increases By law, Core annuities cannot be reduced
to an amount below the original, guaranteed amount (the "floor") set at retirement The Core and
Van able annuity adJustments granted during recent years are as follows

Year Core Fund Adjustment Variable Fund
(%) Adjustment(%)

2012 (7 O) (7 0)
2013 (9 6) 90
2014 47 25 0

2015 29 20
2016 OS (5 O)
2017 20 40

2018 24 17 0

2019 0 0 (10 0)
2020 17 210
2021 5 1 130

54



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Contributions. Required contrbutons are determined by an annual actuaral valuation In
accordance with Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes The employee required contribution Is
one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for General category employees,
1ncludIng Teachers, Executives and Elected Officials Starting on January 1, 2016, the
Executives and Elected Officials category was merged into the General Employee Category
Required contributions for protective employees are the same rate as general employees
Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution
rate The employer may not pay the employee required contnbut1on unless provided for by an
existing collective bargaining agreement

During the City's reporting period, the WRS recognized $1,490,772 contnbutions from the
employer

Contribution rates as of December 31, 2022 are

Employee Category Employee Employer
General (including teachers, executives, and 6 50% 6 50%
elected officials)
Protective wrth Social Security 6 50% 12 00%
Protective without Social Security 6 50% 16 40%

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2022, the City reported a liability (asset) of ($10,346,427), for its proportionate
share of the net pension hab1hty (asset) The net pension hab111ty (asset) was measured as of
December 31, 2021, and the total pension hab1hty used to calculate the net pension llab1lIty
(asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2020 rolled forward to
December 31, 2021 No material changes in assumptions or benefit terms occurred between
the actuarial valuation date and the measurement date The City's proportion of the net pension
hab1llty (asset) was based on the City's share of contnbut1ons to the pension plan relative to the
contributions of all participating employers At December 31, 2021, the City's proportion was
0 12836466%, which was an increase of 0 01121984%, from its proportion measured as of
December 31, 2020

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the City recognized total pension expense (benefit) of
($1,303,030), of which ($861,948) relates to WRS Pension, including duty d1sab1hty payments

55



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

At December 31, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 16,714,131 $ 1,205,269

Changes in assumptions 1,930,289
Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments 23,145,820

Changes in proportion and differences
between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 172,917 148 887

Contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date 1,490,772

Total $ 20,308,109 $ 24,499,976

The $1,490,772 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the City's
contributions subsequent to the measurement date wll be recognized as a reduction (addition)
of the net pension hab1hty (asset) in the year ended December 31, 2023 for the City Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pension will be recognized mn pension expense (benefit) as follows

Year Ended December 31
2023
2024
2025
2026

56

Amortization of
Deferred Outflows
& Deferred Inflows
of Resources (Net)
$ (447,871)

(2,778,726)
(1,246,883)
(1,209,159)



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Actuarial assumptions The Total Pensmn L1ab1lity in the December 31, 2020, actuarial
valuation was determined using the followmng actuanal assumptions, applied to all periods
included In the measurement

Actuarial Valuation Date December 31, 2020
Measurement Date of Net Pension Liability December 31, 2021
(Asset)
Experience Study January 1, 2018 - December 31, 2020

Published November 19, 2021
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method Faur Value
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 68%
Discount Rate 68%
Salary Increases
Inflation 30%
Seniority/Merit 01%-5 6%

Mortality 2020 WRS Experience Mortality Table
Post-retirement Adjustments 17%

* No post retirement ad1ustment ts guaranteed Actual ad1ustments are based on recognized investment return, actuanal
exper,ence, and other factors 17% is the assumed annual adjustment based on the investment return assumption and the post
retirement discount rate

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted mn 2021 that covered a
three-year period from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2020 Based on this experience study,
actuanal assumpt10ns used to measure the total pension liability changed from the pnor year,
including the discount rate, long-term expected rate of return, post-retirement adjustment, price
inflation, mortality and separation rates The total pension liability for December 31, 2021 Is
based upon a roll-forward of the liability calculated from the December 31, 2020 actuarial
valuation

57



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Long-term expected Return on Plan Assets. The long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method mn whtch best-estimate
ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and 1nflat1on) are developed for each mayor asset class These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation The target
allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each mayor asset class are
summarized mn the following table

Asset Allocation Targets and Expected Returns 1

As of December 31, 2021
Long-Term

Long-Term Expected
Expected Nominal Real

Core Fund Asset Class AssetAllocation % Rate of Return % Rate of Return % 2

Global Equities 52 68 42

Fed Income 25 43 1 8
Inflation Sensitive Assets 19 27 02
Real Estate 7 56 30
Private Equrty/Debt 12 97 70

Total Core Fund 3 115 66 40

Variable Fund Asset Class
US Equities 70 63 37

International Equities 30 72 46
Total Varable Fund 100 68 42

1 Asset allocations are managed with in estab lished ranges target percentages may differ from actual monthly allocations
2 New England Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI (Inflation) Forecast 2 5%
3 The investment pohcy used for the Core Fund involves reducing equity exposure by leveraging lower-volatility assets such as fixed

Income securities Thus results in an asset a llocation beyond 100% Currently an asset a lloca tion target of 15% policy leverage Is used
subject to an allowable range of up to 20%

58



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Single Discount rate. A single discount rate of 6 80% was used to measure the total pension
liability, as opposed to a discount rate of 7 0% for the prior year Thus single discount rate Is
based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 6 80% and a municipal
bond rate of 1 84% (Source Fed-Income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that
include only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds as reported in Fidelity Index's "20-year
Municipal GO AA Index" as of December 31, 2021 In describing this index, Fidelity notes that
the Municipal Curves are constructed usmg option-adjusted analytics of a diverse population of
over 10,000 tax-exempt securities) Because of the unique structure of WRS, the 6 80%
expected rate of return implies that a dividend of approximately 1 7% will always be paid For
purposes of the single discount rate, 1t was assumed that the d1v1dend would always be paid
The proJect1on of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined
contribution rates and the member rate Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's
fiduciary net pos1t1on was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
(including expected d1v1dends) of current plan members Therefore, the municipal bond rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension labrlrty

Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to
changes in the discount rate. The following presents the City's proportionate share of the Net
Pension L1ab1llty (Asset) calculated using the discount rate of 6 80%, as well as what the City's
proportionate share of the Net Pension L1ab1lity (Asset) would be 1f 1t were calculated using a
discount rate that 1s one-percentage-point lower (5 80%) or one-percentage-point higher
(7 80%) than the current rate

City's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset)

1 % Decrease to
Discount Rate

(5 80%)

$

Current
Discount Rate

(6 80%)

1 % Increase to
Discount Rate

(7 80%)

7,341,524 $ (10,346,427) $ (23,078,461)

Pension plan fiduciary net position Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net
position Is available mn separately Issued financial statements available at
https //etf w1 gov/about-etf/reports-and-stud1es/financ1al-reports-and-statements

59



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description - The City sponsors the City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income
Plan, a single employer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible public works employees
The assets of this Plan are administered by Pnnc1pal Life Insurance Company An annual
financial report may be obtained by writing to the plan administrator at Principal Financial
Group, P O Box 9693, Des Moines, IA 50306-9396

Vesting - PartIcIpants with five years of credible service are 50% vested in the plan Upon
reaching 10 years of credible service part1c1pants are fully vested in the plan

Benefits provided - The City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan provides
retirement benefits to former bargaining employees of the City that are not covered under
Wisconsin State Pension Plan (Wisconsin Retirement System), or who are regular part-time
employees as defined by CIv1I Service and who have a minimum of 6 months of service
Employees who retire at or after age 60 are entitled to receive an unreduced retirement benefit
The factors influencing the benefit are (1) average compensation at retirement, (2) years of
creditable service, and (3) a formula factor

Average compensation at retirement Is the average of the participant's three highest
consecutive years' earnings out of the ten latest years prior to retirement Creditable service Is
the creditable current and pnor service expressed in years or fractional partial years for which a
part1c1pant receives earnings The formula factor Is a standard percentage based on the plan
provIstons

Employees may retire at age 55, with a minimum of 10 completed years of service and receive
reduced benefits Employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for a
retirement benefit may receive either normal retirement benefits at normal retirement date, or a
lump-sum cash payment of part1c1pant's vested accumulations

The plan also provides death and d1sabIhty benefits for employees

Part1c1patmg employees - Membership in the plan as of date of study consisted of the following
classes of participants

Active employees
Terminated vested participants
Retirees

Total participants

60

21
10
28
59



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Contributions - Contnbut1on requirements are established through action of the City Council and
may be amended only through city ordinance Employees make a non-elective and non
discretionary pension contribution that rs equal to 8 2% of their payroll The City contributes all
remaining amounts necessary to fund the pension plan During the reporting period,
contnbut1ons of $255,792 were made by the City to the plan

Pension Liabilities/Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2022, the City reported a labltty (asset) of ($1,734,140) for its net pension
hab1hty (asset) The net pension hab1hty (asset) was measured as of December 31, 2021, and
the total pension habIhty used to calculate the net pension hab1hty (asset) was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2021 No matenal changes in assumptions or benefit
terms occurred between the actuanal valuation date and the measurement date

Current year changes in the net pension hab1hty (asset) were as follows

Increase (Decrease) Net
Total Pension In Plan Fiduciary Pension

Liability Net Positon Llab1hty (Asset)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

$ 12,011,182 $ 12 093,009 $ (81,827)

146,433
712,116
(836,058)

(255,792)
(1,434,668)

15 656

$ (1,734,140)

146,433
712,116
(836,058)

255,792
1 434 668

(15,656)
(556,738) (S56738)

11,476,935 $ 13,211,075$

Balance at December 31, 2021

Changes for the year
Servce cost
Interest
Difference between expected and actual experience
Assumption changes or inputs
Contributons - employer
Net Im,estment income
Administrative expenses
Benefit payments

Balance at December 31 2022

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total Pension hab1hty 11511%

61



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)

Pension Liabilities/Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

At December 31, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the followmng sources

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 57,771 $ 441,691
Changes In assumptions 120,350
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments 1,294,635

Contnbuttons made subsequent to the measurement
date 192,000

Total $ 370,121 $ 1,736,326

The $192,000 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the City's
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction (increase)
of the net pension hab1hty (asset) in the year ended December 31, 2023 Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension
will be recognized mn pension expense (benefit) as follows

Year Ended December 31
2023
2024
2025
2026

62

Amortization of
Deferred Outflows
& Deferred Inflows
of Resources (Net)
$ (541,478)

(574,343)
(298,269)
(144,115)



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)

Pension Liabilities/Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Actuarial assumptions - The pension liability mn the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation was
determined use the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement

Actuarial Valuation Date
Measurement Date of Net Pension Asset
Actuarial Cost Method
Asset Valuation Method
Long-term Expected Rate of Return
Discount Rate
Salary Increases - Seniority / Merit
Mortality

December 31, 2021
December 31 , 2021
Entry Age
Market Value
600%
600%
400%
Based on PubG-2010 General base rate mortality table
proJected to future years with historical and assumed
mortality improvement rates using the MP-2021 mortality
Improvement scale

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted mn 2019 usmng historcal
experience The total pension labilrty for December 31, 2022 Is based upon the hab1hty
calculated from the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets - The long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was determined using the weighted average rate based on the target asset
allocation and the Long-Term Capital Market Assumptions These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation The target
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized mn the following table

Long-term Real
Asset Class Rate of Return Target Allocation

US Equity - Large Cap 770% 3867%
US Equity - Md Cap 8 00% 4 54%
US Equity - Small Cap 8 55% 2 25%

Non-US Equity 800% 14 77%
Real Estate (District Property) 535% 6 03%

Core Bond 330% 30 94%
High Yield Bond 5 55% 2 80%

63



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)

Pension Liabilities/Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Discount rate - A discount rate of 6 00% was used to measure the total pension hab11ity This
single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
6 00% and a long-term bond rate of 3 07% The projection of cash flows used to determine this
e discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution
rate and that the City contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate Based on these assumptions,
the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan members Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes mn the discount rate - The following presents
the City's net pension liability (asset) calculated using the discount rate of 6 00%, as well as
what the City's net pension liability (asset) would be 1f It were calculated using a discount rate
that Is one-percentage-point lower (5 00%) or one-percentage-point higher (7 00%) than the
current rate

1% Decrease to
Discount Rate

(5 00%)

Current
Discount Rate

(6 00%)

1% Increase to
DIscount Rate

(7 00%)
City's Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability (Asset) $ (470,723) $ (1,734,140) $ (2,803,163)

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the City recognized pension expense (benefit) of
($441,082) related to the City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan

64



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

B. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Based on City ordinances all eligible City of Franklin non-protective employees (except public
works employees) part1cIpate in the City of Franklin Defined Contribution Plan (the "Plan") The
Plan assets are administered by the Principal Life Insurance Company

Employees after completing sx months of service with the City are eligible to participate The
Plan requires the City to make periodic contributions to each participant's account equal to 10%
of such partIc1pant's annual compensation Employees are required to make contributions of 5%
of wages A participant's accrued benefit for City contributions Is 100% vested and non
forfertable upon death, normal retirement, early retirement or permanent and total d1sabIlity as
defined in the Plan If employment Is terminated for any other reason, each participant's accrued
benefit vests at various percentages, based on years of service During 2022, total contributions
of $44,324 or 10% of covered payroll were made The City contributed $22,162 and employees
contributed $22,162 The City may make amendments to the Plan

C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

Plan administration and description - The City administers the Crty of Franklin Post
Employment Benefit Trust (City OPEB Plan), a single employer defined benefit OPES plan that
Is used to provide post-employment health care benefits for all eligible full-time employees of
the City Management of the City OPEB Plan Is vested in the City's Common Council Separate
financial statements are not prepared for the City OPES Plan

Benefits provided Crty of Franklin eligible full time employees meeting minimum age and
service requirements may receive group health care benefits at a reduced cost dunng the period
from their normal retirement date until they reach age 65 This results In another post
employment benefit obligation for those groups These groups commonly have higher medical
costs than anticipated mn the blended premium rates That differential is referred to as an mmplicit
rate subsidy

Employees covered by benefit terms - At December 31, 2022, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms

Active employees
Inactive employees entitled to, by not yet receiving benefits
Retrees
Total participants

65

208

25
233



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

Contributions - Contnbuton requirements are established by either Crty ordinance or collective
bargaining and may be amended only by the groups establishing the reqwrements The City's
periodic contribution rs determined and fixed at the time of retirement The retiree pays the
balance of the penodIc blended premium The ehg1b1lity for the benefit follows

Employee Group # City Amount Age Years of Serce
Non-represented 73 75% of Premium at Retirement 62 20
Police 69 75% of Premium at Retirement 53 15
Dispatch 14 75% of 2005 Premium 62 20
FIre 48 75% of Premium at Retirement 53 20
DPW 29 75% of Premium at Retirement 60 15

233

Investment policy The City is authorzed to invest funds of the City OPEB Plan In accordance
with the City's investment policy for the City OPEB Plan

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a
method In which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of OPEB plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each maJor asset class
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by we1ghtIng the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each mayor asset class are summarized in the following table

Long-term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocaton Rate of Return
US Cash 462% 061%
US Core Fixed Income 2927% 227%
US Equity 66 11% 576%

Concentrations - All OPEB plan assets have been invested in bonds and eqwty secuntIes See
Note 3 A for additional information

Rate of return - The annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of investment
expense for 2022 was -14 15% The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adJusted for the changing amounts actually invested

Actuarial assumptions - The City's net OPEB hab1hty (asset) was measured as of December 31,
2022, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability (asset) was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2022

66



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

The total OPEB liability mn the January 1, 2022 actuaral valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified

Salary increases

Investment rate of return

Healthcare cost trend rates

3% average, including
Inflation

6 50%, net of OPEB plan
investment expense,
Including inflation

2022 630%
2023 690%
2024 720%
2025 660%
2026 590%
2027 520%
2028 500%
2029 480%
2030 460%
2031 440%

2032-2064 420%
2065-2067 410%
2068-2069 400%
2070-2071 390%
2072-2073 380%

2074+ 370%

Mortality rates were based on a blend of the Death-in-Service and Retired Lives mortality rates
are based on the 2020 WRS Experience Tables and proJected with mortality improvements
using 100% of the fully generational MP-2021 projection scale from a base year of 2010

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2022 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2018 - December 31, 2020

Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6 5% The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the City's
contributions wall be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates over the
next 40 years This rate 1s a blend of expected earnings on Plan assets and the current yield for
20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds wth an average rating of AA/Aa or
higher

67



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB Liabilities/Asset, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

Balance at December 31 2021

Increase (Decrease) Net
Total OPEB mn Plan Fiduciary OPEB
Labluty Net Position Liability (Asset)

(a) (b) (a) (bo)
$ 7 617 767 $ 9 073 766 $ (1 455 999)

248 638
487 002

786 509
372 652 (372 652)
170 357 (170 357)

(1 266 753) 1266753

(760 097)
7 589 925 789 894

(58 601) 58 601

7,531,324 $ 848,495

89 87%

248 638
487 002

786 509

(760,097)=
8 379 819

$ 8,379,819 _}r=
Plan fiduciary net pos1bon as a percentage of the total OPEB liability

Changes for the year
Serce cost
Interest
Economic/demographic gains or losses
Assumption changes or inputs
Contrbutons employer
Contnbubons employees
Net investment income
Admmistrabve expenses
Benefit payments

Estimated balance at December 31 2022

Difference between estimated and actual Plan fiduciary Net Pos1bon

Actual Balance at December 31 2022

Sens1t1v1ty of the net OPEB hab1hty (asset) to changes m the discount rate and healthcare cost
trend rates - The following presents the net OPEB hab1hty (asset) of the City, as well as what
the City's net OPEB hab1hty (asset) would be 1f 1t were calculated usmg a discount rate that 1s
one-percentage-point lower of one-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate

City's Net OPEB L1ability (Asset)

City's Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

1 % Decrease to Current 1 % Increase to
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

(5 50%) (6 50%) (7 50%)

$ 1,482,374 $ 848,495 $ 265,229

1 % Decrease to Current 1% Increase to
Healthcare Cost Healthcare Cost Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates Trend Rates Trend Rates

$ 592,789 $ 848,495 $ 1,008,685

68



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB Liabilities/Asset, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the City recognized OPEB expense (benefit) of
$251,808

At December 31, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 91,524 $ 299,152

Changes in assumptions 840,561 924,335
Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan Investments 790,453

Total $ 1,722,538 $ 1,223,487

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense (benefit) as follows

Amorbzabon of
Deferred Outflows
& Deferred Inflows

Year_E_nd_e_d_D_e_c_e_m_b_er_3_1___ of Resources (Net)
2023 $ (28,818)
2024 123,420
2025 172,926
2026 318,917
2027 (51,002)

Thereafter (36,392)

The City does not report a payable for any outstanding amount of contributions to the City
OPEB Plan as of December 31, 2022

D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The City at times is party to clamms and legal proceedings Although the outcome of such
matters mn not presently determinable, rt is the opinion of City management and the City attorney
that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings wll have a materal adverse
effect on the City's financal position

69



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the granter agencies Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the
granter agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants Management believes
such d1sallowances, 1f any, would be 1mmatenal

The City receives impact fees for new development projects The fees are to be used to fund
specific projects within a specific penod of time In the event the projects are not completed or
the time period elapses, the City will be required to refund the impact fees to the current owners
of properties that the fees were onginally collected

Funding for the operating budget of the City comes from many sources, including property
taxes, grants and aids from other units of government, user fees, fines and permits and other
miscellaneous revenue The State of Wisconsin provides a vanety of aid and grant programs
that benefit the City Those aid and grant programs are dependent on continued approval and
funding by the Wisconsin governor and legislature, through their budget process Any changes
made by the State to funding or ehg1b1hty of local aid programs could have a significant impact
on future operating results of the City

E. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City Is exposed to vanous nsks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of
assets, errors and om1ss1ons, natural disasters, and workers' compensation claims that the City
carries commercial insurance No significant reductions in insurance coverage occurred for any
risk of loss mn the past year, and settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage In any
of the past three fiscal years

The City also offers a group medical and dental insurance plan to employees for which the City
Is self-Insured Thus actvrty Is accounted for mn the Crty's Self Insurance Internal Service Fund
Group medical and dental costs are charged to City departments and retirees part1cIpat1ng In
the program A third-party administrator handles claims payments The City carries stop loss
insurance for claims in excess of $60,000 per year per ind1v1dual and $75,000 per year per
group llab1httes are reported when 1t 1s probable that claims have occurred and the amount of
the claim can be reasonably estimated Liabilities include an estimated amount for clamms that
have been incurred but not reported ("IBNR")

Changes in the balance of claims payable for the two years ended December 31, 2021 and
2022 are as follows

Balance Current Claims Balance
Fiscal Beginning of and Changes Claims End of
Year Year mn Estmates Payments Year
2022 $ 311,800 $ 2,890,665 $ 2,992,465 $ 210,000
2021 311,800 2,896,355 2,896,355 311,800

70



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

F. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management evaluated subsequent events through July 28, 2023, the date the financial
statements were available to be Issued Events or transactions occurring after December 31,
2022, but prior to July 28, 2023 that provided additional evidence about conditions that existed
at December 31, 2022, have been recognized m the financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2022 Events or transactions that provided evidence about conditions that did not
exist at December 31, 2022, but arose before the financial statements were available to be
issued, have not been recognized m the financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2022

71



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

(ASSET) -WISONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Proportionate
Share of the Net Plan Fiduciary

WRS Proportion Proportionate Pension Luabrlty Net Posrton
Fiscal of the Net Share of the (Asset) as o as a Percentage

Year Ending Pension Net Pension Covered Percentage of of the Total
Date Liablty (Asset) L1ability (Asset) Payroll Covered Payroll Penson Liability

12/31/2014 0 084116700% $ (2,065,567) $ 8,071,472 -25 59% 102 74%
12/31/2015 0 082739220% 1,344,496 8,459,850 15 89% 9820%
12/31/2016 0 084036620% 692,662 8,682,689 798% 9912%
12/31/2017 0 087815360% (2,607,342) 8,950,304 -29 13% 102 93%
12/31/2018 0 091598830% 3,258,799 9,094,718 3583% 9645%
12/31/2019 0 103535240% (3,338,448) 13,827,279 -2414% 102 96%
12/31/2020 0 117144820% (7,313,513) 15,176,375 -48 19% 105 26%
12/31/2021 0 128364660% (10,346,427) 15,132,859 -68 37% 106 02%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS -WISONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Contributions in
City Relation to the Contributions
Fiscal Contractually Contractually Contributon as a Percentage

Year Ending Required Required Deficiency Covered of Covered
Date Contributions Contrbutons (Excess) Payroll Payroll

12/31/2015 $ 689,692 $ 689,692 $ $ 8,459,850 815%
12/31/2016 869,137 869,137 8,682,689 10 01%
12/31/2017 1,074,037 1,074,037 8,950,304 12 00%
12/31/2018 1,119,560 1,119,560 9,094,718 12 31%
12/31/2019 1,380,924 1,380,924 13,827,279 999%
12/31/2020 1,568,169 1,568,169 15,176,375 10 33%
12/31/2021 1,505,635 1,505,635 15,132,859 995%
12/31/2022 1,490,772 1,490,772 15,182,595 982%

See Independent Auditors Report and accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information

72



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) ANO RELATED RATIOS -

CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Measurerrent Penod Ending December 31
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Total Pension Liability
Serice Cost $ 165,130 $ 180 074 $ 154 889 s 182107 $ 161806 $ 157,837 $ 142 398 $ 146 433
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 531 850 603 514 606 747 651,297 675093 662 710 676 516 712 116
Benefit Changes (656 529)
Difference between Expected and Actual
Experience 527 384 (460 357) 425998 (154 963) 149778 (466 918) 378,725 (836 058)

AssumpUon Changes 213402 12 332 709323 (203,418) 1303 694 (615012) 788 964
Benefit Payments (191375) (239 861) (296,465) (370146) (434,808) (469 209) (513 694) (556 738)

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 1246391 95 702 1 600,492 104 877 1199 034 (730 592) 1 472 909 (534 247)
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 7 022 369 8 268 760 8 364 462 9 964,954 10 069 831 11 268 865 10 538,273 12 011 182

Total Pension Liability - Ending s 8 268 760 s 8 364,462 $ 9 964,954 s 10,069,831 $ 11,268,865 $ 10 538 273 s 12,011182 $ 11,476,935

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer Contributions s 293,632 s 339 927 $ 302 518 s 1133 559 $ 251 009 s 256 000 s 581 000 $ 255 792
Penson Plan Net Investment Income 377 842 (41,577) 409,272 1372321 (363 980) 1 724,318 1 448,664 1 434 668
Benefit Payments (191375) (239 861) (296 465) (370146) (434 808) (469 209) (513 694) (556 738)
Pension Plan Administrative Expense (27941) (22 802) (20 307) (31,410) (28 890) (25 806) (19130) (15 656)
Other (4 564)

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 452 158 35687 395 018 2104 324 (581 233) 1485303 1 496 840 1 118 066
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 6 704 912 7157 070 7192 757 7 587775 9692 099 9 110 866 10596169 12 093 009

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending $ 7,157 070 $ 7,192 757 $ 7 587775 s 9,692,099 $ 9,110 866 s 10,596 169 s 12 093,009 $ 13 211,075

Net Pension Liability (Asset) Ending s 1111690 $ 1171705 s 2,377179 $ 377 732 s 2 157 999 s (57 896) s (81 827) $ (1 734 140)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of Total Pension Liability 87% 86% 76% 96% 81% 101% 101% 115%

Covered Payroll s 1 792 628 $ 1 876 995 $ 1 853 074 $ 1792628 s 1776639 $ 1 731 027 s 1 620 333 $ 1 496 670

Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 62% 62% 128% 21% 121% 3% 5% 116%

See Independent Auditors Report and Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information
73



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS -CITY OF FRANKLIN

DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Actuarally Contribution Actual Contribution
Fiscal Year Ending Determined Actual Deficiency Covered as a% of

December 31, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll

2015 $ 339,927 $ 339,927 $ $ 1,876,995 18%
2016 302,518 1,202,518 (900,000) 1,853,074 65%
2017 233,559 233,559 1,792,628 13%
2018 251,009 251,009 1,776,639 14%
2019 255,552 256,000 (448) 1,731,027 15%
2020 256,855 581,000 (324,145) 1,620,333 36%
2021 255,792 255,792 1,496,670 17%
2022 159,303 192,000 (32,697) 1,406,026 14%

See Independent Auditors Report and Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information

74



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY (ASSET)

AND RELATED RATIOS - OPEB PLAN
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Fiscal Year Ending December 31
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Total OPEB L1ability
Service Cost $ 223 719 $ 238 261 $ 210 159 $ 223 819 $ 238 367 $ 248 638
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 489875 509 975 516 342 557 865 563 984 487 002
Difference between Expected and Actual

Experience 132 200 (195 804)
Assumption Changes 208 654 (1 186 931) 786 509
Benefit Payments (418 905) (622 193) (442 196) (469 392) (472 857) (760 097)

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 294 689 126 043 625159 312 292 (1 053 241) 762 052
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 7 312 825 7 607 514 7 733 557 8 358 716 8 671 008 7 617 767

Total OPEB Liability - Ending $ 7 607 514 $ 7 733 557 $ 8 358 716 $ 8 671 008 $ 7 617 767 $ 8 379 819

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer Contributions $ 422 684 $ 444 364 $ 377 172 $ 719 788 $ 374 367 $ 372 652
Employee Contributions 91 969 128 294 215 296 146 308 147 403 170 357
OPEB Plan Net Investment Income 673 624 (294 824) 1 159 084 421 249 1237939 (1 266 753)
Benefit Payments (500 350) (622 193) (442 196) (469 392) (472 857) (760 097)
OPEB Plan Administrative Expense (8 000)
Deferred Inflows 438 201 (23 651) (34 950)

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 687 927 (344 359) 1309356 1256154 1 255 201 (1518 791)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 4 885 836 5 573 763 5 229 404 6 538 760 7 794 914 9 050 115

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending $ 5 573 763 $ 5 229 404 $ 6 538 760 $ 7,794 914 $ 9 050 115 $ 7 531 324

Net OPEB Liability (Asset) Ending $ 2 033 751 $ 2 504 153 $ 1 819 956 $ 876 094 $ (1432348) $ 848 495

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of Total OPEB Liability (Asset) 73% 68% 78% 90% 119% 90%

Covered Payroll $ 13 879 896 $ 14 188 222 $ 14 300 000 $ 14 300 000 $15 411 322 $15 411 322

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 15% 18% 13% 6% 9% 6%

See Independent Auditors Report and Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information
75



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS -OPEB PLAN

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Fiscal Year Ending December 31
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Actuanally Determined Contribution $ 422684 $ 441 859 $ 377 172 $ 394 788 $ 324 614 $ 149 256
Actual Contribution 422 684 444,364 377 172 719,788 374,367 372,652
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ $ (2 505) $ $ (325 000) $ (49 753) $ (223 396)

Covered Payroll $ 13 879 896 $ 14 188 222 $ 14 300 000 $ 14 300 000 $15411 322 $15411 322

Actual Contribution as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 3% 3% 3% 5% 2% 2%

See Independent Auditors Report and Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information
76



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1- PRESENTATION

The City 1s required to present the last ten years of data on each schedule included 1n the
required supplementary information, however, the standards allow the City to present as many
years of 1nformat1on as are available until ten years are presented

NOTE 2 - WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The data presented in the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Llab1hty (Asset)
for the Wisconsin Retirement System was taken from the reports issued by the Wisconsin
Retirement System

Changes of benefit terms There were no changes of benefit terms for any part1c1patmg
employer in WRS

Changes in assumptions. Based on a three-year experience study conducted in 2021 covering
January 1 2019 through December 31, 2020, the ETF Board adopted assumptions changes that
were used to measure the total pension habiluty beginning with the year-ended December 31,
2021, Including the following

1 Lowering the long-term expected rate of return from 7 0% to 6 8%
2 Lowering the discount rate from 7 0% to 6 8%
3 Lowering the price inflation rate from 2 5% to 2 4%
4 Lowering the post-retirement adjustments from 1 9% to 1 7%
5 Mortality assumptions were changed to reflect updated trends by transItIons from the

Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table to the 2020 WRS Experience Mortality Table

Based on the three-year experience study conducted in 2018 covering January 1, 2015 through
December 31, 2017, the ETF Board adopted assumption changes that were used to measure the
total pension liability beginning with the year-ended December 31, 2018, including the following

1 Lowering the long-term expected rate of return from 7 2% to 7 0%
2 Lowering the discount rate from 7 2% to 7 0%
3 Lowering the wage inflation rate from 3 2% to 3 0%
4 Lowering the price inflation rate from 2 7% to 2 5%
5 Lowering the post-retirement adjustments from 21% to 1 9%
6 Mortality assumptions were changed to reflect updated trends by transItIons from the

Wisconsin 2012 Mortality Table to the Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table

77



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 2 -WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)

S19ntf1cantmethods and assumptions used m calcu/atmg w,sconsmRetirement System Actuanally
Deternuned Contributions:

/0luton Date

2021

De<:ember 3 l
2019

2020

December 3I:orn

2019

D..cember 31
2017

2018

December 31
2016

2017
Dec;;mber 31

::.ot s
;.,ctu.:inal CoH ,'.loethod Fro::en Entr; Age Frozen Entry :..g;; Fro::en Entl)' Age Fro::.-n Entry .;g.- Fro:;;n Entry :...g.-

4.m1or1z319n ts;hod

.mruzat1on Fuod

ks:Vlu2t1on Method

ctuansl 45ump11on5

Vet nvestment Pate o Return

V,e,ghted based on .:issum-=<J r.:iteior

F're-r;;t,r.-nwnt

3l3ry Increases

«'iage Infl2ton

Po<t-retirement Benefit Adyustmert"

'.'ortalrt:,

Le ,el Percent of
Payroll-Closed
Anortzat1on

Penod

30 Ye.:ir closed
from dote of

p.:irtIcIp.:itI-0n in
t'1RS

Fe Ye3r
5-mooth-=<l

P,1.:irket Clos-=<!

50%

30%

01%-56%
1 9%

Expener,c..
b-:1:;..d t.:ible ,:,f
Hit;;:; thllt llfi,
specifo: to the

type of eh91b1hty
condrt1on L.:ist
upd.:ited for the
2018 v11lu.:,t1on
purrn.:int to 11n

;;,:penence stud>
of the penod
2015-2017

'IV1sconsin :o IS
Mort11htvT11bl;,
The rotes bllsed
on octu11I WRS
expen;,nce
lldJUSted for

future mortohty
1mpro·,•en•;,nts

u;mQ th;,
l'v'P-20 i 8 full·r·
gneratIona
Impro aen•ent

scale
mult1phed by

oc-=--

Lev;;I Percent o'
P .:ivroll-Closed
:..11lort1z1lt1on

Penod

30 'ieor closed
"rom d.:it;, of

porticIp.:itIon m
1,VRS

Frye '(er
Sn•oothed

\lorket i(lo:;ed

l ',',

Expenence
b11sed tobl;, o'
rotes that are
specific to the

type of elgbilrty
condIt1on Lost
updotied for th;,
2.•J IS ·111lu.:it1on
pursuont to on

exp;,n;,nce study
of the p;,nod
2015-2.rJl"

\','1scons1n 2018
l,'ort:ilrt~ T:ible
The rates based

,:m -lctu,:,I VlRS
exp.-nenc;,
:idJU,ted for

future mort:ilrt~
mmpro ements

using the
1,'P-2.0I8 fullr
generotIon:i

mmproement
scale

mult1ph;;d b 1
60'o

:.e,el Percent oi
Payroll-Closed
Am1ortzataon

P;,nod

30 )' ,?,:ir clo;;,d
fromd:ite of

p.:irtIcIpotIon ,n
,'iRS

Frye Year
~-moothed

Mor'.:et Closed•

s 0°,

2..]G_..

E:cpenence
bo;;,d t:ible ,:,i
rats that are
specrfc to the

type of elgbrlrty
condrton La5t
updoted for the
2015 voluot1on
pur:;uilnt to 1'0
;;xpenence
studyof the
r:-;,nod 2.012·

201

W1sconsm 2012
Mortalrty Table
The rates based
on octu.:il WRS
;,xpenence
adjusted
for future
mortohty

m"'-pro·-·en,ents
u:;mg th.

MP 2015fu1,
genratonal
in:pro:anent
'<:11le n•ult1phed

by 50%

L;;v;,I P;,rc;,nt o'
F'.:iyroll-Closed
mortuzaton

Penod

30 '(,?;ir closed
'rom d.:ite ,:,f

port1cIp.:itIon m
',\,PS

Frve Year
Smoothed

.'.lorl-.et Closed

5 s•o

3.2'•
0 Po-5 6··,

2 P·o

Expenence
bos-=<l t.:ibl;, of
rates that are
specific to the

type of eligiblrty
cond1t1on Lil$'t
upd.:itied for th;,
2015 valutuon
pur$uont to -,n
expenence
study ofth;,
penod 2012.-

2.014

V,'1..cons1n 2012
l,'ortolit} Tobie
The rates based
on llctu.!11 \'\'RS
;;xp;;n;,nce
:idJu:;ted
for futur;;
mortalrt,

1mpro•,-emie-nt$
using th;;

1,'P-2015 'ull·I
g;;ner.:,tIon.:,
improvement
c.:,I;, 1mlilt1ph.-d

b:, SC::"··

Lev.:I P.-rc.:nt o'
P.:iyroll-Closed
Am10rIzaton

Penod

30 Ye.:,r closed
'rom d.:ite ot

p.:irt1cIp.:itIon ,n
1,VRS

Five Ye.:,r
,n,oothed

,\l.:irJ..et Closed

55%

5 0%

Expenence
based table of
r:ite> th.:it .:ire
specifinothe

type of eligibilrty
cond1t1on L.:ist
upd.:it;,d for th;;
20 l 5 voluat,on
pur-;uant to ~n
expen.:nce
s•udy of th.
period 2012-

2014

Wisconsin 2012
1,'ortahty Tobie
The r.:,tes based
on actual v\'RS
exp.-n.-nce
.:idJUSt-=<!
for futur.;,
n•ort:ilrt~

Improvements
usina th-?

1,'P-20i 5 iuliy
gener.:st1on.:,I

1n--,pro-,-en"lo?nt
c.:,I;; 1mul,1pli.-d

b:, SG·••.

}o po5t-retirement zsdya5mer1 guaranteed Actual adjuszment; are bszed on recognized investment retum actuarial expererce
.:ind other '.:ictors Value t; th ,:i;;un•ed .:innuol .:idJu,tn·ent b-:1,..d on the ,n.es•ment return .:i;.un•ption ond the post-retir;,mer,t
d15coun: rte

78



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 2 -WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)

Sgnufcant methods and assumptions used m calculatmg W1sconsm Ret1rement System Actuanally
Determmed Contnbut,ons:

2016 2015 2014 2013

December31 :>ecember 31 December 31 December 31
2014 20i 3 2012 2011

Frozen Entry .:.ge Fro:en Entr; Age Fro:en Ent') Age Fro:en Entry :..ge

Le·.•el Percent of Level Percent of Level Percent of Level Percent o'
p.,yroll-Closed P.:iyroll-Closed P.:iyroll-Closed F·:iyroll-Closed
Amortization Amort1:at1on \morzatron .:..momz.:it,on

Penod Period Penod Period

30 Yer closed 30 Year closed 30 Ye.lr dosed 30 '(e.lr closed
from d.lte o' from d.:ite of fromd.:ite of from d.:iteof

part1c1p,mon in participation m p.,rttc1p.:it1on in pamc1p:,tIon m
\1',1RS WRS i,'RS 1,VRS

Frve 'iear Fi-.-eYear Fr,•e Ye.lr Frve Ye.:ir
Smoothed Smoothed Smoothed Sm-0othed

l\·\arl:et 1Clos-edJ 1,'.:irket • Closed Market Closed• '.l::rket Closed

5 5° 55% 5 5°e 5 5

7 2-=·-. 2% 72% 72,

50 5 0 5 •JO,: 5 c,=·,

32 32% 32% 3 Y-·,
013-56% 0 l"o-5 o<, o 1<·,-s.o•, 0 1 'o-5 o•·,

21 21% 21% 21
Expenence- Experience- Experience- Experience-

b::ised t.:ible of b.:ised table of based t.lble oi b.:ised table of
rates th.lt are rates that .:ire rates that are r.ltes th.:it :ire
specfic to the specific to the :;pecrfic to the specific to the

type of eh91bd1ty type of ehg 1b1hty t;·pe o'ehg1b1hty type of eligibility
condition LMt cond1t1on L::ist cor.d1t1on Last cond1t1on L.lS!
upd.lted •or the upd.lted for the upd.lted for the upcfoted for the
2012 v.llu.:it1on 2012 V.llU.lt1-0n 2012 v.lluat1on 2009 valuation
pursu.:int to an pursuant to an pursu.:int to ar, pursuant to an

experience study expenence study experience :;tudy expenence stud)
o'theperiod of the penod of the penod ofthepenod
2009 2011 2C{l9- 2011 2009 -2011 2000- 2,;os

,'ii,coosin 2012 Vhsconsm 2012 ,'ilscons,n 2012
.'.lort.lhtyTable Mortality foble .'.lortahty Table
The r.:ites based The rates based The r.ltes b.:ised
on actuol \'/RS on octual WRS on actual ,',RS 1.V1scor,s1n
experience experience experience ProJected
proJected to proJected to proJected to Expenence Table

2017 With :;c.:ile 2017h scale 2017 with :;c.,Je • 2005 for women
BB to .lll for BB to <lllfor BB to all for -:ind 90"e o'the

future future future Wisconsin
m1prov,e,ments Improvements improvements ProJected

, m.lrgini in margin' mn fm.lrg,n• in Expenence Table
mortality mort<lllt) mort.lhty • 2.C()S for menl,'ortolrt;

"}o post-retirement adjustment rs guaranteed czual adjustments are based on recogrzd investment return actuanal experience
and other ·actors Valuers the s5sued annual adjustrnt based on the investment return 355unpt1on and ;he post-ret1remert
d15un: rte

Ret,rt?n.,-:-nt Ago:-

5"'1,:,r1 lncre.:ises

,'/.:ige lnfl.:it,or,

3em1orrty Merit

Po5t-retirement En=fit 'dustments'

ctuanal Assumption

'Vet nvestment P.ii te o'RHurn

11,'e,ghted b.:ised on .,ssumed r.:ite for

Pre-retirement

Valuation Date

,;mc,111:.:it,or, Penc-d

.:..ctu.:in.:il Co,t ,\lethod

.:..mom:.:itton ,'.lethod

79



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 3 - CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN

The data presented m the Schedule of Changes mn Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related
Ratios and Schedule of Contributions for the City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income
Plan was taken from the reports issued by the actuary

Changes of benefit terms There were no changes of benefit terms

Changes of assumptions No significant change in assumptions from the prior year were noted

NOTE 4 - OPEB PLAN

The data presented mn the Schedule of Changes mn Net OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related
Ratios and Schedule of Contributions for the City of Franklin Post-Employment Benefit Trust
Plan was taken from the reports issued by the actuary

Changes of benefit terms There were no changes of benefit terms

Changes of assumptions No significant change mn assumptions from the prior year were noted

80



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of spec1f1c revenue sources (other than debt
service or major capital projects) that are restricted for specified purposes

Library operating fund - This fund accounts for the budgetary operation of the library

Library aux1lIary fund - This fund accounts for library donations, fines, and forfeitures

Solid waste collection fund - This fund accounts for solid waste collection act1v1t1es

Donation fund - This fund accounts for donations received for specrfrc purposes

St Martins Fair fund - This fund accounts for act1v1t1es related to the farmers/flea market held the
first Monday of the spring and summer months and the Labor Day weekend

C1v1c celebrations fund - This fund accounts for act1v1ty related to the City's Fourth of July and
other celebrations

Tourism Comm1ss1on fund - The state mandated that certain portions of the hotel tax be
dedicated for toursm promotion The Common Council formed a tourism commission that
determines how those funds are spent

Op101d Settlement fund - This fund accounts for funds received and restricted for human
services from op101d settlements These funds are to be used to support treatment of Opioid Use
Disorder (QUO) and any co-occurring Substance Use Disorder or Mental Health (SUD/MH)
cond1t1ons through evidence-based or evidence-informed programs or strategies

Grant fund - The City reports Its grant activities in this fund Grant activities include fire
department, police department, health department, community development block grants,
COVID-19 grants, and miscellaneous grants received by the City that are not accounted for
elsewhere

Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisrton or
construction of major capital fac1ht1es (other than those finance by proprietary funds)

Capital outlay fund - This fund accounts for the departmental capital outlays These
expenditures are funded by the tax levy, normally are less than $25,000 and are under the
direction of the department supervisor

Equipment replacement fund - this fund accounts for the rolling stock replacement program that
accumulates annual funding (from landfill siting fees) for replacement of vehicles and s1m1lar
equipment in lieu of usung borrowed monies

Capital improvement fund - This fund accounts for land acquisitions, building projects, and all
public works projects and are usually funded with landfill siting revenues, borrowed money, or
funding from some other source other than the tax levy

Street improvement fund - This fund accounts for the act1v1t1es of the local road improvement
program Funding 1s provided by landfill s1tmg fees and a portion of general transportation aids
and an every-other-year local road improvement grant from the state

Ut1l1ty improvement fund - This fund ts used to account for water and sewer connection fees and
special assessments that are used for water and sewer construction projects

Development fund - This fund Is used to account for impact fees restricted for use to capital
improvements

81



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Special Revenue Funds
Library Library Solid Waste StMartin's Civic Tourism Opioid Total

Operating Auxiliary Collection Fair Donation Celebrations Commission Settlement Grant Special
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Revenue Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments s 1708547 $ 158,429 s 2 226,680 $ s 252,240 s 79998 $ 284.262 s 73 238 3 922,840 8 706 234
Receivables
Accounts receivable 33,156 109,861 13 233 156,250
Taxes receivable

Due from other governments 58058 58,058
Prepaid items 3 286 3 286

Total assets $ 1 766,605 s 158,429 s 2,259 836 $ s 252,240 s 83,284 s 394 123 $ 73,238 s 3,936,073 s 8 923,828

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable s 13,219 s 9,604 s 220 040 s 55655 s 1 326 $ 700 s s 2 902 303,446
Accrued liabilities 5,386 94 5,119 10 599
Unearned revenue 1 612,836 3,748,350 5 361 186
Total liabilities 18 ,605 9,698 1837995 55,655 1 326 700 3 751,252 5 675 231

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Subsequent year tax levy 1374000 1,374,000

FUND BALANCES
Non spendable

Inventories and prepaid items 3286 3,286
Restricted
Grants and Donations 250 914 250,914
Opioid Settlement 73 238 73,238
Health services 184,821 184,821
Library services 374,000 148,731 522,731
Solid waste 421 841 421 841
Recreational services 79298 79,298
Tourist commission 394123 394,123

Unassigned (deficit) (55 655) (55,655)
Total fund balances (deficit) 374 000 148 731 421 841 (55,655) 250 914 82 584 394123 73,238 184 821 1,874,597

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and
fund balances (deficit) s 1766605 s 158 429 s 2 259 836 $ s 252 240 s 83 284 $ 394 123 s 73,238 s 3 936 073 8,923 828

(Continued)

82



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET- NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Capital Projects Funds Total
Capital Equipment Capital Street Utility Total Nonmajor
Outlay Replacement Improvement Improvement Improvement Development Capital Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments s 1 441 531 S 1 382 309 s 1009737 s 2 178 381 s 2 649 144 s 10 231 828 $ 18 ,892 930 27 599164
Receivables
Accounts receivable 137 785 53990 6,847 18000 3 265 219 887 376,137
Taxes receivable
Special assessments receivable 134.580 134 580 134 580
Due from other governments 58,058

Prepaid items 3,286
Long-term advances 1500000 1,500,000 1,500,000

Total assets s 1579316 $ 1 436,299 $ 1016584 s 2 196 381 s 2.783 724 $ 11 735093 $ 20,747 397 29 671 225

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S 5,179 s 437 778 $ 53081 $ 980171 $ s S 1 476,209 1 779,655
.A.ccrued liabilities 219 757 219 757 230 356
Subsequentyear tax levy 5,361 186
Total liabilities 5,179 437 778 53,081 980,171 219 757 1 695,966 7,371 197

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue 134 580 134 580 134 580
Unearned revenue 1 374 000
Total Unavailable and Unearned revenue 134,580 134 580 1,508,580

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Nonspendable·
Inventories and prepaid items 3,286

Restricted
Utility improvements 2 649 144 2 649,144 2,649,144
Development 11,515,336 11 515,336 11 515 ,336
Grants and Donations 250 914
Opioid Settlement 73,238
Health services 184 821
Library services 522,731
Solid waste 421 841
Recreational services 79,298
Tourist commission 394 123

Assigned
Capital projects 1574137 998 521 963 503 1 216210 4 752 371 4 752,371

Unassigned (deficit) (55,655)

Total fund balances {deficit) 1 574 137 998,521 963 503 1,216,210 2,649 144 11,515,336 18,916 851 20 791,448

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and
fund balances (deficit) s 1 579 316 s 1,436,299 s 1016584 $ 2 196 381 $ 2 783 724 s 11 735,093 s 20 747 397 $ 29,671,225

(Concluded}

83



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

S ecial Revenue Funds
Library Library Solid StMartin's Civic Tourism Opioid Total

Operating Auxiliary Waste Fair Donation Celebrations Commission Settlement Grant Special
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Revenue Funds

REVENUE
Taxes 1 347 200 $ $ $ $ $ $ 319 684 $ $ $ 1 666,884
Intergovernmental revenue 65845 69079 688 140 823 064
Licenses and permts 22 597 18,217 40,814
Public charges for services 20000 8,460 2 027 112 105 978 2161 550
Investment earn ings 7160 1 952 12 581 2,907 6 778 31 378
Miscellaneous revenue 49,334 2185 30892 24,353 73 238 1 235 181,237

Total revenue 1,440 205 59 746 2110957 22 597 30892 148,548 322 591 73 238 696 153 4 904 927

EXPENDITURES
Current.
General government 232 1,253 1,485
Public safety 42071 78 967 121 038
Public works 2 120637 2120637
Health and human services 2 360 514.412 516 772
Culture and recreation 1,377 854 43,120 66 853 173 973 1,661 800
Conservation and development 162 579 162 579

Capital outlay 183,420 14163 197 583

Total expenditures 1,561 274 57,283 2 120,637 66,853 44 663 173,973 162 579 594 632 4 781 894

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (121069) 2 463 (9680) (44.256) (13771) (25,425) 160 012 73,238 101 521 123 033

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 11 000 13,000 24 000
Transfers out (18000) (18 000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 11,000 (18,000) 13000 6,000

Net change in fund balances (121 069) 2,463 (9680) (33,256) (31771) (12 ,425) 160 012 73,238 101,521 129 033

Fund balances (defic it) beginning 495,069 146,268 431,521 (22 399) 282,685 95,009 234111 83 300 1,745,564

Fund balances (deficit} ending 374,000 $ 148 731 $ 421,841 $ (55 655) $ 250914 $ 82 584 $ 394 123 $ 73,238 $ 184 821 $ 1 874 597

(Continued)

84



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES- NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Capital Projects Funds Total
Capital Equipment Capital Street Utility Total Nonmajor
OuUay Replacement Improvement Improvement Improvement Development Capital Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

REVENUE
Taxes s 53300 s $ $ $ $ $ 53,300 $ 1720 184
Intergovernmental revenue 5,232 1190 000 1 195,232 2 018,296
Licenses and permits 40 814
Public charges for services 1078547 696860 77430 232290 2 085,127 4,246 677
Special assessments 110516 2 532,513 2 643,029 2,643 029
Investment earnings (loss) 21129 12 426 51278 7,810 42,869 135,882 271 394 302 772
Miscellaneous revenue 29200 86000 3,265 118,465 299 702
Total revenue 1 187 408 709,286 214 708 1430 100 153385 2 671660 6,366 547 11,271 474

EXPENDITURES
Current.
General government 5925 5,925 7,410
Public safety 121 038
Public works 14032 14 032 2 134 669
Health and human services 516 772
Culture and recreation 1748 1 748 1 663 548
Conservation and development 162 579

Capital outlay 638 557 1 963077 2375 865 1154 053 1 491 6,133043 6,330 626
Debt service

Debt Issuance costs
Total expenditures 638 557 1963,077 2,391 645 1154,053 7,416 6 154 748 10 936,642

Excess (defic iency) of revenue
over expenditures 548,851 (1253 791) (2,176937) 276047 153,385 2 664,244 211 799 334,832

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets 2,488 22 095 24 583 24,583
Transfers in 18,000 18,000 42 000
Transfers out (288,578) (288,578) (306 578)
General obligation debt issued
Premium on debt issued
Total other financing sources (uses) 20,488 22,095 (288,578) (245 995) (239,995)

Net change mn fund balances 569339 (1231 696) (2176937) 276047 153 385 2 375,666 (34 196) 94 837

Fund balances (deficit) beginning 1,004 798 2,230,217 3,140,440 940163 2495,759 9,139 670 18,951 047 20 696,611

Fund balances (deficit) - ending s 1574 137 $ 998 521 s 963 503 s 1216,210 $ 2 649 144 $ 11,515,336 $ 18,916 851 $ 20,791,448

(Concluded)

85



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
TIF DISTRICTS FUND - COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Northwestern Ascension Ballpark Loomis&
Mutual Hospital Commons Ryan Velo Village Business Park

District#3 District#4 District#5 District #6 District#7 Overlay Total
ASSETS

Cash and investments $ 3 001 599 $ 1 965 502 $ 1 510 086 $ 237 306 $ 9 360 102 $ $ 16 074 595
Receivables
Taxes recervable
Total assets $ 3 001 599 $ 1965502 $ 1510086 $ 237 306 $ 9 360 102 $ - $ 16 074 595

LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1 976 266 $ $ 81 $ 9155 $ 45 $ 161 150 $ 2146 697
Due to other funds 415 524 911 433 1 326 957
Advances fromother funds 1 500 000 1 500 000

Total liabilities 1976266 81 424 679 1 500 045 1 072 583 4 973 654

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Subsequent year tax levy 1126 690 1 094 021 58702 739 722 204 026 3 223 161
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,126,690 1094021 58 702 739 722 204 026 3 223 161

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Restricted 1025333 838 812 415 984 7 120 335 9 400 464
Unassigned (246 075) (1 276 609) (1 522 684)

Total fund balances (deficit) 1 025 333 838 812 415 984 (246 075) 7 120 335 (1 276 609) 7 877 780

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and
fund balances $ 3 001 599 $ 1 965 502 $ 1 510 086 $ 237 306 $ 9 360 102 $ $ 16 074 595

86



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
TIF DISTRICTS FUND - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Northwestern Ascension Ballpark
Mutual Hospital Commons Loomis & Ryan Velo Village Business Park

District#3 Dlstrict#4 District#5 District#6 District #7 Overlay Total
REVENUE
Taxes $ 1757 899 $ 1 256 922 $ 1 189 259 $ 322491 $ 431 370 $ 85 264 $ 5 043 205
Intergovernmental revenue 510 053 53 732 12 883 576 668
lnvestment earnings (loss) 45 829 12 286 4 335 13 213 6 748 55 085 137 496
Miscellaneous revenue 4352 209956 7 434 580 7 648 888
Total revenue 2 313 781 1327292 1416433 335 704 7 872 698 140 349 13 406 257

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 5 746 6186 9 096 48145 16 144 29 804 115 121
PublicWorks 11416 11 000 619 986 642 402
Conservation and development 1 976 266 21 150 459 000 780 000 3236416

Capital outlay 1117 65 332 87 595 155 083 3 228 922 3 538 049
Debt service
Principal 985 000 710 000 160 000 1 855 000
Interest and fiscal charges 26545 9 375 690 145 263 053 153 305 57 176 1199 599
Total expenditures 2 993 557 28 094 1474573 590 943 783 532 4 715 888 10 586 587

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (679 776) 1 299 198 (58 140) (255 239) 7 089 166 (4 575 539) 2819670

Net changes in fund balances (679 776) 1 299 198 (58 140) (255 239) 7 089 166 (4 575 539) 2819670

Fund balances (deficit) - beginng 1 705 109 (460 386) 474124 9 164 31 169 3 298 930 5 058 110

Fund balances (deficit) - ending $ 1 025 333 $ 838 812 $ 415 984 $ (246 075) $ 7 120 335 $ (1 276 609) $ 7 877 780

87



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

City of Franklin Total
Defined Benefit City of Franklin Employee
Retirement Post Employment Benefit
Income Plan Benefits Trust Trust Funds

Assets
Cash $ - $ 350,354 $ 350,354
Investments
Fred Income Securities 3,414,490 2,221,788 5,636,278
Domestic Equities 5,669,281 5,017,783 10,687,064
International Equities 1,507,029 1,507,029

Total Investments 10,590,800 7,239,571 17,830,371
Accounts Receivable 1,399 1,399

Total assets $ 10,590,800 $ 7,591,324 $ 18,182,124

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ 60,000 $ 60,000

Net Position
Restricted for employee benefits 10,590,800 7,531,324 18,122,124

Total liabilities and net position $ 10,590,800 $ 7,591,324 $ 18,182,124

88



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY

NET POSITION - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

City of Franklin Total

Defined Benefit City of Franklin Employee

Retirement Post Employment Benefit

Income Plan Benefits Trust Trust Funds

Additions
Contributions
City of Franklin $ 192,000 $ 177,125 $ 369,125
Retirees 178,420 178,420

Net investment earnings (losses) (2,156,158) (1,164,621) (3,320,779)

Total additions (1,964,158) (809,076) (2,773,234)

Deductions
Incurred clamms 623,320 460,706 1,084,026
Prescription drug claims 111,623 111,623
Claims fees 32,797 34,233 67,030
Stop loss premiums less clamms receive 103,153 103,153

Total deductions 656,117 709,715 1,365,832

Changes in net position (2,620,275) (1,518,791) (4,139,066)

Net Position, Beginning of Year 13,211,075 9,050,115 22,261,190

Net Position, End of Year $ 10,590,800 $ 7,531,324 $ 18,122,124

89



9 co»a
INDEPENDENT
NETWORKMEMBER

CLA (ChftonlarsonAllen LLP) 1s a network member of CLA Global See CLAglobal com/disclaimer
Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonlarsonAllen Wealth Advisors LLC an
SEC-registered investment advisor



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize $10,000 for General Planning Services
Provided by MDRoffers Consulting

MEETING DATE
10/3/2023

ITEM NUMBER
G.&

Background

The City Development staff requests Common Council authorization for a $10,000 budget for planning
services by MDRoffers Consulting. These services encompass reviewing site plans, landscaping, lighting,
architectural plans, certified survey maps, and staffing boards or commissions as required, along with other
plans related to applications submitted to the City Development Department.

FISCAL IMPACT
A budget amendment is requested to allocate $10,000 to Other Professional Services account 01-0621
5219 from the General Fund balance.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to Authorize a budget amendment of $10,000 for General Planning Services with MDRoffers
Consulting.

Mayor



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
~ COUNCIL ACTION

REPORTS & An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521,
RECOMMENDATIONS an Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget

for the General Fund to Provide Additional
$10,000 Appropriations for Consulting Services

in the Planning Department

MEETING DATE
October 3, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
The Planning Department 1s expenencmg staffing challenges in which projects are being delayed.
Additional consulting services are needed to help manage and maintain the increased number of
projects coming through the Planning Department The City of Franklin has continued growth and the
Planning Department 1s an integral part of the development process.

ANALYSIS
This budget amendment is needed to help facilitate the workflow and project capacity in the Planning
Department.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the attached proposed budget amendment could be adopted providing for an additional
$10,000 appropriation for consulting services for the Planning Department from fund balance to provide the
necessary appropriations Sufficient fund balance exists to support thus change

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Ordinance No 2023-_ an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance
Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the General Fund to Provide Add1t1onal $10,000 Appropnat1ons for
Consulting Services in the Planning Department

Roll Call Vote Required.

Finance-DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2023
ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL $10,000

APPROPRIATIONS FOR CONSULTING SERVICES IN THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2023 Annual Budgets for the
City of Franklin on November 15, 2022;

WHEREAS, the Planning Department has been experiencing staffing challenges; and

WHEREAS, projects being presented to the City of Franklin's Planning Department are continuing to
be delayed; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin continues to see development growth which reqmres project
management; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as follows:

Section 1 That the 2023 Budget for the General Fund be amended as follows:

General Fund
Planning Consulting Services Increase $10,000

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Section 5

Pursuant to §65.90(5)(ar), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to post a notice of this budget
amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this Ordinance on the City's website.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or provision of
this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competentjurisdiction, the remaining terms
and provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and publication.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this day
of ,2023.---

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
A COUNCIL ACTION

REPORTS & An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022
RECOMMENDATIONS 2521, an Ordinance Adopting the 2023

Annual Budget for the General Fund to
Provide Additional $9,500 Appropriations for

a Part-Time Planner

BACKGROUND

MEETING DATE
10/3/2023

ITEM NUMBER

G.IO.

The Planning Department is currently understaffed, and to address this issue, a former City of Franklin
employee has generously offered part-time assistance at a significantly reduced rate compared to his
consulting rate. On September 19, 2023, the Common Council approved carrying forward outstanding
purchase orders from 2022 for Wrayburn Consulting, totaling $9,500. As this former employee is the
consultant for Wrayburn Consulting, the Planning Department seeks Common Council approval to
amend the budget, reallocating the funds approved on September 19, 2023, for consulting services to
the Part-Time Wages and FICA accounts.

ANALYSIS

This budget amendment is needed to help facilitate the workflow and project capacity in the Planning
Department. The breakdown is as follows:

01-0621-5113
01-0621-5151

Salaries-PT
FICA

$8,825
$675

The Finance Department projects the Planning Department Personnel Costs will be under budget for
2023.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends adopting the attached proposed budget amendment, providing for an adjustment
totaling $9,500 from consulting services for the Planning Department to staff a Part-Time Employee.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an
Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the General Fund to Provide Additional $9,500
Appropriations for a Part-Time Planner at an hourly rate of $46.

Roll Call Vote Required.

Finance-DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL

$9,500 APPROPRIATIONS FOR A PART-TIME PRINCIPAL PLANNER

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2023 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 15, 2022;

WHEREAS, the Planning Department has been experiencing staffing challenges; and

WHEREAS, projects being presented to the City of Franklin's Planning Department are
continuing to be delayed; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin has previously approved the carryforward of an
outstanding 2022 purchase order for Wraybum Consulting, LLC on September 19, 2023,

WHEREAS, the Planning Department is seeking approval from Common Council to move
monies to the part-time employee and FICA accounts; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section I That the 2023 Budget for the General Fund be amended as follows:

General Fund
Planning
Planning
Planning

Consulting Services
Salaries-PT
FICA

Decrease
Increase
Increase

$9,500
$8,825
$675

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Section 5

Pursuant to §65.90(5)(ar), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to post a notice of
this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this Ordinance on the
City's website.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full force and
effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and
publication.



Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of 2023.

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Rescind the Motion to Authorize a Consulting
Services Agreement with Wrayburn Consulting, LLC,
Adopted on September 19, 2023, and In Place of the

Approved Agreement, Approve the Hiring of
Nicholas Fuchs as a Part-time Planner

MEETING
DATE

10/3/2023

ITEM NUMBER

G.AI.

BACKGROUND
Our Planning Department is currently understaffed, facing numerous upcoming projects. To
address this, Nicholas Fuchs (Nick), a former employee turned consultant, has offered part-time
assistance to the City. Nick will work up to 19 hours per week, primarily from his home office, but
will attend meetings as needed. The City and Nick have agreed to a wage rate of $46 per hour, at
the 97th percentile of the Principal Planner salary range. Nick will not receive any City-paid
benefits; however, the City of Franklin is responsible for FICA taxes. Importantly, the negotiated
employee wage is less than Nick's usual consulting rate, allowing us to make the most of the
approved $9,500 agreement with Wrayburn Consulting while obtaining the required support for the
planning department.

FISCAL IMPACT

We request reallocating the approved $9,500 consulting funds from the previous Council meeting to
the corresponding part-time salary and FICA accounts. Currently, consulting costs are $125/hour,
but Nick has agreed to work as a part-time employee for $46/hour. This change represents a
significant cost-saving, providing the City with more work hours from Nick as a part-time
employee compared to his role as a consultant.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to Rescind the Motion to Authorize a Consulting Services Agreement with Wrayburn
Consulting, LLC, Adopted on September 19, 2023, and In Place of the Agreement Approve Nicholas
Fuchs's Hiring as a .48 part-time Planner at $46/hour.

DOA-KH



APPROVAL

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

Background

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize a Consulting Services Agreement with
Wrayburn Consulting, LLC, for General Planning

Services

City Development staff is requesting Common Council authorization for a planning services agreement with
a budget of $10,000. Planning services include reviewing site plans, landscaping plans, lighting plans,
architectural plans, certified survey maps, and other such plans that are part of or related to applications
submitted to the City Development Department.

The Common Council authorized a previous agreement with Wraybum Consulting for an equal amount at its
regular meetings on November 15, 2022, and April 3, 2023. The City Development Department is seeking to
enter into a new agreement due to the current reduced staffing in the Planning Department.

Note: in section VI Insurance, the minimum limits of $1,000,000/$2,000,000 for General/Commercial Liability
and $1,000,000 for Excess Liability, as this is an agreement for professional services, not for contractor
services that normally require a minimum limit of $2,000,000/$4,000,000 and $10,000,000.

FISCAL IMPACT
A budget amendment is requested to carry forward POs to cover Wrayburn consulting expenses (budgeted
in 2022) from account 01-0621-5219, which currently has $9,500 for use.

COUNCIL. ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize a Consulting Services Agreement with Wrayburn Consulting, LLC for general planning
services; and authorize the Mayor to execute and administer the appropriate, related contract.

Mayor



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Authorization for the Renewal ofPalo Alto Annual
Support & Licensing - Information Services
EquipmentMaintenance Outlay Budget 

Account 01-0144-5242

MEETING
DATE

10/03/2023

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND

At City Hall and the Police Department, the City of Franklin installed two PA-820 (high-availability)
firewalls in 2017. Each of the four remote offices has a single PA-220 firewall in place. In addition to
basic firewall protection, the City also subscribes to a number of vital security services:

• Antivirus Inspection
• Antimalware/Spyware Inspection
• Vulnerability Detection Analytics (Wildfire)
• URL Filtering
• File Blocking

For the first three years, licensing and support were capitalized and accounted for in the project
budget. After the first three years, the Information Services (IS) Equipment Maintenance (01-0144
5242) operating budget included license and support as an annual expense. For 2022, annual
maintenance and support was $20,061.84. The annual maintenance and support for 2023 is
$25,280.79. This is a 26% increase over the previous year.

FISCAL IMPACT

All functions will stop working if the licensing and support agreements are not mn place. There will be no
way to access the Internet. On October 5, 2023, the support agreements are scheduled to end. The IS
Eqmpment Maintenance budget of $34,300 was expecting the Palo Alto renewal costs to be $19,598, as the
budget was created in July and the mvoices were not received until October. Due to the unanticipated
increases in firewall maintenance expenses, the IS Eqmpment Mamtenance account will run $5,027.44 over
budget.

Staff is recommending that the annual renewal be viewed as a sunken cost. The Technology Comm1ss1on is
recommending a new firewall platform based on Fortmnet. The Palo Alto platform will be abandoned in the
next 2-4 months.

HBS Palo Alto Quote #311689v2
• Annual support and licensing $25,280.79

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to author1ze the expenditure of $25,280.79 for the twelve-month annual Palo Alto maintenance and
lucensmng. The expenditure will be posted to account 01-0144-5242.

IT-JM



Palo Alto Renewal - October 2023

Prepared For·
Franklin, City of
James Matelski
9229W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

P: (414) 427-7645
E: JMatelski@franklinwgov

Prepared By
MilwaukeeWisconsin Area Office
Greg Borchard
N28W23050 Roundy Drive Suite 200
Pewaukee, WI 53072

P: 262-650-6500 ext 1222
E: gborchard@hbs net

Quote #311689 v2

Date Issued
09.27.2023

Expires
10.21.2023

Palo Alto Renewal - 1 Year Prce Qty Ext. Price

Serial Number: 12001004572; RenewalCoverage: 10/05/2023-10/05/2024

Subscription Advanced URL Filtering, 1-year, PA-820, HAPair Renewal

Advanced WildFire subscription renewal for devices in HApair, PA-820

Premium support year 1 renewal, PA-820

Advanced Threat Prevention subscription renewal for devices in HApair, PA-820

Serial Number: 12801017880; Renewal Coverage: 10#05/2023-10#05/2024

AdvancedWildFire subscription renewal, PA-220

Advanced Threat Prevention subscription renewal, PA-220

Subscription Advanced URL Filtering, 1-year, Renewal, PA-220

Premium support renewal, PA-220

Serial Number: 12001005303; Renewal Goverage: 10/05/2023-10/05/2024

Subscription Advanced URL Filtering, 1-year, PA-820, HAPair Renewal

Advanced Threat Prevention subscription renewal for devices in HApair, PA-820

Global Protect subscription renewal for devices in HA pair, PA-820

Premium support year 1 renewal, PA-820

Serial Number: 12801017793; Renewal Coverage: 10/05/2023 - 10/05/2024

Advanced WildFire subscription renewal, PA-220

Premium support renewal, PA-220

Subscription Advanced URL Filtering, 1-year, Renewal, PA-220

Advanced Threat Prevention subscription renewal, PA-220

Serial Number:12801018166; Renewal Coverage: 10/05/2023 - 10/05/2024

Subscription Advanced URL Filtering, 1-year, Renewal, PA-220

Premium support renewal, PA-220

Advanced Threat Prevention subscription renewal, PA-220

AdvancedWildFire subscription renewal, PA-220

Serial Number: 12801017899; Renewal Coverage: 10/05/2023 - 10/05/2024

Subscription Advanced URL Filtering, 1-year, Renewal, PA-220

Quote #311689 v2

$1,156 55 $1,156 55

$1,076 79 $1,076 79

$981 55 $981.55

$1,156 55 $1,156 55

$287 14 $287 14

$29512 $29512

$29512 $295 12

$222 62 $222 62

$1,156 55 $1,156 55

$1,156 55 $1,156 55

$665 37 $665 37

$981 55 $981 55

$287 14 $287 14

$222 62 $222 62

$295 12 $295 12

$295 12 $295 12

$295 12 $295 12

$222 62 $222 62

$295 12 $295 12

$287 14 $287 14

$295 12 $295 12



- - - -- ---- - - - -- - - - -- - - - - - - - - - -

Palo Alto Renewal - 1 Year Price Qty Ext Price

Advanced Threat Prevention subscription renewal, PA-220

Premium support renewal, PA-220

Advanced WildFire subscription renewal, PA-220

Serial Number: 12001004660; Renewal Coverage: 10/05/2023 - 10/05/2024

Subscription Advanced URL Filtering, 1-year, PA-820, HAPair Renewal

Premium support year 1 renewal, PA-820

Advanced WlldFire subscription renewal for devices in HApair, PA-820

Advanced Threat Prevention subscription renewal for devices in HApair, PA-820

Serial Number: 12001004615; Renewal Coverage: 10/05/2023 - 10/05/2024

Global Protect subscription renewal for devices in HApair, PA-820

Advanced Threat Prevention subscription renewal for devices in HA pair, PA-820

Premium support year 1 renewal, PA-820

Subscription Advanced URL Filtering, 1-year, PA-820, HA Pair Renewal

Advanced WildFire subscription renewal for devices in HApair, PA-820

Serial Number: 702189725; Renewal Coverage: 10/05/2023 - 10/05/2024

Premium support renewal, Panorama 25 devices

Serial Number: 12001005303; Renewal Coverage: 10/05/2023 - 10/05/2024

Advanced WildFire subscription renewal for devices in HApair, PA-820

$29512 1

$222 62 1

$287.14 1

$1,15655 1

$981 55 1

$1,076 79 1

$1,15655 1

$665 37 1

$1,156 55 1

$981 55 1

$1,156 55 1

$1,076 79 1

$2,064 29 1

$1,076 79 1

$295 12

$222 62

$28714

$1,156 55

$981 55

$1,076 79

$1,15655

$665 37

$1,15655

$981 55

$1,156 55

$1,076 79

$2,064.29

$1,076 79

premium support and subscriptions may be transferred to new hardware and software purchased on a pro-rated basis

Subtotal $25,280.79

'This quote may not include applicable sales tax, shipping, handling and/or delivery charges. Final applicable sales tax, shipping handling and/or delivery charges are calculated and applied at invoice. The above
prices are for hardware/software only and do not include delivery setup or installation by Heartland (HBS ') unless otherwise noted. Installation by HBS is available at our regular hourly rates or pursuant to a prepaid
HBSFlex Agreement. This configuration is presented for convenience only HBS is not responsible for typographical or other errors/omissions regarding prices or other information. Prices and configurations are
subject to changewithout notice HBS may modify or cancel this quote if the pricing is Impacted by a tariff A 15% restocking fee will be charged on any returned part. Customer is responsible for all costs associated
with return of product and a $25.00 processing fee. No returns are accepted by HBS without prior written approval. This quote expressly limits acceptance to the terms of this quote and HBS disclaims any additional
terms. Customer may issue a purchase order for administrative purposes only By providing your 'E-Signature you acknowledge that your electronic signature is the legal equivalent of your manual signature and
you warrant that you have express authority to execute this agreement and legally bind your organization to this proposal and all attached documents. Any purchase that the customer makes from HBS is governed by
HBS Standard Terms and Conditions ("ST&Cs") located at http:/Nwww.hbs.net/standard-terms-and-conditions, which are incorporated herein by reference. The ST&Cs are subject to change Wen a new order is
placed the ST&Cs on the above-stated website at that time shall apply. lf customer has signed HBS ST&Cs version 2020.v1 0 or later or the parties have executed a current master services agreement, the signed
agreement shall supersede the version on thewebsite. Certain purchases also require customer to be bound by end user terms and conditions. A list of end user terms and conditions related to various manufacturers
and vendors is set forth at https.//www.hbs,net/End-User-Agreements. Any purchase that customer makes is also governed by the applicable end user terms and conditions, which are incorporated herein by
reference. If customer has questions about whether end user terms and conditions apply to a purchase, customer shall contact HBS. Any order(s) that exceeds the credit limit assigned by HBS shall require upfront
payment from customer in an amount determined by HBS HBS shall make this determination at the time of the order unless custamer has previously submitted the required onboarding paperwork. In such event,
HBS shall make this determination at the time of quoting. QT.2023.v1 O'

Acceptance
Milwaukee Wisconsin Area Office

Greg Borchard
Signature / Name

09/27/2023

Quote #311689 v2

Franklin, City of

Signature / Name Initials



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize $62,202.65 for Trenching and Fiber
Relocation Change Orders for the Fiber Optic

WAN Project - Account 46-0181-5846.9650

MEETING
DATE

10/03/2023

ITEM NUMBER

Background

The Common Councl approved a motion to approve the Fiber Internet Construction Project for the City of
Franklin Municipal Business Operations mn an amount not to exceed 1,371,200. On August 1, 2023 the Council
author1zed an additional $275,000 for the purchase of firewalls and WAN equipment, increasing the total
budget to not exceed $1,646,200. Turnkey Network Solution was selected as the fiber optic trenching and
installation vendor. The estimated cost of trenching and mstalling the fiber optic cabling is $961,819.64. A
contingency budget of $228,813.17 was established within the funding to account for unexpected events and
change orders. The followmng Turnkey change orders have been presented to IT and Engineering:

Change Order 2023-2078: $22,591.71
Install 10,000 feet of tracer wire mn the 60h and Ryan Road ducts, as no tracer wire existed in the conduit
owned by Waukesha Water Utility.

Change Order 2023-2270: $2,379.00
Perform an additional 150' of direchonal boring at the Airways Water Utility facility due to movmg of
hand holds.

Change Order 2023-2299: $2,309.85
Install missing hand holds at Ryan Road and 60 Street. These were mdicated on the Waukesha Water
Utility condmt diagram, but never installed by Cablecom. The hand holds are necessary in order to
run the fiber through the ex1sting conduit.

Change Order 2023-2246: $1,297.92
Install hand hold at W. Drexel Avenue and Schlueter Parkway, as this was never installed with the
fiber optc cabling gomng to the Franklin Public Library.

Change Order 2023-2272: $22,853.33.
The onginal trenchmg plan placed the core bore mto the Franklm School Distnct Office on the west
side of the building. A new additional (wing) to the buildmg has been planned, or1gmnal fiber entry
pomnt into the building had to be relocated. Both the City of Franklm and Franklin Public School fiber
optic cables wall be relocated to terminate on the north wall, which will require the school system's
cablrng be re-pulled and terminated mto a different section of the building.

Change Order 2023-2239: $10,770.84
Change the entry point location for City of Franklin mnto the DIstr1ct Offrce from the entry point on the
west side of the buuldmg to the north side.

Total Requested Change Orders $62,202 65



Fiscal Impact

The Franklm Public School District may pay for the $22,853.33 cost of relocatmg the fibers to the north wall
of the district building. Staff 1s requesting permission to include ths expense as part of the budget, mn the
event that the fundmg request 1s not authorized by the School Board.

The City of Waukesha 1s being billed for the $22,591.71 of tracer wire that CableCom did not mnstall wthmn
their conduit. Staff is requesting permission to mclude this expense as part of the budget, in the event that
the funding request is not authorized by the Waukesha Water Utility.

Current and Future Project Costs: (Allocated $1,646,200)
• Turnkey Fiber Optic Trenching & Installation
• MCE Technical Analysis & Project Management
• Project Contingency
• (Estimate) Firewalls & WAN Routers

$961,819
$180,567
$228,813
$275,000

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the expenditure of $62,202.65 for trenchmg and fiber relocation change orders, American
Rescue Plan Act Fundmg to account 46-0181-5846.9650.

DOA-KH/ IT-JM



TURNKEY
Network Solutions
7020 SuthbeltDnve SE Caledoma. MI 49316
Toll Free. 877.376.7681 www.tkns.net

The Single Source for
All YourTefecommunications
infrastructure Needs

To: City Of Franklin Contact:
Address: 9229 W Loomis Road Phone:

Franklin, WI Fax:

Project Name: Fiber Optic Ring Project Additional Construcbon JCO Bid Number: 2023-2078

Project Location: Ryan & 60th, Franklin, WI Bid Date: 8/25/2023

Scope of Work:

Th us change order rs for placing approximately 10,000' of tracer wire in exist ing Waukesha duct and placing (10) flush mount test stations at existing
handhole locatons, along Ryan & 60th St.

Thank you for the opportunity to quote this proJect .

! Item Description

Place Tracer Wire Exist ing Conduit
Locate Posts

OSP Materials

Estimated Quantity Unit

10,000.00 LF
10.00 EACH
100 LS

Total Bid Price:

Total Price]

$15,200.00
$2,952.20
$4,439.51

$22,591.71

Notes:
• This quote constitutes an offer by TumKey Network Solutions (TKNS) to the Customer named on page 1 of this quote for the furnishing of Products

and/or Services. The offer made in this quote 1s subject to the Master Services Terms and Cond11:ions available at
http.//www.tkns.net/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/TKNSMSTC.pdf Customer shall indicate acceptance of this offer by providing TKNS with a return
copy of the quote signed by a duly authonzed representative of Customer. By accepting this offer Customer accepts TKNS Master Services Terms
and Conditions.

• Labor pnces are valid for sixty (60) days from the date noted on the quote. Beyond sixty (60) days, please call for current pricing.
• Materialspricesare subject to changewithoutpriornotice due to supplychain relatedpricing volatility from suppliers. The final
cost of thematerialsshallbe equitablyadjusted, should theybegreaterthan theamountproposedwithin theacceptedquote.

• All routes will be owned by and permitted under Customer of record listed on quote.
• Customer of record listed on quote is responsible for all structure (pole and conduit) make-ready costs.

• Customer of record listed on quote is responsible for all applicable structure (pole and condrnt) perm its, fees, make-ready costs, and ROW
acquisition/use fees.

• Pnce does not include any costs for direcl:lonal bonng/plowing through rock or frozen ground (frost) cond1t10ns. A price will be agreed upon prior to
construct ion if these conditions are encountered.

• All property disturbed by TKNS will be restored to its ongmnal condition.

• Quoted price does not include the cost to modify any TKNS disturbed area to meet The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Any requirement of
modifications to disturbed areas outs ide of restora l to its original condition will be considered a change in the scope of work and a price will be
agreed to pnor construction.

• Excavated spoils shall be used as backfill. Any reqrnrement for imported backfill will be considered a change in the scope of work and a price will be

agreed upon prior to construction.
• TKNS is not responsible for the handhng and disposal of Hazardous materials.
• The information contained m this quotation (the "Proprietary Information"), 1s proprietary to the business ofTKNS. Customer agrees to protect as

confidential all Proprietary Information provided by TKNS. Ths provision shall survive the term ination of any contractual relationship between TKNS
and Customer. Customer shall protect and treat Propnetary Information as it does its own most confidential proprietary information, and shall not
share it with any outside person whatsoever. For the av01dance of doubt, the fact and contents of any discussions and the contents and existence
of this quotation shall be considered Proprietary lnforrnal:lon.

• Fax purchase orders to 616.825.6131 or emal purchaseorders@tkns.net.
• This quote may or may not include estimated taxes. If taxes are included, the amount reflected is an estimate and the actual
amountwill be billed at the time of invoice. By accepting this quote Customer agrees to pay in addition to this quote any taxes as
required.

9/6/2023 9 26 16 AM Page 1 of 2



Payment Terms:

Payment in full is due within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice. Unpaid balances shall bear interest from the due date at the rate of one and one
half percent (1 ½%)per month.

ACCEPTED:
The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and
are hereby accepted.

Buyer: _

Signature: _

Date of Acceptance: ------------------

9/6/2023 9 26 16 AM

CONFIRMED:

TurnKey Network Solutions

Authorized Signature: ---------------
Estimator: Emily Daz

616-916-2705 edaz@tkns.net

Page 2 of 2



TURNKEY
Network Solutions
7020 Southbelt Dre SE Caledonia. MI 49316
Toll Free: 877.376.7681 www.tkns.net

The Single Source for
Al! Your Telecommunications
Infrastructure Needs

To: City Of Franklin Contact:
Address: 9229 W Loomis Road Phone:

Franklin, WI Fax:

Project Name: Fiber Optic Ring ProjectAdditional Bore Bid Number: 2023-2270
Project Location: 60th & Airways Ave, Franklin, WI Bid Date: 9/13/2023

Scope of Work:

This change order Is for 150' of additional bore as the existing handhole at 60th St. & Airways Ave was farther south than the pnnts showed.

Thank you for the opportunity to quote this project.

[rtem Description

Directional Boring

Total Bid Price:

Total Price]

$2,379.00

$2,379.00

Notes:
• This quote constitutes an offer by TurnKey Network Solutions (TKNS) to the Customer named on page 1 of this quote for the furnishing of Products

and/or Services. The offer made in this quote is subJect to the Master ServicesTerms and Conditions available at
http://www.tkns.net/wp-contenUuploads/2021/03/fKNSMSTC.pdf Customer shall indicate acceptance of this offer by providing TKNS with a return
copy of the quote signed by a duly authorized representative of Customer. By accepting this offer Customer accepts TKNS Master Services Terms
and Conditions.

• Labor prices are valid for sixty (60) days from the date noted on the quote. Beyond sixty (60) days, please call for current pncmg.
• Materials prices are subject to change withoutpriornotice due to supply chain relatedpricing volatilityfrom suppliers. The final

cost of the materials shallbeequitably adjusted, should theybegreaterthan the amountproposedwithin the acceptedquote.
• All routes will be owned by and permitted under Customer of record listed on quote.
• Customer of record listed on quote is responsible for all structure (pole and conduit) make-ready costs.
• Customer of record listed on quote is responsible for all applicable structure (pole and conduit) permits, fees, make-ready costs, and ROW

acquisition/use fees
• Pnce does not include any costs for directional boring/plowing through rock or frozen ground (frost) conditions. A price will be agreed upon prior to

construction if these conditions are encountered.
• All property disturbed by TKNS will be restored to its original condition.
• Quoted price does not include the cost to modify any TKNS disturbed area to meet The Americans with D1sab1hties Act (ADA). Any requirement of

modifications to disturbed areas outside of restoral to rts original condition will be considered a change in the scope of work and a price will be
agreed to pror construction.

• Excavated spoils shall be used as backfill. Any requirement for imported backfill will be considered a change m the scope of work and a price will be
agreed upon pror to construction.

• TKNS Is not responsible for the handling and disposal of Hazardous materials.
• The information contained in this quotation {the "Propnetary Information"), is proprietary to the business ofTKNS. Customer agrees to protect as

confidential all Proprietary Information provided by TKNS. This provision shall survive the termination of any contractual relationship between TKNS
and Customer. Customer shall protect and treat Proprietary Informatmn as it does its own most confidential proprietary information, and shall not
share It with any outside person whatsoever. For the avoidance of doubt, the fact and contents of any discussions and the contents and existence
of this quotation shall be considered Proprietary Information.

• Fax purchase orders to 616.825.6131 or email purchaseorders@tkns.net.
• This quote may or may not include estimated taxes. If taxes are included, the amount reflected is an estimate and the actual
amount will be billed at the time of invoice. By accepting this quote Customer agrees to pay in addition to this quote any taxes as
required.

Payment Terms:

Payment in full is due within thrty (30) days of receipt of invoice. Unpad balances shall bear interest from the due date at the rate of one and one
half percent (1 %) per month.

9/13/2023 10 58 32 AM Page 1 of 2



ACCEPTED:
The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and
are hereby accepted.

Buyer: _

Signature: _

Date of Acceptance:------------------

9/13/2023 10 58 32 AM

CONFIRMED:

TurnKey Network Solutions

Authorized Signature:
---------------

Estimator: Emily Diaz

616-916-2705 edaz@tkns.net

Page 2 of 2



TURNKEY
Network Solutions
7020 SouthbeltDreSE Caledonia. MI 49316
Toll Free: 877.376.7681 www.tkns.net

The Single Source for
AI! Your Telecommunications
Infrastructure Need 1s

To: City Of Franklin Contact:
Address: 9229 W Loomis Road Phone:

Franklin, WI Fax:

Project Name: Fiber Optic Rung Project HH Ryan Rd & 60th St. Bid Number: 2023-2299

Project Location: Franklin, WI Bid Date: 9/19/2023
Scope of Work·

This change order is for (1) additional 24" X 36" X 36" handhole over existing Waukesha innerduct on the SE comer ofW. Ryan Rd & S 60th St as
the existing handhole shown on the pnnts Is approXJmately 250' further south.

Thank you for the opportunity to quote this project.

! Item Description

Hand Hole Placement
OSP Matenals

Total Bid Price:

Total Price]

$1,297.92
$1,011.93

$2,309.85

Notes:
• This quote constitutes an offer by TurnKey Network Solutions (TKNS} to the Customer named on page 1 of this quote for the furrnshing of Products

and/or Services. The offer made in this quote Is subject to the Master Services Terms and Conditions available at
http://www.tkns.net/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/IKNSMSTC.pdf Customer shall indicate acceptance of thus offer by providing TKNS with a return
copy of the quote signed by a duly authorized representative of Customer. By accepting this offer Customer accepts TKNS Master Services Terms
and Conditions.

" Labor prices are valid for sxty (60) days from the date noted on the quote. Beyond snxty (60) days, please call for current pncang.
• Materialspricesaresubject to changewithoutpriornotice due tosupplychain relatedpricing volatilityfromsuppliers. The final
cost of thematerialsshallbeequitablyadjusted, should theybegreaterthan theamountproposed within theaccepted quote.

• All routes will be owned by and permitted under Customer of record listed on quote.
• Customer of record listed on quote rs responsible for all structure (pole and conduit} make-ready costs.
• Customer of record hsted on quote is responsible for all applicable structure (pole and conduit} permits, fees, make-ready costs, and ROW

acquisition/use fees.
• Price does not include any costs for directional boring/plowing through rock or frozen ground {frost} conditions. A pnce will be agreed upon prior to

construction if these conditions are encountered.
• All property disturbed by TKNS will be restored to its onginal condition.
• Quoted price does not include the cost to modify any TKNS disturbed area to meet The Americans with D1sabihties Act (ADA). Any requirement of

mod1ficat1ons to disturbed areas outside of restoral to its original condition will be considered a change m the scope of work and a price will be
agreed to prior construction.

• Excavated spoils shall be used as backfill. Any requirement for imported backfill will be considered a change in the scope of work and a price will be
agreed upon prior to construction.

• TKNS is not responsible for the handling and disposal of Hazardous materials.
• The information contained in this quotation (the "Proprietary Information"), is proprietary to the business ofTKNS. Customer agrees to protect as

confidential all Proprietary Information provided by TKNS. This provson shall survve the termination of any contractual relationship between TKNS
and Customer. Customer shall protect and treat Proprietary Information as it does its own most confidential proprietary information, and shall not
share It with any outside person whatsoever. For the avoidance of doubt, the fact and contents of any discussions and the contents and existence
of this quotation shall be considered Proprietary Information.

• Fax purchase orders to 616.825.6131 or email purchaseorders@tkns.net.
• This quote may or may not include estimated taxes. If taxes are included, the amount reflected is an estimate and the actual

amountwill be billed at the time of invoice. By accepting this quote Customer agrees to pay in addition to this quote any taxes as
required.

Payment Terms:

9/19/2023 12 03 57 PM Page 1 of 2



Payment mn full 1s due within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice Unpaid balances shall bear interest from the due date at the rate of one and one
half percent (1 ½%)per month

ACCEPTED:
The above prices, specifications and conditons are satisfactory and
are hereby accepted.

Buyer: _

Signature:

Date of Acceptance:
------------------

9/19/2023 12 03 57 PM

CONFIRMED:

TurnKey Network Solutions

Authorized Signature:
----------------

Estimator: Emily Daz
616-916-2705 edaz@tkns.net

Page 2 of 2



TURNKEY
Network Solutions
7020 SouthbeltDrve SE Caledona. MI 49316
Toll Free. 877.376.7681 www.tkns.net

The Single Source for
All YourTelecommunicaoons
Infrastructure Needs

To: City Of Franklin Contact:
Address: 9229 W Loomis Road Phone:

Franklin, WI Fax:

Project Name: Fiber Optic Ring Project RR Asphalt, Addt'I Bore & HH Placement Bid Number: 2023-2246

Project Location: Franklin, WI Bid Date: 9/13/2023

Scope of Work.

This change order is for (1) additional handhole placement at W Drexel Ave & Schleiter Pkwy .

Thank you for the opportunity to quote this project.

[rem Description

Hand Hole Placement

Total Price]

$1,297.92

Total Bid Price: $1,297.92

Notes:
• Th is quote constitutes an offer byTurnKey Network Solutions (TKNS) to the Customer named on page 1 of thus quote for the furnishing of Products

and/or Services. The offer made in this quote is subject to the Master Services Terms and Conditions available at
http.//www.tkns.net/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/TKNSMSTC.pdf Customer shall indicate acceptance of this offer by providing TKNS with a return
copy of the quote signed by a duly authorized representative of Customer. By accepting this offer Customer accepts TKNS Master Services Terms
and Conditions.

• Labor prices are valid for sixty (60) days from the date noted on the quote. Beyond sixty (60) days, please call for current pricing.
• Materialspricesaresubject to changewithoutpriornoticedue to supplychain relatedpricing volatilityfrom suppliers. The final
cost of thematerialsshallbe equitablyadjusted, should theybegreaterthan theamountproposed within theaccepted quote.

• All routes will be owned by and permitted under Customer of record hsted on quote.
• Customer of record listed on quote rs responsible for all structure (pole and conduit) make-ready costs

• Customer of record listed on quote Is responsible for all applicable structure (pole and conduit) permits, fees, make-ready costs, and ROW
acquisrton/use fees.

• Price does not include any costs for directional boring/plowing through rock or frozen ground (frost) conditions. A price will be agreed upon prior to
construct ion 1f these conditions are encountered.

• All property disturbed by TKNS will be restored to its original condition.
Quoted price does not include the cost to modify any TKNS disturbed area to meet The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Any requirement of

modifications to disturbed areas outside of restoral to Its original condition will be considered a change in the scope of work and a pnce will be
agreed to pnor construct ion.

• Excavated spoils shall be used as backfill. Any requirement for imported backfill will be considered a change in the scope of work and a pnce will be
agreed upon prior to construction.

• TKNS is not responsible for the handling and disposal of Hazardous materials.

• The information contained mn thus quotation (the "Proprietary Information"), is proprietary to the business of TKNS. Customer agrees to protect as
confidential all Propnetary Information provided by TKNS. This provison shall survive the term inatuon of any contractual relationship between TKNS
and Customer. Customer shall protect and treat Propnetary Information as It does Its own most confidential proprietary information, and shall not
share It with any outside person whatsoever. For the avoidance of doubt, the fact and contents of any discussions and the contents and existence
of ths quotation shall be considered Proprietary Informaton.

• Fax purchase orders to 616.825.6131 or email purchaseorders@tkns.net.
• This quote may or may not include estimated taxes. If taxes are included, the amount reflected is an estimate and the actual

amount will be billed at the time of invoice. By accepting this quote Customer agrees to pay in addition to this quote any taxes as
required.

Payment Terms:

Payment in full is due within thirty (30) days of receipt of invrnce. Unpaid balances shall bear interest from the due date at the rate of one and one
half percent (1 %) per month.

9/18/2023 12 19 12 PM Page 1 of 2



ACCEPTED:
The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and
are hereby accepted.

Buyer: _

Signature: _

Date of Acceptance:------------------

9/18/2023 12 19 12 PM

CONFIRMED:

TurnKey Network Solutions

Authorized Signature:
---------------

Estimator: Emily Diaz

616-916-2705 edaz@tkns.net

Page 2 of 2



TURNKEY
Network Solutions
7020 Southbelt Dnve SE Caledonia. MI 49316
Toll Free: 877.376.7681 www.tkns.net

The Single Source for
All YourTelecommunications
Infrastructure Needs

To: City Of Franklin Contact:
Address: 9229 W Looms Road Phone:

Franklin, WI Fax:

Project Name: Fiber Optic Rung Project Franklin Public Schools ESC Relocation Bid Number: 2023-2272

Project Location: 8255 W. Forest Hill Ave, Franklin, WI Bid Date: 9/22/2023
Scope of Work

Construction, Splicing & ISP to relocate Frankin Public Schools ESC lateral for a future addituon on the west side of thenr current building.

Place new 2" conduit via directional bore for approximately 270', create new budding entrance with 10' of 2" rigid galvanized pipe, (1) 12"x12"x6"
Nema 3R Pull Box, single gang box and 4' of 1/2" ngid galvanized pipe. Place 45' of new 2" EMT in drop ceiling from point of entry to server room. At
the time of the cut, cut both existing 24ct & 72ct fibers from existing termination panel and pull back approximately 435' through existing EMT and
2" conduit, out to customers exasting handhole. Pull both cables through new pathway, approximately 340'. Leave 30' coil on both fibers in drop
ceiling near termination panel and any additonal fiber is to be left in a loop in the customers existing handhole. Terminate all 96 fibers in customer
existing rack mounted termination panel.

Thank you for the opportunity to quote this project.

[rem Description

Directional Boring
Building Entrance - Above Grade
ISP Installation - 2" Rigid Galvanized Steel - 10'
ISP Installation - 12x126 NEMA Pull Box
ISP Installation - 1/2" Rigid Galvanized Steel - 4'
ISP Installation - Single Gang Outlet Box
ISP Installation - 2" EMT - 45
Splicing Maintenance Window Adder-Per Window
Cut & Pull Back 24ct & 72ctTo Existng Handhole
Cable Placement In New Conduit (24ct & 72ct)
Splicing - Loose Tube Fiber
Fiber Testing
Network Documentation - ProJect
OSP Materials
ISP Materials

Total Bid Price:

Total Price]

$4,282.20
$1,586.35
$246.60
$246.62
$98.64

$123.31
$1,611.00
$1,900.00
$5,018.40
$1,036.80
$4,568.64
$663.36
$372.00
$735.89
$363.52

$22,853.33

Notes:
• This quote constitutes an offer by TurnKey Network Solutions (TKNS) to the Customer named on page 1 of this quote for the furrnshmg of Products

and/or Services. The offer made m this quote Is subject to the Master Services Terms and Conditions available at
http.//www.tkns.net/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/TKNSMSTC.pdf Customer shall indicate acceptance of this offer by providing TKNS with a return
copy of the quote signed by a duly authorized representative of Customer. By accepting this offer Customer accepts TKNS Master Services Terms
and Conditions.

• Labor prices are valid for sixty (60) days from the date noted on the quote. Beyond sixty (60) days, please call for current pncmg.
• Materialspricesare subject tochangewithoutpriornotice due tosupplychain relatedpricing volatility from suppliers. The final
cost of thematerialsshallbe equitablyadjusted, should theybe greaterthan theamountproposed within theaccepted quote.

• All routes will be owned by and permitted under Customer of record listed on quote.
• Customer of record listed on quote 1s responsible for all structure (pole and conduit) make-ready costs.
• Customer of record listed on quote 1s responsible for all applicable structure (pole and conduit) permits, fees, make-ready costs, and ROW

acquisition/use fees.

9/22/2023 1 22 OS PM Page 1 of 2



• Pnce does not include any costs for directional bonng/plowing through rock or frozen ground (frost) cond1t1ons. A price will be agreed upon prior to
construction 1f these conditions are encountered.

• All property disturbed by TKNS will be restored to its original condition.
• Quoted price does not include the cost to modify any TKNS disturbed area to meet The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Any requirement of

modifications to disturbed areas outside of restoral to its original condition will be considered a change m the scope of work and a price will be
agreed to pror construction.

• Excavated spoils shall be used as backfill. Any requirement for imported backfill will be considered a change in the scope of work and a price will be
agreed upon prior to construction.

• TKNS 1s not responsible for the handling and disposal of Hazardous materials.
• The information contained in this quotation (the "Proprietary Information"), is proprietary to the business ofTKNS. Customer agrees to protect as

confidential all Proprietary Information provided by TKNS. This provision shall survive the termination of any contractual relationship between TKNS
and Customer. Customer shall protect and treat Proprietary Information as it does its own most confidential propnetary information, and shall not
share 1t with any outside person whatsoever. For the avoidance of doubt, the fact and contents of any discussmns and the contents and existence
of this quotation shall be considered Proprietary Information.

• Fax purchase orders to 616.825.6131 or email purchaseorders@tkns.net.
• This quote may or may not include estimated taxes. If taxes are included, the amount reflected is an estimate and the actual

amountwill be billed at the time of invoice. By accepting this quote Customer agrees to pay in addition to this quote any taxes as
required.

Payment Terms:

Payment in full is due within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice. Unpaid balances shall bear interest from the due date at the rate of one and one
half percent (1%) per month.

ACCEPTED:
The above prces, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and
are hereby accepted.

Buyer: _

Signature: ----------------------
Date of Acceptance:

9/22/2023 1 22 OS PM

CONFIRMED:

TurnKey Network Solutions

Authorized Signature:
----------------

Estimator: Emly Daz
616-916-2705 edaz@tkns.net

Page 2 of 2



TURNKEY
Network Solutions
7020 Suthbelt Dnve SE Caledonia. Ml 49316
Toll Free: 877.376.7681 www.tkns.net

The Single Source for
All YourTelecommunications
Infrastructure Needs

To: City Of Franklin Contact:
Address: 9229 W Loomis Road Phone:

Franklin, WI Fax:

Project Name: Fiber Optic Ring ProJectCity Fiber Into ESC Reroute JCO Bid Number: 2023-2239

Project Location: Franklin, WI Bid Date: 9/13/2023
Scope ofWork.

This change order is for the additional work required for a new point of entry for City of Franklin's fiber into Franklin School ESC.

Thank you for the opportunity to quote this project.

[rem Description

Intercept Existing Conduit/Innerduct
Directional Boring
Building Entrance
Cable Placement In New Conduit
ISP Installation - 2" RIgd Galvanized Steel - 16 Feet
ISP Installation - 12x12x6 NEMA Pull Box
ISP Installation - 1/2" Rigid Galvanized Steel - 4 Feet
ISP Installation - Single Gang Outlet Box
ISP Installation - 2" EMT - 110 Feet
ISP Installation - 2" Core Drill Intenor (Wall 8 Pull Box)
OSP Materials
ISP Matenals

Total Bid Price:

Total Price]

$144.21
$1,982.50
$1,586.35
$244.80
$394.56
$246.62
$98.64
$123.31

$3,938.00
$493.24
$694.67
$823.94

$10,770.84

Notes:
• This quote constitutes an offer by TurnKey Network Solutions (TKNS) to the Customer named on page 1 of this quote for the furnishing of Products

and/or Services. The offer made in this quote is sub3ect to the Master Services Terms and Conditions available at
http://www.tkns.net/wp-content/uploads/2021/03f[KNSMSTC.pdf Customer shall indicate acceptance of thus offer by providing TKNS with a return
copy of the quote signed by a duly authonzed representative of Customer. By accepting this offer Customer accepts TKNS Master Services Terms
and Conditions.

• Labor prices are valid for sixty (60) days from the date noted on the quote. Beyond sixty (60) days, please call for current pricing.
• Materials prices are subject tochange withoutpriornotice due tosupply chain relatedpricing volatilityfrom suppliers. The final
cost of the materials shallbeequitably adjusted, should theybegreaterthan the amountproposedwithin the acceptedquote.

• All routes will be owned by and permitted under Customer of record listed on quote.
• Customer of record listed on quote Is responsible for all structure (pole and conduit) make-ready costs.
• Customer of record listed on quote 1s responsible for all applicable structure (pole and conduit) permits, fees, make-ready costs, and ROW

acquisition/use fees.
• Price does not include any costs for directional boring/plowing through rock or frozen ground (frost) cond1tmns. A price will be agreed upon prior to

construction if these conditions are encountered.
" AII property disturbed by TKNS will be restored to its ongmnal condition.
• Quoted pnce does not include the cost to modify any TKNS disturbed area to meetThe Americans with DIsabhrtues Act (ADA). Any requirement of

modifications to disturbed areas outside of restoral to its original conditon will be considered a change n the scope of work and a prce will be
agreed to prior construction.

• Excavated spoils shall be used as backfill. Any requirement for imported backfill will be considered a change in the scope of work and a price will be
agreed upon prior to construction.

• TKNS 1s not responsible for the handling and disposal of Hazardous materials

9/13/2023 9 03 32 AM Page 1 of 2



• The information contained in this quotation (the "Proprietary Information"), is proprietary to the business ofTKNS. Customer agrees to protect as
confidential all Proprietary Information provided by TKNS. This provson shall survive the termination of any contractual relationship between TKNS
and Customer. Customer shall protect and treat Proprietary Information as it does its own most confidential proprietary information, and shall not
share it with any outside person whatsoever. For the avoidance of doubt, the fact and contents of any discussions and the contents and existence
of this quotation shall be considered Proprietary Information.

• Fax purchase orders to 616.825.6131 or email purchaseorders@tkns.net.
• This quote may or may not include estimated taxes. If taxes are included, the amount reflected is an estimate and the actual
amount will be billed at the time of invoice. By accepting this quote Customer agrees to pay in addition to this quote any taxes as
required.

Payment Terms:

Payment 1n full is due w1th1n thirty (30) days of receipt of mvrnce. Unpaid balances shall bear interest from the due date at the rate of one and one
half percent (1 %) per month.

ACCEPTED:
The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and
are hereby accepted.

Buyer: _

Signature: _

Date of Acceptance:
------------------

9/13/2023 9 03 32 AM

CONFIRMED:

TurnKey Network Solutions

Authorized Signature:
----------------

Estimator: Emily Daz
616-916-2705 edaz@tkns.net

Page 2 of 2



APPROVAL

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize the Purchase and Service Contract ofNew
Fortinet Firewalls from TPX/Cornerstone

Communications for $391,108, as a Fully Managed
Security Solution - Account 46-0181-5846.9650

The Common Council may enter closed session for
this subject matter item pursuant toWis. Stat.

$ 19.86(1)(d), to consider strategy for crime
prevention, and the implementation ofa program

and policy and tools therefore for crime prevention,
i.e., cyberattack prevention and technological crimes
in relation thereto, for the protection ofthe City's
technical and information infrastructure and the

City officials, employees and the public who use the
system, and also pursuant toWis. Stat. $ 19.85(1)(e),
for competition and bargaining reasons with regard
to the prevention protection program and this
subject matter item, and the investing ofpublic

funds in relation thereto, and to reenter open session
at the same place thereafter to act on such matters

discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

MEETING DATE
10/03/2023

ITEM NUMBER

G.I4.

Background
On August 1, 2023 the Common Council approved a motion to increase funding of the Fiber Optic
WAN project by $275,000 for the inclusion of new firewalls and WAN routers. The budget was
extended so the project is not to exceed $1,646,200. The project changed the fundamental architecture
from a hybrid hub and spoke topology to that of a fault tolerant ring. The network is designed to use
dynamic routing protocols and SD-WAN to alternate carriers (Spectrum) in the event that WiscNet or
a facility goes completely down. The primary goal of the project is to provide high-speed fault-tolerant
Internet access to all facilities, where the firewalls are able to route around failures in the network. This
requires a new architecture and modern routing protocols.

Motion to Recommend:
On September 27, 2023 the Franklin Technology Commission reviewed seven different proposals and
architecture solutions for the new fiber optic network. The cost of the recommended proposal by
TPX/Cornerstone Communications is $391,108. The project deliverables as defined by the Statement
of Work and project scope are as follows:

Hardware
• Maximum 10GB raw throughput
• 1 Gbps to 1.5 Gbps full inspection throughput
• 250 concurrent VPN connections
• HA for City Hall, PD (Water optional)
• NGFW - full layer 8 inspection and rule sets



Services
• Antivirus inspection
• Antimalware/spyware inspection
• Vulnerability detection analytics
• URL filtering
• File blocking
• Data blocking

Central Management Console
• Centralized configuration
• Centralized policy management & storage
• Centralized updates
• Centralized logging
• Centralized reporting & analytics
• 1 Gbps to 1.5 Gbps full inspection throughput
• 250 concurrent VPN connections
• HA for City Hall, PD (Water optional)
• NGFW - full layer 8 inspection and rule sets

Redundancy
• HA pairs City Hall and PD
• SD-WAN on all Internet connections
• Down ISP link or firewall connection status

Routing:
• Franklin School District will be the inbound NAP for WiscNet Internet access. WiscNet is to

provide the routers.
• Dynamic routing protocols will be used for Internet routing and detection of down sites on the

fiber ring.
• SD-WAN will be used to detect down carrier conditions and route over secondary connections.
• Legacy OC1 connections will no longer be used for inter facility access.

The TPX/Cornerstone Communications fully managed Fortinet firewall and Meraki switch system was
recommended by the Franklin Technology Commission. The yearly cost is $30,757 greater than the
best unmanaged option ($237,322) over a five-year period, despite the fact that it is much more
expensive than an unmanaged system. The whole configuration and monitoring of the managed
solution will be handled by TPX, who is also in charge of patching, updating, and the functionality of
all equipment.

The managed solution puts the burden and responsibility of perimeter security administration on the
TPX SOC, where the devices are configured and maintained by network security experts. IT will be
responsible for implementing structure change control, documenting all firewall modification requests
and submitting tickets to the vendor. The vendor is then responsible for scheduling, creating, and
testing the change. A fully managed solution eliminates the operational cost of submitting complex
security changes to a vendor (currently HBS) for implementation, or seeking professional help when
troubleshooting issues. Change and incident management is fully contained within the contract. In



the event that there is a temporary or permanent change in Franklin IT staff, management of the
firewalls and WAN routers will not be impacted by staffing issues. The Technology Commission
strongly recommends a managed solution to an internally managed solution.

Company Information:
TPX was originally TelePacific Communications, which was a competitive local exchange carrier
(CLEC) based in California. Quickly, the organization shifted beyond telecommunications to supply
other IT services based on customer demand. As the customer base and product offering grew, TPX
expanded its geographic footprint beyond California. The company has a headquarters in Austin, TX
and has multiple SOC2 data centers throughout the United States.

Fiscal Impact
The TPX/Cornerstone Communications proposal cost is $391,108 and includes Fortinet 200F high
availability firewalls and WAN routers at City Hall, Police Department, and the Franklin School
District office. Fortinet lOOF firewalls will be installed in the remote offices. Two pair of fiber
connections to each firewall will provide access to the Internet via WiscNet, while two additional pairs
of 10GB fibers will be used for inter-facility routing. As part of the RFP, all warranty, licensing, and
support costs are included and capitalized over a period of five years.

Current and Future Project Costs: (Allocated $1,646,200)
• Turnkey Fiber Optic Trenching & Installation
• MCE Technical Analysis & Project Management
• Project Contingency
• (Estimate) Firewalls & WAN Routers

$961,819
$180,567
$228,813
$275,000

In order to implement the solution without additional funding, $116,108 of project funding or
contingency will need to be used beyond the planned $275,000. The project will need careful
management of all change orders.

Assumptions
To fully implement SD-WAN, all Spectrum fiber optic cable installation will need to be completed prior
to October 31, 2023. Supply chain and product availability issues are not expected, as current levels of
product are already in stock. It is estimated that the project will take 6-8 weeks to implement after all
contracts have been finalized. A change control freeze will exist from December 15, 2023 to January
15, 2024. This is a high revenue period and infrastructure changes are minimized whenever possible.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the purchase of $391,108 for all TPX product and services as defined by the first
solution within the Cornerstone Communications proposal. The managed services solution will
include all hardware, warranties, licenses, and support agreements for a period of five years. The City
attorney and Director of IT are authorized to make any necessary technical correction for establishing
the service contract.

DOA-KH / IT-JM



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

LICENSES AND

PERMITS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES

MEETING DATE
10/03/23

ITEM NUMBER

H.

See attached License Committee Meeting Minutes from the License Committee Meeting of
October 3, 2023.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the minutes of License Committee Meeting of October 3, 2023.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda
Franklin City Hall Hearing Room

9229 W. Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI

October 3, 2023 - 5:45 p.m.

1. Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. Citizen Comment

3. License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Class B Beer DBA On Cloud Wine
Class B Wine Only On Cloud Wine, LLCEntertainment & Amusement
2023-2024 10062 W Loomis Rd
5:50 p.m. John "Randy" Larson, Agent
Operator Amy Analla
2023-2024 Point After Pub & GrilleNew

Operator Jennifer Halser
2023-2024 Polish Center of WisconsinNew

Operator Brian Shulta
2023-2024 Romey's PlaceNew

Operator Joshua Ninabuck
2023-2024 Hideaway Pub & EateryNew

Amendment to Public Grant Change of Civic Celebration Commission Public Grant
for Civic Celebration to Include Home for the Holidays EventCommission to Include Home
for the Holidays Event Fee Waivers: Temporary Entertainment & Amusement

License
Date of Event: 11/25/2023
Location: Franklin City Hall, Lions Legend Park I
John Bergner, Chairman of Civic Celebration Commission

Temporary Civic Celebration Committee - Home for the Holidays
Entertainment & EventAmusement

Date of Event: 11/25/2023
Location: Franklin City Hall, Lions Legend Park I
Person in Charqe: Mira Kresovic

4. Adiournment Time:

*Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility . This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even

though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting.



APPROVAL

Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
10/3/2023

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated September 15, 2023 through September 28, 2023, Nos 194339 through Nos 194513 In
the amount of$ 1,132,706 69 Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos 5456 through EFT Nos 5472, Library
vouchers totaling $ 34,649 89 and Water Utility vouchers totaling $ 13,584 68 There were no Voided checks for this
period

Early release disbursements dated September 15, 2023 through September 27, 2023 in the amount of$ 780,669 40
are provided on a separate listing and are also included mn the complete disbursement listing These payments have
been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834

The net payroll dated September 22, 2023 Is $479,371 70, previously estimated at$ 460,000 Payroll deductions
dated September 22, 2023 are$ 509,456 96, previously estimated at$ 467,000

The estimated payroll for October 6, 2023 Is $ 470,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments of
$245,000

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Moton approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of September 28, 2023 in the amount of$ 1,132,706 69

• Payroll dated September 22, 2023 in the amount of$ 479,371 70 and payments of the various payroll deductions in
the amount of$ 509,456 96, plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated October 6, 2023 in the amount of$ 470,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 245,000, plus City matching payments

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept -- SB/CH



BLANK PAGE


